# Construction Environmental Management Plan

.

CLIENT NAME:	Amity College
PROJECT NAME:	Leppington Campus Stage 1
SITE ADDRESS:	85 Byron Road, Leppington NSW 2179
REVISION:	12
ISSUE DATE:	04/02/2022
DOCUMENT REF#:	LLOYD-1488CEMP-R12

#### ABBREVIATIONS

ABBREVIATION	DEFINITION
The Organisation	Lloyd Group
BDM	Business Development Manager
СА	Contract Administrator
Critical Incident	A critical incident is any incident in the workplace that results in death; major structural damage, or serious/permanent disability or injury
СМ	Construction Manager
DIR	Director/s
EMP	All Company Employees
EST	Estimator
ESTM	Estimating Manager
FAI	First Aid Injury
HIRAC	Hazard Identification, Risk Assessment & Controls
HSE	Health Safety & Environment
HSR	Health & Safety Representative
IMS	Integrated Management System
HSEQ	Health Safety Environment and Quality
HSEQC	HSEQ Coordinator
HSEQM	HSEQ Manager
HSEQA	HSEQ Administrator
Lloyd Group	Lloyd Group/the Organisation
LTI	Lost Time Injury – At least one full shift lost due to injury
LTIFR	Lost Time Injury Frequency Rate = No. (LTI's/hours worked) x 1,000,000
MD	Managing Director
МТІ	Medical Treatment Injury
MTIFR	Medical Treatment Injury Frequency Rate
NTL	National Team Leader – Safety & Compliance
ОМ	Office Manager
PPE	Personal Protection Equipment
PM	Project Manager

ABBREVIATION	DEFINITION
SDS	Safety Data Sheet (Formally referred to as MSDS)
Senior Management	Directors / General Managers / Construction Managers / HSEQ Managers / Procurement Managers
SM	Site Manager
SSC	Site Safety Committee

REGISTER OF REVIEW - MASTER					
REVISION	DATE	SECTION	DESCRIPTION OF AMENDMENTS	AMENDED BY	
0	31/3/21	All	Initial issue	S Willoughby	
7	1/12/21	All	Stage 1 Initial Issue	J Ling	

APPROVALS	APPROVALS					
NAME	POSITION	SIGNATURE	DATE			
Matthew Licuria	Construction Manager	Ullan .	04/02/22			
Scott Willoughby	HSEQ Manager	S Willoughby	04/02/22			
Joseph Elley	Project Manager	Jahry	04/02/22			
Kane Sabo	Site Manager	Nog	04/02/22			

#### SITE PERSONNEL INDUCTION

Project team personnel are to be inducted into this plan before starting work on the project. Insert your name and role in the register below, then sign and date to acknowledge that you have read and understood the company requirements and agree to implement the procedures as applicable to your role. Note: Nominated approvers who have signed above are not required to sign below.

NAME	POSITION	SIGNATURE	DATE

REGISTER OF REVIEW - PROJECT					
REVISION	DATE	SECTION	DESCRIPTION OF AMENDMENTS	AMENDED BY	
8	10/01/22	All	<ul><li>M.M Comments</li><li>Updated workzone management plans</li><li>Formatting</li></ul>	J Ling	
9	18/01/22	All	<ul><li>M.M Comments</li><li>Added Senior Management Signatures</li></ul>	J Ling	
10	31/01/22	All	<ul> <li>Douglas Partners Comments</li> <li>Amendments made as per 203645.00.R.003.Rev2 AIR 3.0 (CEMP Rev9).pdf issued by Paul Moritz</li> </ul>	J Ling	
11	02/02/22	All	Douglas Partners Comments Amendments made as per 203645.00.R.003.Rev2 AIR 3.2 (CEMP Rev10).pdf issued by Paul Moritz	J Ling	
12	04/02/22	Appendix A	Removed Landscape Drawings and Transmittal as per P.R. request	J Ling	

As required by condition C21(h) of the Consent Conditions, reviews and updates to this plan are to be documented above. Additionally, reviews are to be undertaken on a yearly basis, or if the building scope of works varies to a considerable extent as determined by either the Principal or Lloyd's HSEQ manager.

#### TABLE OF CONTENTS

1.	Comp	pany Information	9
	1.1.	Company Background	9
	1.2.	Integrated Management System	9
	1.3.	Project Overview and Scope	10
	1.4.	Project Team	12
	1.5.	Scope of Works	13
2.	Proje	ct Site, Baseline Data	18
	2.1	Current State of Site After Early Works	20
	2.2	Initial Contamination History and Remediation Works	21
	2.3	Independent Auditor	21
3.	Regu	latory Approvals & Contact Details	22
	3.1.	Overview	22
	3.2.	Pre-construction Investigations	22
	3.3.	Permits and Approvals	22
	3.4.	Signage	23
4.	Operatio	on and Responsibilities	24
	4.1.	Earthworks	24
	4.2.	Hours of Operation	25
	4.3.	Responsibilities	25
	4.4.	Site Offices and Amenities	28
	4.5.	Flora and Fauna Management	29
	4.6.	Environmental and Safety Controls	30
	4.7.	Environmental Authority Notification & Site Visits	30
	4.8.	Quality Assurance and Occupational Health & Safety	31
	4.9.	Risk Management	31
5.	Unex	pected Finds Protocols	32
	5.1.	Unexpected Finds Protocol – Contamination	32
	5.2.	Unexpected Finds Protocol – Aboriginal Heritage	33
	5.3.	Unexpected Finds Protocol – Historic Heritage	34
	5.4.	Records of unexpected Finds	34
6.	Wast	e Classifications of Materials to be Removed or Imported into Site	35
7.	Constru	ction Traffic and Pedestrian Management	36
	7.1.	Purpose	37
	7.2	Legislative requirements	37
	7.3.	Industry Standards and Guidelines	38
	7.3.	Project Summary	38
	7.4.	Site Description	40
	7.5.	Staging Plan - Commencement Dates and Duration	
	7.6.	Hours of Work	
	7.7.	Daily Onsite Workforce	
	7.8.	Subject Road – Byron Road	
	7.9.	Public Transport Facilities	
	7.10.	Pedestrian and Cycle Paths	
	7.11.	Location of Proposed Hoardings	
	/		40

	7.12.	Location of proposed Crane Standing Zone	47
	7.13.	Location of proposed Work (Construction Work) Zone	47
	7.15.	Concrete Pour Work Zones	47
	7.16.	Loading / Unloading Zones	48
	7.17.	Location of Excavations	48
	7.18.	Site Accommodations	48
	7.19.	Material, Plant and Spoil Bin Storage Areas	48
	7.20.	Nearby Construction Sites	48
	7.21.	Access Management Arrangements	49
	7.22.	Vehicle Movement Plan	49
	7.23.	Impact to Residents, Businesses and the Public	49
	7.24.	Neighbouring Properties	49
	7.25.	Transport Management for Service, Delivery, and Garbage Vehicles	49
	7.26.	Public Transport Impacts	49
	7.27.	On Site Parking	50
	7.28.	Emergency Services	50
	7.29.	Pedestrians	50
	7.30.	Cyclists	50
	7.31.	Driver Code of Conduct	50
	7.32.	Types of Trucks Approaching Site	51
	7.33.	Estimated Daily Truck Volumes	
	7.34.	Abnormal and Oversize/Over mass Loads	
	7.35.	Risk Assessment	
	7.36.	Stakeholder Works Notifications	
	7.37.	Emergency Services Notification	
	7.38.	Key Contacts	
	7.39.	Traffic Layouts	
	7.40.	Traffic Control Plans	
8.	Cons	truction Noise, Vibration and Dust Management	62
	8.1.	Overview	
	8.2.	Interim Construction Noise Guidelines EPA 2009	62
	8.3.	Vibration Requirements	
	8.4.	Air Quality	
	8.5.	Noise and Vibration Measures	
	8.6.	Community Consultation	
	8.7.	Air and Dust Control Measures	
	8.8.	Handling of Noise/Vibration Complaints	
	8.9.	Monitoring of Performance	
9.		truction Waste & Other Impacts Management	
	9.1.	Overview: Waste Management Generally	
	9.2.	Contaminated Waste Management	
	9.3.	Waste Water/Washout Areas	
	9.4.	Packaging	
	9.5.	Recycled Materials	
	9.6.	Contaminated Material Disposal	
	9.7.	Hazardous Materials (Fuels & Chemicals) Transport, Storage & Handling	
	9.8.	Site Facilities Management	
	9.9.	Noxious Weeds Management	
	/ . / .	However the cost that a general and the second seco	/+

10.	Const	ruction Soil and Water Management Plan	75		
1	0.1.	Overview	75		
1	0.2.	Sediment & Erosion Control Plan	84		
1	0.3.	Soil Management Generally	85		
1	0.4.	Road Maintenance	86		
1	0.5.	Storm Flows	86		
1	0.6.	Concrete Agitator Wash down	87		
11.	Enviro	onment Management Framework	88		
1	1.1.	Subcontractor Management	88		
1	1.2.	Monitoring and Inspections	88		
1	1.3.	Non-conformances	88		
1	1.4.	Environmental Measuring and Test Equipment	89		
1	1.5.	Community Relations and Emergency Site Contacts	89		
1	1.6.	Training	89		
1	1.7.	Environmental Complaints	89		
1	1.8.	Tendering	90		
1	1.9.	Environmental Emergency Management	90		
1	1.10.	Access to Legislation	90		
12.	Apper	ndix A – Stage 1 Works Tender Drawings and Technical Notes	91		
13.	Apper	ndix B – Risk Register	92		
		ndix C – Environmental Policy			
15.	Appendix D – Community Consultation Strategy94				
	7. Appendix F – Emergency Management Plan96				
18.	.8. Appendix G – Training and Skilling Plan				

#### 1. Company Information

#### 1.1. Company Background

Established in 1979 by Trevor Lloyd as a small contracting business, Lloyd Group (The Organisation) was built on strong family values and a relentless commitment to personalised service. Since then, Lloyd Group has experienced controlled and steady growth, having established longstanding relationships with many repeat clients and superior contractors.

Today, Lloyd Group delivers high quality commercial construction projects across Victoria and New South Wales. Our team of over 60 exceptional people delivers projects up to \$30M in value across a variety of sectors that includes education, childcare, health, aged care, community, ecotourism, industrial and retail.

Accredited in ISO4801 (safety), ISO9001 (quality) and ISO14001 (environment) and compliant to ISO45001, our systems support professional construction practices that allow our clients a positive experience with transparency and communication at the forefront of our practices.

We will always strive to grow and develop our business through our constructive thinking, never forgetting the quality of the personalised service we provide our clients.

#### 1.2. Integrated Management System

The Organisation has documented, implemented, and continues to maintain an Integrated Management System (IMS). This Management System provides guidance to all aspects of safety, environmental and quality management applicable to all operations. The following diagram provides an overview of the IMS interaction.



The Organisation operates an Integrated Management System for Safety, Quality and Environmental Management. The IMS is has the following certifications:

- AS/NZS ISO 45001:2018 Safety Management Systems
- AS/NZS ISO 14001:2015 Environmental Management Systems
- AS/NZS ISO 9001:2015 Quality Management System
- Federal Safety Commission



#### 1.3. Project Overview and Scope

In July 2020 development consent was issued for the establishment of a new Amity College school campus on the subject site at Leppington. The project is a state significant development: SSD 9227. This Site Environmental Management Plan (Plan) has been developed specifically for SSD 9227 and will be maintained and updated for the duration of this project. This Plan has been prepared in accordance with development consent issued 14/07/2020, as well as the approved *Preliminary Construction Management – Plan Proposed Primary & Secondary School SSD 9227*, dated July 2019, prepared by Outline Planning Consultants Pty Ltd.

The scope of works covered by this Plan comprises the construction of buildings on the approved Amity College Leppington school site, for Stages 1-4 of the project. It includes but is not limited to the following:

The scope for the works in Stage 1 of the works is reliant on the following documentation:

- Site survey documentation, issued by Total Surveying Solutions.
- Civil documentation, prepared by Martens & Associates Pty Ltd.
- Architectural drawings, prepared by Gran Associates Australia Architects Pty Ltd.
- Architectural specification, prepared by Gran Associates Australia Architects Pty Ltd.
- Preliminary Construction Management Plan, prepared by Outline Planning Consultants Pty Ltd.
- Construction Programme, prepared by Lloyd Group Pty Ltd.

The purpose of this document is to broadly outline how the above works will be managed, including nature of measures likely to be used, control measures and environmental responsibilities. It will assist in ensuring:

- Best practice environmental management procedures are applied.
- Environmental risks associated with the project are properly identified and managed, and provide protection to workers, visitors and the general public from traffic and environmental hazards and risks that may arise as a result of the construction activity.
- To ensure that corrective actions, when required, are completed in a timely manner.
- Provide a safe environment for all surrounding residents, road users and workers on-site.
- Compliance with all current, relevant environmental legislation.
- Compliance with the requirements of the development consent.

Regarding the latter dot point above, SSD 9227 Development Consent condition C21 requires the preparation of management plans that must include the following:

- Detailed baseline data: condition C21(a). Refer to Section 2.
- Details of statutory requirements and the like: condition C21(b). Refer to Sections 2 and 3, and other relevant sections of this Plan.
- Measures to be implemented to comply with relevant statutory requirements: condition C21(c). Refer to Section 3 and other relevant sections of this Plan.
- Details of the monitoring program to be implemented: condition C21(d). Refer to other relevant sections of this Plan.
- Contingency plans: condition C21(e). Refer to other relevant sections of this Plan.
- A program to investigate and implement ways to improve environmental performance: condition C21(f). Refer to other relevant sections of this Plan.

- Protocols for managing and reporting incidents, non-compliance, complaints, and any failure to comply with statutory requirements: condition C21(g). Refer to other relevant sections of this Plan.
- Protocols for reviews and updates: condition C21(h). Refer to page 4 of this CEMP, containing the Revision and Review Register and also identifies the frequency of reviews; and what triggers a review.

C22 requires the preparation of a Construction Environmental Management Plan that includes the following, summarised in the following table.

The above requirements are addressed in the following.

Requirement for this Construction Environmental Management Plan (CEMP)	Where this requirement has been addressed in this CEMP
Details of hours of work: condition C22(a)(i)	Refer to section 4.2
24-hour contact details of site manager: condition C22(a)(ii)	Refer to section 3.4
Management of dust and odours to protect amenity of neighbourhood: condition C22(a)(iii)	Refer to section 8.7
Stormwater controls and discharge: condition C22(a)(iv)	Refer to section 10
Measures to avoid tracking of sediment etc. onto local roads: condition C22(a)(v)	Refer to section 10
External lightings: condition C22(a)(vi)	Refer to section 4.4
Community consultation and complaints handling: condition C22(a)(vii)	Refer to section 11
Construction Traffic and Pedestrian Management Sub-Plan: condition C22(b),C24	Refer to section 7
Construction Noise and Vibration Management Sub-Plan: condition C22(c),C25	Refer to section 8
Construction Waste Management Sub-Plan: condition C22(d),C26	Refer to section 9
Construction Soil and Water Management Sub-Plan: condition C22(e),C27	Refer to section 10
Unexpected finds protocol for contamination: condition C22(f)	Refer to section 5
Unexpected finds protocol for Aboriginal and non-Aboriginal finds: condition C22(g)	Refer to section 5
Waste classification for materials removed/remaining: condition C22(h)	Refer to section 6

This Plan sets out the framework for safety and environmental planning on this project consistent with Organisation Policies and Procedures. It outlines the projects safety and environmental management structure, delegation of responsibilities and site safety rules. Handover of responsibilities to operational managers will occur at the completion of the contractual maintenance periods for construction works.

The requirements of this plan apply to all construction and associated work activities undertaken by Organisation. This includes all activities of subcontractors, suppliers, and consultants. We note that the preliminary plans, SSDA and some of the project documents refer to all stages of the Amity College Leppington school. This Plan covers only our scope of works for Stage 1 (Separable Portion 1) as documented in the Amity College Preliminary Construction Management Plan-refer to accompanying **Figures 1.1 to 1.4** summarising the extent of the Stage 1 works.

All Organisation employees are inducted into this plan and are made aware of its location should they wish to refer to it at any time. Revisions of the plan are notified to relevant personnel.

ROLE	NAME	CONTACT
General Manager	Matthew Licuria	0419 258 448
Construction Manager:	Matthew Licuria	0419 258 448
Project Manager	Joseph Elley	0408 848 050
Site Manager:	Kane Sabo	0451 120 060
HSEQ Manager	Scott Willoughby	0423 154 092
HSEQ Advisor	Scott Willoughby	0423 154 092
Contract Administrator:	Jordan Ling	0424 068 388
Workers Comp/Return to Work Coord:	Amy Parker	0413 455 261

#### 1.4. Project Team

#### 1.5. Scope of Works

PROJECT NAME	Amity College
PROJECT LOCATION	85 Byron Road, Leppington NSW 2179
ORGANISATION ROLE	Head Contractor
START DATE	07/01/2022
PEAK NUMBER OF WORKERS	100
DESCRIPTION OF THE WORKS	Construction of a new Primary School building complex, fronting Pluto Avenue; including basement car park, accommodation, open space, and parking areas.

#### ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT PLAN



Figure 1.1 Stage 1: Site Overview

**A** 

Amity College CEMP Project Rev 12 04/02/22



Figure 1.2 Stage 1: Site Overview – Southern Portion of site





Figure 1.3 Stage 1: Site Overview – Northern Portion of site





#### Figure 1.4 **Bulk Earthworks: Cut and Fill Plan**

#### NOTES:

NOTES: - EARLY WORKS IS STAGE 1 BULK EARTHWORKS INCLUDING CUT FILL AND PLACEMENT OF PROTECTIVE TOPSOIL & SEEDING, AND EXCLUDES RETAINING WALLS, PLUTO ROAD ROADWORKS, PRIMARY DROP-OFF WORKS AND FINAL LANDSCAPE TOPSOIL - EXISTING SURFACE IS BASED ON SURVEY INFORMATION PROVIDED BY TOTAL SURVEYING SOLUTIONS DATED 18/01/2021 - BULK EARTHWORK LEVELS ARE SHOWN ON PLANS (REFER TO DRG PS06-C300) ARE FINISHED SURFACE LEVELS ARE SHOWN ON PLANS (REFER TO DRG PS06-C300) ARE FINISHED SURFACE LEVELS ARE SHOWN ON PLANS (REFER TO DRG PS06-C300) ARE FOR PAVED AREAS, AND MINUS 300mm TOPSOIL FOR LANDSCAPED AREAS. - EARTHWORK CUT FILL DEPTHS ARE ANALYSED FROM PROPOSED BULK EARTHWORKS LEVELS TO EXISTING SURFACE MINUS 250mm TOPSOIL.

LEVELS TO EXISTING SURFACE MINUS 250mm TOPSOIL - EARTHWORK VOLUMES HAVE ACCOUNTED FOR APPROXIMATELY 2000m<sup>3</sup> SOIL BEING

REMOVED FROM REMEDIATION AREAS AND 250MM TOPSOIL BEING STRIPPED FROM THE SITE SURFACE. - ADDITIONAL FILL TO BE IMPORTED IN EXCESS OF BULK EARTHWORKS REQUIRED FOR

FINAL STAGE TO BE STOCKPILED ON SITE WITH NOMINATED LOCATION INDICATED ON PS06-B301. - SITE STRIPPED TOPSOIL TO BE STOCKPILED ON SITE WITH NOMINATED LOCATION ON

PS03-B301 - ALL EARTHWORK AREAS ARE TO BE REINSTATED BY THE CONTRACTOR TO THE

- ALL EAR HWORK AREAS ARE TO BE REINSTATED BT HELD INTIAL TO THE DIRECTION AND SATISFACTION OF THE SUPERINTENDENT. AS A MINIMUM, ALL AREAS EXCLUDING PAVEMENT AND ROCK LINED AREAS OR OTHER AREAS NOMINATED FOR SPECIFIC LANDSCAPING ARE TO BE FINISHED WITH 150 mm THICK LAYER OF SITE SOURCED (OR APPROVED EXTERNAL SUPPLY TOPSOIL) AND SPRAY GRASSED OR TURFED ASAP FOLLOWING COMPLETION OF WORKS IN ANY ONE AREA.

BULK EARTHWORKS CALCULATIONS	CUT (m <sup>3</sup> )	FILL (m <sup>3</sup> )
EARTHWORKS VOLUME	-4131	16739
EARTHWORKS BALANCE	-	12608

FILL CALCULATIONS	VOLUME (m <sup>3</sup> )
TOTAL STAGE 1 FILL REQUIRED	19000
TOTAL TOPSOIL REQUIRED FOR LANDSCAPE	4200
BULK EARTHWORK BALANCE	12608
FILL BALANCE TO STOCKPILE (FOR FINAL STAGE 1)	2200

TOPSOIL CALCULATIONS (EXCLUDES CONTAMINATED REMOVED)	CUT (m³)	FILL (m³)
LANDSCAPE TOPSOIL REQUIRED	-	4200
TOPSOIL STRIPPED (TO BE STOCKPILED ON SITE)	-3500	-
ADDITIONAL TOPSOIL REQUIRED TO IMPORT		700



#### 2. Project Site, Baseline Data

The project site is at No. 85 Byron Road and No. 63 Ingleburn Road at Leppington, comprising Pt Lots 1 & 2 DP 525996. It lies within a part of the NSW Government's South West Priority Growth Area, at Leppington, within the Camden Local Government Area. The project site lies approximately 1.2km away from the planned Leppington Major Centre railway station- refer Figure 1. The land proposed to be developed for a school campus is roughly rectangular in shape and has an area of approximately 2.37ha- refer Photographs 2.1-2.3.



PHOTOGRAPH 2.1: Project Site & surrounds showing approx. extent of early works area- shown with broken line (Drone photography 14 January 2021, view from east)



PHOTOGRAPH 2.2: Southern portion of Project Site & neighbouring residential development. Remediated area to left of photo. Approx. extent of early works area shown with broken line (Drone photography 14 January 2021, view from west)

Amity College CEMP Project Rev 12 04/02/22



Area shown with broken line (Drone photography 14 January 2021, view from west)

#### PHOTOGRAPH 2.3: Northern Portion of Project Site. Remediated area to right hand side of photo. Approx. extent of early works area shown with broken line (Drone photography 14 January 2021, view from west)

Baseline data about the project site has been described in detail in the EIS accompanying the original development application for the SSD 9227 including but not limited to the following:

- The site is situated in a region typically characterised as gently undulating with relatively uniform ground surface generally falling to the north and north west towards Bonds Creek and Kemps Creek at angles typically ranging from 2 to 6 degrees. Within the site, the northern portion of the site is approximately level with a slight dip to the north at angles of less than 2 degrees. Ground surface on the southern portion generally slopes towards a depression along western boundary at angles of between 3 and 4 degrees. (source: GeoEnviro Consultancy Geotechnical and Salinity Investigation dated May 2019)
- The soils consists of highly plastic and moderately reactive subsoils with low permeability. Borehole investigation
  revealed the site to be generally underlain by topsoil overlying very stiff to hard natural Silty Clay with
  shale/siltstone bedrock at depths ranging from 0.9m to 3.0m, therefore construction of basement will require rock
  excavation. Depending on the staging for the proposed development, rock excavation may require vibration
  monitoring. (source: GeoEnviro Consultancy Geotechnical and Salinity Investigation dated May 2019)
- The natural soil below about 1 metre comprised Slightly Saline to Moderately Saline- considered to be Class 2 subsurface soils per AS 3600- 2018 "Concrete". (source: GeoEnviro Consultancy Geotechnical and Salinity Investigation dated May 2019) Consulting engineers martens & Associates have prepared a salinity plan for earthworks to be carried out as a part of this Plan.
- The site has biodiversity certification. The development consent permit clearing of all trees on the school site.
- The land to be developed for school purposes is specifically zoned for the purposes of a school ie. zoned SP2 (Educational Establishments). The SP2 zone has no stipulated building height or Floor Space Ratio (FSR) limits.
- The area to be developed is flood-free.

- A contamination report has found that the site was contaminated in part. Between November 2020 and April 2021 those parts of the site identified as being contaminated in the GeoEnviro Consultancy contamination report (source: GeoEnviro Consultancy Remediation Action Plan dated May 2019) have been remediated by Mackellar Excavations, accompanied by details of the contaminated materials removed from the site as well as details of the fill imported into the site.
- The site is not bushfire prone land.
- Sydney Water will be constructing a sewer line across the site fronting Pluto Avenue near the corner of Byron Road. Once constructed, the approved Primary School will be served by this sewer line.
- Reflecting the accelerated staging of the project, the substation approved near Road 2 will be relocated to an alternate location, close to the new Primary School.
- Dilapidation reports have been prepared for surrounding public infrastructure (Martens & Associates) and for private infrastructure (Lloyds). These reports have already been provided to the Department's Planning Portal.
- The engineering certification of the flood planning level and operational stormwater management system, prepared by consulting engineers Martens & Associates forms a part of the cc for Stage 1 of the works, approved by the PCA Accredited Building Certifiers. Further details of the stormwater system, including sediment and erosion control works, is included in the engineering drawings and technical notes accompanying the Stage 1 works program.

#### 2.1 Current State of Site After Early Works

The below photos show the current state of the site following the Early Works Package undertaken by Lloyd Group.

Scope of works comprised work preparatory to the construction of buildings on the Amity College Leppington school site; and included the following:

- Clearing of vegetation on the site
- Re-Shaping the site, bulk Earthworks
- Construction of Sediment and erosion control devices and stormwater drainage measures.
- Excavation work including Primary School basement car park area
- Creation of stockpiles and importation of approved fill to the site.



#### 2.2 Initial Contamination History and Remediation Works

Throughout Lloyd group's Early Works package, Asbestos Contaminated Material (ACM) was discovered on site. Throughout this process, ENRS were engaged as a hygienist to review the materials stockpiled on site and provide the relevant documentation to manage and dispose of the material properly. **Section 5.4** goes into detail outlining the how this material was assessed and removed from site; including markups, reports and sign-offs.

#### 2.3 Independent Auditor

As a requirement of the Conditions of the SSDC, proposed independent auditors must be agreed in writing by the Planning Secretary prior to the preparation of an Independent Audit Program or commencement of an Independent Audit (Condition 32).

This site is subject to any Independent Environmental Audit an any Statutory Site Audit as required by any relevant Conditions in the SSDC.

These Conditions include but are not limited to:

- Condition D33: Independent Audits of the development must be conducted and carried out in accordance with the Independent Audit Post Approval Requirements.
- Condition D34: The Planning Secretary may require the initial and subsequent Independent Audits to be undertaken at different times to those specified above, upon giving at least 4 week's notice to the applicant of the date or timing upon which the audit must be commenced.
- Condition D35: In accordance with the specific requirements in the Independent Audit Post Approval requirements, the Applicant must:
  - (a) review and respond to each Independent Audit Report prepared under condition D33 of this consent;
  - $\circ$   $\,$  (b) submit the response to the Planning Secretary and the Certifier; and
  - (c) make each Independent Audit Report and response to it publicly available within 60 days after submission to the Planning Secretary.
- Condition D36: Independent Audit Reports and the Applicant's response to audit findings must be submitted to the Planning Secretary within 2 months of undertaking the independent audit site inspection as outlined in the Independent Audit Post Approval Requirements, unless otherwise agreed by the Planning Secretary.
- Condition C37: Notwithstanding the requirements of the Independent Audit Post Approval Requirements, the Planning Secretary may approve a request for ongoing independent operational audits to be ceased, where it has been demonstrated to the Planning Secretary's satisfaction that an audit has demonstrated operational compliance.

#### 3. Regulatory Approvals & Contact Details

#### 3.1. Overview

Lloyd will conform with the construction requirements set down in the Development Consent for SSD 9227 and Stage 1 tender package, and in particular relating to:

- Site notices.
- Operation of plant and equipment.
- Construction hours.
- Implementation of management plans.
- No obstruction of public roads.
- Any relevant audit.
- Survey information provided.
- Unexpected finds protocols.

#### 3.2. Pre-construction Investigations

It is a requirement that prior to construction works being undertaken on site, the following investigations will be undertaken to identify risks, and to mitigate and control impacts arising from the works:

- Existing condition and dilapidation survey of roads, light poles, and other government infrastructure. These dilapidation reports have been prepared, by Martens & Associates (public infrastructure) and by Lloyd (for private infrastructure).
- Infrastructure investigations to locate existing services. Prior to commencing any works, Lloyd will carry out a "dial before you dig" for a services search. Arrangements will then be made for all services to be physically located, identified, and clearly marked within the works area prior to the commencement of any work. Lloyd shall be responsible for the repair of any damage caused to such services during the works.
- Obtain approvals and permits, discussed below.

#### **3.3.** Permits and Approvals

Regarding the latter dot point above, various approvals and permits must be obtained including but not limited to the following:

- Construction Certificate: A separate valid Construction Certificate has been issued for work associated with the Stage 1 works.
- Notice to be given to Camden Council at least two (2) days prior to works commencing in accordance with Clause 104 of the EP&A Regulation 2000, the notice to include details relating to: the nature of the works to be undertaken; contact details; address of the land; details of the cc issued and relevant statement by the PCA; and the date on which the works will commence.

#### 3.4. Signage

A sign is to be erected and maintained in a prominent position on the site in accordance with Clause 98A(2) of the *Environmental Planning and Assessment Regulation 2000*, as outlined in Development Consent condition D1 which states as follows:

"D1.A site notice(s):

(a) must be prominently displayed at the boundaries of the site during construction for the purposes of informing the public of project details including, but not limited to the details of the Builder, Certifier and Structural Engineer is to satisfy the following requirements;

(b) minimum dimensions of the notice must measure 841mm x 594mm (A1) with any text on the notice to be a minimum of 30-point type size;

(c) the notice is to be durable and weatherproof and is to be displayed throughout the works period;

(d) the approved hours of work, the name of the site/ project manager, the responsible managing company (if any), its address and 24-hour contact phone number for any inquiries, including construction/ noise complaint must be displayed on the site notice; and

(e) the notice(s) is to be mounted at eye level on the perimeter hoardings/fencing and is to state that unauthorised entry to the site is not permitted."

On the same signage a complaint contact number will be displayed at the construction site entrances, enabling complainants to contact the Head Contractor in a prompt manner. Lloyd will appoint a contact officer who register, address and respond to any complaints received during each stage of construction of the school.

The Site Manager will notify the Project Manager immediately of any safety notices/instructions served by a statutory authority. Any notice served by a statutory authority is included in the next Project Report.

#### 4. Operation and Responsibilities

#### 4.1. Earthworks

All works undertaken must be in accordance with the issued development consent for SSD 9227, including all reports and plans accompanying the consent, as well as plans and technical prepared by Martens & Associates, consulting engineers and Gran Associates and all other plans and guidelines forming a part of the Stage 1 works tender package/specifications.

A pre-construction meeting is to be held between representatives of Amity College, the project engineer, Lloyd, and all other relevant parties to discuss earthworks and excavation and related requirements.

Site clearance and earthworks will include but not be limited to the following:

- Excavation and earthworks. Includes excavation for basement car park. Any excavation and/or backfilling associated
  with the development shall be executed safely and in accordance with appropriate professional standards, with any
  excavation properly guarded and protected to prevent such work being dangerous to life or property. Includes
  earthworks associated with provision for drainage facilities, as well as for sediment and erosion control measures.
- Remediation of any unexpected finds contamination.
- Importation of fill.

Lloyd will ensure that:

- All earthworks are to be undertaken in accordance with THE GUIDELINES FOR EARTHWORKS FOR COMMERCIAL AND RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENTS AS 3798.
- All excavation works comply with the NSW Work Cover *Code of Practice: Excavation 2000.* Earthworks shall include the excavation, placing and compaction of cut materials to the levels and profiles as detailed on the bulk earthworks plans prepared by consulting engineers Martens & Associates forming a part of the Stage 1 works tender package. project plans and specifications are to be read in conjunction with all geotechnical engineering advice regarding the site. Insite density testing is required in accordance with Martens & Associates engineering requirements. All earthworks are to be reinstated in accordance with Martens & Associates engineering requirements.
- Works areas shall be stripped of pavements, vegetation (including root affected soils) and other deleterious material. Topsoil is to be stockpiled on site for re-use. Stockpiles are to be in accordance with the soil erosion and sediment control plan prepared by Martens & Associates, consulting engineers accompanying the Stage 1 works tender package.
- Temporary sedimentation and erosion controls are to be constructed prior to commencement of any work to
  eliminate the discharge of sediment from the site. All works must be performed in accordance with the Erosion and
  Sediment Control Plan prepared by Martens & Associates, consulting engineers, accompanying the Stage 1 works
  tender package.
- Excavation work to account for salinity potential.
- All hollow-bearing and active nest trees removed from the site must to be inspected prior to removal. A qualified ecologist or wildlife carer must be present throughout vegetation clearing activities to relocate fauna or take fauna into care where appropriate (i.e. juvenile or nocturnal fauna). Street trees must not be trimmed or removed unless it forms a part of this development consent or prior written approval from Council is obtained or is required in an emergency to avoid the loss of life or damage to property.
- Soils permitted to be imported into the site must comply with the requirements of consent condition D24, namely: that only VENM, ENM, or other material approved in writing by EPA is brought onto the site; to keep accurate records of the volume and type of fill to be used; and to make these records available to the Certifier upon request. A log book consisting of volumes, origin and classification of the fill material imported onto the site shall be maintained to record the daily truck loads of fill brought to the site. This log book shall be made available for perusal



to the PCA or relevant government agency upon request.

 Prior to the commencement of construction Lloyd will implement the unexpected finds protocol for contamination as set down in Section 10 of the REMEDIATION ACTION PLAN entitled *REMEDIATION ACTION PLAN – PROPOSED NEW AMITY COLLEGE CAMPUS, LOT 1 DP 525996 NO 85 BYRON ROAD AND LOT 2 DP 525996 NO 63 INGLEBURN ROAD LEPPINGTON NSW* prepared by GeoEnviro Consultancy dated 30 May 2019. 30/5/2019.

#### 4.2. Hours of Operation

The hours of operation on site will be as per the prescribed hours outlined by the Amity College Development Consent (SSD 9227), Section D, Clause 5, dated 14/07/2020, as set out in the following.

Except with the written consent of the responsible authority, demolition or construction works will only be carried out between 7.00am & 6.00pm from Monday to Friday (excluding public holidays) and 8.00am to 1.00pm on Saturdays. No works will be carried out on Sundays or public holidays without a specific permit.

In accordance with the Amity College Development Consent (SSD 9227), condition D6 construction activities may be undertaken outside of the above hours if required:

- a) by the Police or a public authority for the delivery of vehicles, plant or materials; or
- b) in an emergency to avoid the loss of life, damage to property or to prevent environmental harm; or
- c) where a variation is approved in advance in writing by the Planning Secretary or nominee if appropriate justification is provided for the works.

Where out of hours works are required, permits shall be sought in accordance with the requirements of Camden City Council. It is anticipated that permits shall only be required sporadically for items such as service shutdowns and connections, transport, using canes, of large plant items, delivery & removal of piling rigs, or for other reasons that we may not be able to anticipate at this stage.

In accordance with the Amity College Development Consent (SSD 9227), condition D7, notification of such construction activities as referenced above must be given to affected residents before undertaking the activities or as soon as is practical afterwards.

In accordance with the Amity College Development Consent (SSD 9227), condition D8, rock breaking, rock hammering, sheet piling, pile driving and similar activities will only be carried out between the following hours:

- a) 9:00am to 12:00pm (noon), Monday to Friday;
- b) 2:00pm to 5:00pm Monday to Friday; and
- c) 9:00am to 12:00pm (noon), Saturday.

#### 4.3. Responsibilities

Personnel are provided with a Position Description upon commencement with the Organisation. The following responsibilities apply at an Organisation level. Project specific responsibilities are outlined in each Safety Plan developed for the project. The delegation of authority is related to the Organisational Chart.

#### GREEN = Primary Responsible Person

YELLOW = Secondary Responsible Person

**ORANGE** = Supporting Responsible Person

RESPONSIBILITIES	Director	General Manager	Construction Manager	РМ	SM	HSEQ Manager	HSEQ Coordinator
Responsibility to ensure compliance to environmental processes in this plan							
Preparing, reviewing & maintaining the Environmental Management Plan including - establishment and upkeep of objectives and targets / aspect and impact register / document control / records							
Managing the Implementation of site environmental Control measures							
Coordinate Communications with Interested parties, including complaints							
Train employees & Communicate importance of environmental management i.e. Induction							
Communicate with subcontractors on Environmental expectations							
Comply with applicable regulatory requirements							
Maintain equipment/tools/spill kit to control environmental impact							
Coordinate emergency response efforts							
Manage Environmental Incidents & Reporting Requirements							
Internal Inspections							

RESPONSIBILITIES	HSEQ Administrator	CA	EMP	s/c
Responsibility to ensure compliance to environmental processes in this plan				
Preparing, reviewing & maintaining the Environmental Management Plan including - establishment and upkeep of objectives and targets / aspect and impact register / document control / records				
Managing the Implementation of site environmental Control measures				
Coordinate Communications with Interested parties, including complaints				
Train employees & Communicate importance of environmental management i.e. Induction				
Communicate with subcontractors on Environmental expectations				
Comply with applicable regulatory requirements				
Maintain equipment/tools/spill kit to control environmental impact				
Coordinate emergency response efforts				
Manage Environmental Incidents & Reporting Requirements				
Internal Inspections				

#### 4.4. Site Offices and Amenities

All site facilities including lunchrooms, change, first aid & toilets will be located within the site boundary. Initial site setup up will consist of portable sheds, accommodating a site office, amenities for the workers, First Aid room etc. Refer to the Traffic Control Plan, prepared by Lloyd Group, for details including locations of these facilities.

All site offices and amenities will be positioned according to the relevant stage of the school development. They shall be neat, clean, well-constructed and well maintained at all times, as well as being in compliance with applicable statutory requirements and industrial agreements. It is proposed to provide the following site offices and amenities on the project site over the life of the school project:

- Male and Female Toilet facilities for the workers on-site
- Administration office, with a separate meeting room for carrying out site meetings.
- Separate area set aside for changing facilities, first aid and OH&S facilities.
- External lighting in compliance with AS 4282-2019 *Control of the obtrusive effects of outdoor lighting* for site entry and site accommodation only. Refer to the diagram below for more information.
- As required by condition C31, sufficient site parking facilities will be provided on-site, including heavy vehicles and for site personnel, to ensure that heavy construction vehicles or site personnel associated with the development does not park on public and residential streets or utilise nearby public parking facilities. An existing site parking area was established for the Early Works package and will be expanded as required to accommodate for number of workers on site.



ORGANISATION	CONTACT DETAILS			
Fire / Police / Ambulance	Emergency hotline	000		
Camden Council	<u>Authorisations,</u> notices	(02) 4654 7777		
NSW - Environmental Protection Authority	Info and pollution	131 555		
Sydney Water	Authorisations, notices	132092 (from NSW) or 1300 143 734 (from interstate)		

#### 4.5. Flora and Fauna Management

In accordance with the Amity College Development Consent, condition C41, prior to commencement of works for the relevant construction stage, a survey plan to identify whether tree hollows or active nests are present, must be prepared.

Narla Environmental were engaged as part of the Early Works package to assess tree hollows or active nests prior to site clearance. As a result, three (2) nest boxes were installed to compensate the loss of three (3) hollows reported in the post clearing report (Narla 2021) in line with C32 of the Development Consent

Nest Box Id	Location		Height	Tree Species	Box type	Orientation
	Latitude	Longitude				
NB303	-33.966103	150.807201	5m	Eucalyptus tereticornis	Microbat Double Chamber	West
NB422	-33.966209	150.807606	10m	Eucalyptus tereticornis	Glider Box	North
NB374	-33.966216	150.807232	7m	Eucalyptus tereticornis	Small Parrot Box	Northeast

Details of the installed Nest Boxes are provided in the below table:

If any further tree hollows and/or active nests are present, a nest box installation and active nest relocation plan must be prepared by a suitably qualified person. In accordance with the Amity College Development Consent, condition D18, for the duration of the construction works:

- a) Street trees must not be trimmed or removed unless it forms a part of this development consent or prior written approval from Council is obtained or is required in an emergency to avoid the loss of life or damage to property;
- b) All street trees immediately adjacent to the approved disturbance area must be protected at all times during construction in accordance with Council's tree protection requirements. Any street tree, which is damaged or removed during construction due to an emergency, must be replaced, to the satisfaction of Council;
- c) all trees on the site that are not approved for removal must be suitably protected during construction as per the recommendations of the Arboricultural Impact Assessment, version 4, dated 17/7/2019 prepared by Lauranco; and
- d) if access to the area within any protective barrier is required during the works, it must be carried out under the supervision of a qualified arborist. Alternative tree protection measures must be installed, as required. The removal of tree protection measures, following completion of the works, must be carried out under the supervision of a qualified arborist and must avoid both direct mechanical injury to the structure of the tree and soil compaction within the canopy or the limit of the former protective fencing, whichever is the greater.

In accordance with the Amity College Development Consent, condition D,19, all hollow-bearing and active nest trees removed from the site must to be inspected prior to removal. Measures must be taken to ensure that fauna inhabiting tree hollows or active nests are treated humanely and relocated before development activities commence, consistent with the National Parks and Wildlife Act 1974. A qualified ecologist or wildlife carer must be present throughout vegetation clearing activities to relocate fauna or take fauna into care where appropriate (i.e. juvenile or nocturnal fauna).

The following protocols will also be applied on site:

- Plans and construction procedures shall clearly outline limit of works and flora/fauna exclusion areas.
- All work areas shall be located within the area of contract.
- Movement of vehicles and plant shall be restricted to designated access corridors and work areas.

#### 4.6. Environmental and Safety Controls

Environmental and safety controls will need to be established on the school site prior to work being undertaken. These will include, but not be limited to the following:

- Security measures (fencing and gate access). Appropriate signage will be placed on areas at the entrance to each (progressive) work zone, indicating the works area and restricted access to the site. Security fencing is already in place, surrounding the entire work area.
- Occupational health and safety measures (personal protective equipment, first aid supplies, signage and barriers if needed). All works will be undertaken in accordance with the requirements of Work Cover NSW as well as the relevant standards and codes of practice to ensure the safety of personnel on and around the site. It will be the Lloyd Group's responsibility to ensure that work, health and safety (WHS) practices are implemented and revised where necessary to reduce the occurrence and impact of workplace accidents and incidents. WHS monitoring and review operations will be programmed on a daily basis, to minimise workplace incidents and accidents. WHS issues shall be continually monitored. Consultation with employees, subcontractors and visitors as required will also be required to ensure WHS accidents and incidents are kept to a minimum.
- Personal protective equipment to be provided to all workers on the site.
- Environmental management measures are to be put into place.
- Toilet facilities shall be provided on the site.
- Daily monitoring of work site by Lloyd Group personnel.
- Site induction. Anyone entering that part of the school site where construction activities are being undertaken will be required to undergo a site induction. The induction will include parking and access, deliveries, emergency procedures, WHS and standard environmental requirements. The induction will cover aspects relating to safety and amenity; including access, emergency evacuation procedures, location of first aid facilities, location of amenities, site hours, material handling, noise and dust policies and environmental management. Lloyd Group is required to provide adequate training of its employees, subcontractors and site visitors including mandatory site inductions. The site induction should make all parties aware of their site responsibilities.
- All workplace amenities, offices, workshops, vehicles, plant and storage facilities including those of contractors will have a suitable type and number of fire extinguishers available for use in the event of a fire. AS2444 provides details on the various extinguishers available, use and effectiveness for various types of fire. All bulk storage of fuels, oils or other products should be in accordance with the relevant Australian standard. Signage will be located at all extinguisher locations on site to indicate the extinguisher type and suitability for the fuels, oils or other products stored on site.

#### 4.7. Environmental Authority Notification & Site Visits

Contact with the relevant government agency should be conducted via the Site Manager and/or HSEQ Manager. Depending on the significance of the issue, the Project Manager will determine whether the notification of Organisation Legal Counsel or other Organisation senior management is required.

Communication from the relevant government agency must be documented (as a minimum) in the site diary. It is recognised that depending on the nature of the communication, other supporting documentation may need to be compiled. In the event that a representative (Officer) of the relevant government agency representative arrives on site, the following procedure should be followed:

- The Officer should be taken to the Site Office to meet the Site Manager or his representative. Before any site inspection, the purpose of the government agency's visit should be determined.
- Particular care must be taken to ensure that visitors are signed in and inducted to an appropriate standard depending on the nature of their visit.

- Under legislation, officers of the EPA or Council have the right to enter any site for the purposes of evaluating the nature and extent of potential pollution.
- The Officer should be escorted around the site under the full-time supervision of the Site Manager or a suitable Organisation representative.
- Before the Officer leaves the site, the Site Manager should obtain a debriefing from the Officer to identify the findings of the inspection.

Where relevant to environmental issues on site, contact details for basic authorities/emergency services can be found in the below table:

ORGANISATION	CONTACT DETAILS			
Fire / Police / Ambulance	Emergency hotline	000		
Camden Council	Authorisations, notices	(02) 4654 7777		
NSW - Environmental Protection Authority	Info and pollution	131 555		
Sydney Water	Authorisations, notices	132092 (from NSW) or 1300 143 734 (from interstate)		

#### 4.8. Quality Assurance and Occupational Health & Safety

Lloyd Group will implement a quality assurance and occupational health and safety protocols, as summarised below.

Lloyd Group will maintain a quality assurance system which complies with the requirements of AS 9001 (2000) and AUS-SPEC COC & COS. The protocols in this system include but are not limited to the following. Further details are to be found in the technical notes prepared by Martens & Associates forming a part of the tender documents and accompanying this Plan- refer **Section 12 Appendix A** for details.

- The quality system will include the keeping of all records relating to all aspects of the Stage 1 works.
- At the completion of each stage of the Stage 1 works, Lloyd Group will certify that the works have been undertaken in accordance with the plans and technical notes prepared by consulting engineers Martens & Associates, and any other instructions or drawings issued during the course of the contract works.
- Material safety data sheets to be kept on site at all times, and be readily accessible to personnel at all times. All material to be transported, stored, imported, used or disposed of shall be in accordance with the material safety data sheets.
- The work site and surrounds are to be kept in a clean and tidy condition at all times. Litter and rubbish shall be placed in containers and removed from the site. A waste storage container is to be provided at the commencement of the building work.
- The engineering drawings prepared by consulting engineers Martens & Associates shall be read in conjunction with all other drawings, specifications and written instructions that may be issued during the course of the contract. Lloyd Group shall ensure that they have the latest drawing revision prior to commencing any works. All set out dimensions shall be verified by the contractor on site before work commences. Drawings shall not be scaled for dimensions. All levels are in metres and all dimensions are in metres unless noted otherwise.

#### 4.9. Risk Management

Risk Management is key to delivering the Amity College Stage 1 works successfully. By planning prior to works commence and identifying risks early we can ensure that the best possible outcome is secured. Our risk register for the project is located in **Section 13 Appendix B** 

#### 5. Unexpected Finds Protocols

#### 5.1. Unexpected Finds Protocol – Contamination

Previous investigations on the project site have identified the potential presence of contaminated fill materials in the surface and sub-surface. Those parts of the site so affected have been remediated. A Remediation Action Plan (RAP), which sets sets out the remediation strategy for the site, has been prepared.

The unexpected finds and site conditions that may arise at the site include:

- Finding contamination in areas not previously surveyed or the uncovering of currently unknown types of contamination.
- The uncovering of greater amounts of ground contamination than currently identified.
- The uncovering of additional Asbestos containing materials.
- The uncovering of any suspect or unacceptable odour containing materials. This material is typically identified by unusual staining, odour, discolouration or inclusions such as building rubble, asbestos, ash material, etc

Should any of the above be encountered during any stage of works (including earthworks, site preparation or construction works, etc.), such works shall cease immediately until a qualified environmental specialist has be contacted and conducted a thorough assessment. Refer to step by step guide below for details. The following steps will apply.

Any unexpected finds that may be identified as a result of site activity will be actioned in accordance with the Unexpected Finds Protocol prepared by GeoEnviro Consultancy Pty Ltd, as well as in accordance with the original Construction Management Plan (CMP) prepared by Outline Planning Consultants Pty Ltd, Preliminary Construction Management - Plan Proposed Primary & Secondary School SSD 9227, dated July 2019, where modified by the consent.

Upon notification of the unexpected find/s, Lloyd Group will:

- a) Stop work and notify the site manager/HSE coordinator as soon as practically possible.
- b) Ensure the find is not further disturbed.
- c) Ensure all personnel are removed from the area with the exception of personnel required to isolate or make safe the area.
- d) Establish an "unexpected find" isolation zone as required to prevent or minimise the risks for site personnel, members of the public, fauna or flora. Persons are not to expose themselves to further risk whilst establishing isolation zone.
- e) Assess the requirement to evacuate areas or the entire site.
- f) Co-ordinate site or area evacuation as assessed. It is preferrable to evacuate the whole site if there is any doubt as to the safety of personnel or the environment.
- g) As soon as the safety of personnel, environment & the site is secured, the Site Manager/Supervisor should notify their relevant HSE Manager, Project Manager & Construction Manager.

h) As soon as practically possible, record the events associated with the unexpected find.
 In accordance with the Unexpected Finds Protocol, prepared by GeoEnviro Consultancy Pty Ltd, the Project
 Manager/HSE Manager, in consultation with the relevant General Manager, will notify regulatory authorities as required. The Project Manager/HSE Manager will also ensure that the find is reported to the Principal.

#### In the case of unexploded ordnance:

- a) Do not touch or disturb;
- b) Contact Police immediately.

#### In the case of unexpected services, which may include power, gas or fuel:

- a) Do not touch or further disturb.
- b) The area must be immediately designated a non-smoking and "no naked flames" area.
- c) All nearby machinery should be turned off.
- d) Contact relevant governing authority.
- e) Contact appropriate trade supervisor.

In the case of unexpected finds of material containing asbestos, including Products made from asbestos cement not only include fibro sheeting (flat and corrugated), but items such as water, drainage and flue pipes, roofing shingles and gutters etc.:

- a) Do not touch or further disturb.
- b) Isolate area (10 metre isolation zone required for asbestos).
- c) Contact hygienist. Implement hygienist's recommendations.
- d) If persons have been exposed arrange medical advice/consultation i.e. possible asbestos fibre exposure will require lung function test & chest x-ray. Note: This applies more specifically to friable type asbestos rather than non friable asbestos containing material however if any doubt exists treat as friable.
- e) Obtain clearance from hygienist prior to re-entering area.

Before re-commencing works in or near the source of the unexpected find the following actions will be followed:

- a) Approval will be required from the contamination consultant to allow for the re-commencement of works or part thereof.
- b) The extent of the unexpected find must be delineated.
- c) Review the need, if any, to amend or update the Remediation Action Plan as necessary to include the additional remediation and validation of the unexpected find, and to update if required.

All measures will be acted upon in accordance with the Remediation Action Plan entitled *Remediation Action Plan – Proposed New Amity College Campus, Lot 1 DP 525996 No 85 Byron Road and Lot 2 DP 525996 No 63 Ingleburn Road Leppington NSW,* prepared by GeoEnviro Consultancy and dated 30 May 2019.

#### 5.2. Unexpected Finds Protocol – Aboriginal Heritage

In accordance with the Amity College Development Consent (SSD 9227), condition D26, in the event that surface disturbance identifies a new Aboriginal object, all works must halt in the immediate area to prevent any further impacts to the object(s).

A suitably qualified archaeologist and a registered Aboriginal representatives must be contacted to determine the significance of the objects.

The site is to be registered in the Aboriginal Heritage Information Management System (AHIMS) which is managed by EES Group and the management outcome for the site included in the information provided to AHIMS. The Applicant must consult with the Aboriginal community representatives, the archaeologists and EES Group to develop and implement management strategies for all objects/sites. Works shall only recommence with the written approval of EES Group.

#### 5.3. Unexpected Finds Protocol – Historic Heritage

In accordance with the Amity College Development Consent (SSD 9227), condition D27, if any unexpected archaeological relics are uncovered during the work, then all works must cease immediately in that area and the Heritage NSW contacted. Depending on the possible significance of the relics, an archaeological assessment and management strategy may be required before further works can continue in that area. Works may only recommence with the written approval of the Heritage NSW.

#### 5.4. Records of unexpected Finds

Throughout the early works several unexpected finds were discovered on site. The below timeline of events outlines the nature of each of these finds and the actions that were undertaken by Lloyd group, relevant consultants and contractors in collaboration with the Principal.

#### Appendix 5.4 A

Initial suspected areas provided by client showing stockpile, borehole and sampling locations.

#### Appendix 5.4 B

3/08/2021 – Notice of Delay 003 – Topsoil Asbestos Removal. Various site finds notified to Principal

#### Appendix 5.4 C

3/08/2021 – Email accompanying Notice of Delay 003. ACM fragments encountered while conducting site strip Outlines Lloyd group's actions in response to the find and also includes GeoEnviro Consultancy's Unexpected Finds protocol and Initial survey of stockpiled materials

#### Appendix 5.4 D

The encountered ACM tested (positive) and wrapped in plastic and clearing continues throughout the site

ENRS is engaged as a hygienist to review the materials stockpiled on site. ENRS work in conjunction with the civil contractor and site auditor to complete the testing of stockpiles Condition. Report and lab analysis attached

25/08/2021 - Regarding Lloyd email :RE: ENRS1990 stockpile results - Lloyd provides results of the negative ACM content of the stockpiles

27/08/2021 - Auditor responds with queries, ENRS closes majority of queries

#### Appendix 5.4 G

14/10/2021 - Lloyd email RE: ENRS1990 stockpile results - closes final auditor queries and wrapped ACM is approved to be disposed from site by auditor email RE: ENRS1990 stockpile results received 15/10/2021. Tip dockets for asbestos also provided.





UNEXPECTED FINDS LLOYD INITIAL NOD

Tuesday 3<sup>rd</sup> August 2021

Attention: Mr Peter Reed Gran Associates Australia Level 1, 597 Darling Street Rozelle NSW 2039

#### 1442 – Amity College Early Works Notice of Delay 003 – Topsoil Asbestos Removal

Dear Peter,

Lloyd Group Pty Ltd hereby provide a Notice of Delay re email sent to Peter Reed by Joseph Elley 12:09pm 03/08/21 '*Amity College Leppington - Asbestos Topsoil*'.

#### Particulars;

- 1. During the process of topsoil scrapping and stockpiling for removal on site at Amity College Leppington Early Works, fragments of asbestos have been found (see below mark up of area and supporting photos). This area will not be touched and closed off until the hygienist is present on site and can advise removal strategies, etc which will be relayed onto the client for review and approval. This does affect the area in which is required to meet our programme target completion deadlines and dates, until the area can be cleared, and continuation of works can be carried out.
- 2. We anticipate that this closure will consequently delay *Completion* due to critical path activities being both directly and indirectly affected by the closure.

Lloyd Group will advise the client if any other asbestos if found in other areas, immediately.

Regards,

Nicholas Messiou Project Coordinator Lloyd Group
#### **Nick Messiou**

From:	Joseph Elley
Sent:	Tuesday, 3 August 2021 12:09 PM
То:	Peter Reed
Cc:	Matthew Licuria; Marcus Smith; Kane Sabo; Vincent Phuong; Nick Messiou; Scott Willoughby
Subject:	Amity College Leppington - Asbestos Topsoil
Attachments:	03082021103944-0001.pdf; IMG_3370.JPG; IMG_3371.JPG; IMG_3372.JPG
Importance:	High

Hi Peter,

As discussed, we've encountered ACM fragments while conducting the site strip.

The area is shown in the attached marked up PDF and the fragments and sheets are shown in the images attached.

Per the RAP report for the project provided by GeoEnviro we will follow the unexpected finds protocol Appendix B.

We can through visual inspection confirm:

- The area as been isolated
- There is no requirement for evacuation as the materials found appear to be bonded (testing has been booked in ETA Thursday)
- We have notified by way of this email our Senior Management and Safety representative

We will provide a notification of delay COB once we have collated the information

We will once we receive advice from the hygienist provide a clearance method to yourself for review and approval

We will provide further notification if the situation on site changes



### GeoEnviro Consultancy Pty Ltd

Unit 5, 39-41 Fourth Avenue, Blacktown, NSW 2148, Australia PO Box 1543, Macquarie Centre, North Ryde, NSW 2113 ABV 62 004 204 762 Tel : (02) 9679 8733 Fax : (02) 9679 8744

## UNEXPECTED FINDS LLOYD INITIAL NOD

#### UNEXPECTED FINDS PROTOCOL

TTEM	REQUIREMENTS					
DEFINITION	An unexpected find may be identified as a result of site activity, for example through earthworks and movement of plant on site including preparatory site works.					
SITE SUPERVISOR	On being notified of an Unexpected Find, the Principal Contractor must:					
	<ul> <li>Stap work &amp; notify the site manager115E coordinator as soon as practically possible.</li> </ul>					
	Ensure the find is not further disturbed.					
	<ul> <li>Ensure all personnel are removed from the area with the exception of personnel required to isolate or make safe the area.</li> </ul>					
	<ul> <li>Establish an "unexpected find" isolation zone as required to present or minimise exposure risks for site personnel, members of the public, fauna or flam. Note: Persons are not to expose themselves to further risk whilst establishing isolation zone.</li> </ul>					
	<ul> <li>Assess the requirement to evocuate areas or the entire site.</li> </ul>					
	<ul> <li>Co-ordinate site or area evacuation as assessed. Note: It is preferable to evacuate the whole site if there is any doubt as to the safety of personnel or the environment.</li> </ul>					
	<ul> <li>As soon as the safety of personnel, environment &amp; the site is secured the Site Manager/Supervisor should notify their relevant ISE Manager, Project Manager &amp; Construction Manager.</li> </ul>					
	<ul> <li>As soon as practically possible record the events associated with the unexpected find.</li> </ul>					
PROJECT MANAGER	The Project Manager and/or IESE Manager in consultation with the relevant General Manager notify regulatory authorities as required.					
	Establish a risk based process for managing clearance of the unexpected find & establishing incident investigation.					
	The Project Manager or HSE Manager must also ensure that the find is reported to the Principal.					
	This may be by verbal communication.					
UNEXPLODED	Do not touch ar disturb.					
ORDNANCE	Contact Police immediately.					
UNEXPECTED	This may include power, gas or feel.					
SERVICES	Do not touch or further disturb.					
(LIVE OR DISUSED)	<ul> <li>The area must be immediately designated a non-smoking and "no maked flames" area.</li> </ul>					
	<ul> <li>All nearby machinery should be turned off.</li> </ul>					
	<ul> <li>Contact relevant governing authority.</li> </ul>					
	Centact appropriate trade supervisor.					

ITEM	REQUIREMENTS
HEMAN REMAINS	<ul> <li>Do not touch or disturb.</li> <li>Contact Police immediately.</li> <li>Please note that aboviginal burial objects (such as back colline) are defined by legislation as human remains.</li> </ul>
HERITAGE ITEMS	Do not touch or distuits.     Contact Heritage Office or relevant State or Local Government Authority.
OBJECTS OF POSSIBLE CULTURAL SIGNIFICANCE	De not touch or disturb. Contact Department of Indigenous Affairs or relevant State or Local Government Authority.
UNEXPECTED FIND PROCESS	
	Site Supervisor/Manager  Establish Unexpected Find isolation zone as required  Notify Project Manager/ Construction Manager and HSE Managers
	Project Manager/Construction Manager     In consultation with State General Manager/HSE Manager notify relevant authority (where required)     Complete Incident Register in site diary     Develoe, document and implement process to clear find

#### UNEXPECTED FINDS LLOYD INITIAL NOD

REGARDS,

JOSEPH ELLEY PROJECT MANAGER



#### UNEXPECTED FINDS LLOYD INITIAL NOD

EBURN ROAD

CON	ISTRU	JCTIO	N CE	RTIFIC	ATE
veers	DRAWING TITLE	BULK EARTH			
12,071510	PROJECT NO. P18064.93	PLANEET NO.	RELEASE NO.	PS06-C300	REVISION D







UNEXPECTED FINDS LLOYD INITIAL NOD





KEY	
EXISTING CONTOURS	
PROPOSED CONTOURS	
EARTHWORKS HINGE	
SWALE TYPE 1	$\rightarrow \longrightarrow \longrightarrow \longrightarrow \longrightarrow -$
SWALE TYPE 2	$\longrightarrow \longrightarrow \longrightarrow \longrightarrow \longrightarrow$
INTERFACE	
SITE BOUNDARY	

					7		$\sum_{i=1}^{n}$	,				Ì	(	03.0		
	REV	DESCRIPTION	DATE	DRAWN	DESIGNED	CHECKED	APPRVD	SCALE								
ΡFA	D	MINOR AMENDMENT	24/02/2021	GM	AW/PB	SA	TH	0 5 <del>  -</del>	10	15	20	25	30	35	40	45
0ST(	C	MINOR AMENDMENT	22/02/2021	GM	AW/PB	SA	TH	A1 (A3)	1:500 (1:1	1,000)						MET
R: GM	В	MINOR AMENDMENT	18/02/2021	GM	AW/PB	SA	TH									
USEF	А	INITIAL RELEASE	12/02/2021	GM	AW/PB	SA	TH									
1																
NTED:																
PRIN																



14/08/21 JF INITIAL ISSUE 0 DATE REVISION BY **REVISION DESCRIPTION** 

INITIAL SURFACE LEVELS & STOCKPILES SURVEY AMITY COLLEGE. 85 BYRON ROAD LEPPINGTON NSW 2179



114 Windsor Road Northmead NSW 2152 mobile: 0449 293 663 phone: (02) 9453 0100 email: javier@geomat.com.au

SCALE : 1:400 @ A1 : 1:800 @ A3							
CLIENT: T & I CIVIL							
LEVELS ORIGIN : PM 44296 RL 94.432							
SURV	DRAF	СНК	DATUM : AH	ID CLASS LC			
CA	CA	/2021					
DRAWI	NG:	PROJECT: 2288					
2288 AMITY SURV 210814				REVISION: 0			

POST AND WIRE FENCE

VOLUMES:

NOTES:

- 1 334m<sup>3</sup> / 214m<sup>2</sup> (mulch) 2 274m<sup>3</sup> / 205m<sup>2</sup> (mulch) 3 395m<sup>3</sup> / 301m<sup>2</sup> (soil) 4 855m<sup>3</sup> / 506m<sup>2</sup> (soil) 5 2787m<sup>3</sup> / 1191m<sup>2</sup> (soil)

ROAD CENTRELINE

TOPSOIL STOCKPILES UNDER REVIEW







Lloyd Group

Date of Issue: Project No.: Status 30<sup>th</sup> August 2021 ENRS1990 Rev.2

### SUBJECT: SOIL STOCKPILE ASBESTOS INVESTIGATION (AI) 85 BYRON ROAD, LEPPINGTON

#### **1 INTRODUCTION**

*Environment & Natural Resource Solutions* (ENRS Pty Ltd) were commissioned as independent environmental consultants to conduct an Asbestos Investigation (AI) on soil stockpiles located at 85 Byron Road Leppington, NSW (herein referred to as the Site).

This letter report provides an assessment of potential asbestos in soil in general accordance with the *Guidelines for Consultants Reporting on Contaminated Land* (EPA;2020) and *National Environment Protection (Assessment of Site Contamination) Amendment Measure 2013 (No.1).* 

### 2 **OBJECTIVES**

This aim of this assessment was to assess if the soil stockpiles contain asbestos and consider if the material can be re-used on site.

### 3 SCOPE OF WORK

The scope of work for this assessment was to:

- > Review Site survey plans and aerial imagery to quantify the volume of stockpiled material;
- > Prepare sample plan for stockpile characterisation based on documented volumes;
- Mobilise Licensed Asbestos Assessor (LAA) with experience in NEPM asbestos in soil sampling and contaminated land management;
- > Conduct stockpile walkover and visual inspection for asbestos;
- Oversee test pit investigations, NEPM asbestos in soil sampling, field screening and collection of supplementary jar samples;
- Submit sieved samples to NATA laboratory for asbestos in soil analysis;
- > Place jar samples on hold pending requirements for chemical testing, if required;
- Preparation of a letter report, compile investigation results with comparison against the Site Assessment Criteria (SAC).

#### 4 BACKGROUND

ENRS understand the soil stockpiles comprise materials excavated on Site during early works in preparation of re-development for a school college. The Site was previously subject of a combined Stage 1 and 2 contamination assessment by GeoEnviro Consultancy in 2019 and a Remediation Acton Plan (RAP). The Stage 1-2 report documents the Site has a low risk of



**Environment & Natural Resource Solutions** 

gross chemical contamination and documents areas of asbestos impacted Fill and asbestos in building structures. At the time of this stockpile AI the Site had been scraped, and it is understood the known asbestos areas have been remediated, cleared and validated.

The Site is subject of a Site Audit by Paul Moritz, Douglas Partners. Auditor correspondence notes if the stockpiles are found to contain asbestos, or other contamination, such that they need to be disposed, once they are removed the site surface on which they have been sitting will need to be re-validated before further works.

#### 5 SITE DESCRIPTION

The soil stockpiles subject of this assessment were positioned across the northern central portion of the Site as depicted in **Figure 1**. The stockpiles were surveyed prior to this assessment and were noted to be covered with geotextile fabric:

- Soil Stockpile No.1 395 m<sup>3</sup> (Noted on Survey plan SP ID3);
- Soil Stockpile No.2 855 m<sup>3</sup> (Noted on Survey plan SP ID4); and
- Soil Stockpile No.3 2,787 m<sup>3</sup> (Noted on Survey plan SP ID5).

#### 6 ASSESSMENT CRITERIA

The EPA has endorsed the use of the Health Investigation Levels (HILs) given in the *National Environment Protection (Assessment of Site Contamination) Amendment Measure 2013 (No. 1)* 'Schedule B (1) Guideline on the Investigation Levels for Soil and Groundwater'. The NEPM provide a framework for risk-based assessment of soil and groundwater contamination. Health Screening Levels (HILs) are provided for four (4) land use categories:

#### Table 1: Summary of NEPM Land Use Categories

NEPM	Description of Land Use Categories
HIL A	Residential A with garden/accessible soil also includes children's day care centres, preschools and primary schools.
HIL B	Residential B with minimal opportunities for soil access; includes buildings with fully and permanently paved yard space such as high-rise buildings and apartments.
HIL C	Recreational C includes public open space such as parks, playgrounds, playing fields (e.g. ovals), secondary schools and unpaved footpaths.
HIL D	Commercial/industrial D includes premises such as shops, offices, factories and industrial sites.

Given the Site proposal for the construction of School College this assessment has adopted **Level 'A'** as the Site Assessment Criteria (SAC) for the stockpiled materials

#### 6.1 Asbestos in Soil Criteria

The ASC NEPM (2013) Schedule B2 - Guideline on site characterisation documents Health Screening Levels (HSLs) for asbestos levels in soil adopted from the Western Australian Guidelines for the Assessment Remediation and Management of Asbestos contaminated sites in Western Australia (WA Gov;2009). The Guidelines only apply to asbestos materials in soils,

**Environment & Natural Resource Solutions** 

they do not apply to asbestos or asbestos containing materials present in buildings, structures, functional pipelines etc. The NEPM guidelines define three (3) primary forms of asbestos in soil:

- Asbestos Containing Material (ACM) non-friable matrix material generally observed as stable fragments in soil unless subjected to aggressive disturbance, prolonged saturation or fire;
- Fibrous Asbestos (FA) friable and fibrous material. Friable asbestos materials are those that can be crumbled, pulverised or reduced to powder by hand pressure when dry; and
- Asbestos Fines (AF) sub-7mm material including free fibre. Respirable asbestos fibres are generally greater than five micrometres long and no wider than 3 micrometres.

	Health Screening Level (HSL) (w/w%)				
Form of Asbestos	Residential A <sup>1</sup>	Commercial/ Industrial D <sup>2</sup>			
Bonded ACM	0.01%	0.05%			
FA and AF (friable asbestos)	0.00	)1%			
All forms of asbestos	No visible asbesto	os for surface soil			

#### Table 2: Health Screening Levels for Asbestos in Soil (NEPM 2013)

1. Residential A with garden/accessible soil also includes children's day care centres, preschools and primary schools.

2. Commercial/Industrial D includes premises such as shops, offices, factories and industrial sites.

### 7 SAMPLE METHODOLOGY

#### 7.1 Sample Density

sample density adopted the NEPM Vol3. Schedule B2 Section 7.5.2 as the recognised guideline for stockpile characterisation in NSW, which further references the 95% UCL calculations outlined by the Vic. EPA IWRG702. The adopted sample density was considered suitable supported by field observations and laboratory results which reported minor occurrence of asbestos, and no other visual and olfactory indicators of contamination observed to trigger higher density testing.

#### 7.2 Asbestos in Soil

Sampling for asbestos in soil (ASBINS) was undertaken in general accordance with Section 4 of the ASC NEPM (2013) and Table 8 of the Western Australia Department of Health: Guidelines for the Assessment, Remediation and Management of Asbestos Contaminated Sites in Western Australia (WA DOH, 2009), as summarised below:

Per sample location, 10 litres of soil screened through a 7 mm sieve. For handling purposes sieving is completed in two passes of 5L to manage fatigue and stain. The coarse non-passing material spread out for inspection on an impermeable layer of contrasting colour material. Any identified ACM removed, double bagged and labelled for weighing and calculation of w/w% concentration;

Environment & Natural Resource Solutions

- One (1) wetted 500 ml sub sample collected from the fines passing the 7 mm sieve and submitted for laboratory analysis for asbestos identification (AS4964-2004); and
- Where asbestos is detected in any sample, the concentration of asbestos as fragments (ACM) and as loose fibres (FA or AF) to be compared with the relevant Site Assessment Criteria.

Location	Volume (m³)	Number of Samples required for 95% UCL	Action	Analyte
SP01	395	10 (200-2500m <sup>3</sup> )	Sieve 10 L to 7 mm	
SP02	855	10 (200-2500m <sup>3</sup> )	with field screening and composite laboratory sample.	NEPM level screening for asbestos in soil
SP03	2,787	12 (200-2300m <sup>3</sup> )		

Table 3: Asbestos in Soil Sample Plan

### 7.3 Soil Chemistry

Supplementary jar samples were collected from each sample location and placed on hold pending requirements for additional chemical testing. No testing was conducted during this scope of work. It is anticipated chemical assessment for waste classification would be required if asbestos is identified at concentrations above the SAC.

Samples were collected with disposable sterile gloves and placed directly in laboratory supplied 250 mL jars with Teflon lined lids and immediately stored on ice. Sample containers were individually labelled with sample identification clearly marked on the container and sealed lid. Volatile compound losses were kept to a minimum by employing the following sampling techniques:

- Minimal disturbance of soil during sampling;
- > Sample material placed in sampling jars as soon as possible;
- Sampling containers containing zero headspace;
- Samples placed directly on ice and transported to the laboratory as soon as possible; and
- Employing the most appropriate analytical method to minimise volatile losses at a NATA accredited laboratory.

### 7.4 Sampling Team

The sampling team comprised experienced contaminated land professionals with appropriate tertiary qualifications and accredited SafeWork NSW Licenced Asbestos Assessors (LAA).

### 8 RESULTS

#### 8.1 Field Observations

The stockpile investigation was conducted on the 20<sup>th</sup> August 2021. A walkover inspection of the stockpile surface identified one (1) fragment on the surface of Stockpile No.2. The fragment



Environment & Natural Resource Solutions

was located on the western corner of the stockpile and was observed to be greater than 7mm and did not crumble under hand pressure, which is characteristic of non-friable asbestos in soil. Test Pit No.1 (SP02-S01) was subsequently advanced at the fragment location, however no further asbestos was identified. Similarly, the walkover did not identify any other asbestos fragments on the surface of the stockpiles. The stockpiled soil was noted to comprise of generally uniform materials described as sandy loam. SP01 and SP03 were light brown in colour, where SP02 appeared slightly darker brown characteristic of topsoil. Some foreign materials were observed in SP02 including concrete and bricks with a minor quantity in portions of SP03. Sieve screening and visual inspection for asbestos was undertaken in the field for samples from the surface of the stockpiles and test pit cuttings to depths of 1.5 m. No asbestos was observed during field screening, refer to field records attached.

#### 8.2 Laboratory Results

Laboratory Certificates of Analysis (COA) for asbestos in soil are provided in **Attachment 1**. No chemical analysis was conducted during this scope of work, samples were collected and placed on hold pending requirements for testing, if any. Upon receipt the results were compared against the Site Assessment Criteria (SAC). A summary of the results is provided in **Table 4** with sample locations in **Figure 1**.

The results for asbestos in soil are noted to be below the NEPM Health Screening Level.

Stockpile No.	Sample ID	Concentration	NEPM 'A' Health Screening Level (HSL) (AF&FA)	Result
ENRS-SP01 (Survey ID3)	SP01/S01- S10	No Asbestos Detected (NAD)	-	Suitable for re-use on Site
		No Asbestos Detected (NAD)		
ENRS-SP02	SP02/S01- S03	1x fragment observed on ground surface adjacent test pit.	-	Low level FA/AF < <b>NEPM Health</b> Screening Levels. Suitable for re-use
(Survey ID4)	SP02/S04	0.00003% w/w	0.001%	on Site supported by placement below
	SP02/S05- S08	No Asbestos Detected (NAD)	-	final surface and clearance inspection
	SP02/S09	0.00006% w/w	0.001%	after placement.
	SP02/S10	No Asbestos Detected (NAD)	-	
ENRS-SP03 (Survey ID5)	SP03/S01- S12	No Asbestos Detected (NAD)	-	Suitable for re-use on Site

#### Table 4: Asbestos in Soil Results

**Environment & Natural Resource Solutions** 

### 9 CONCLUSIONS

Based on the site observations and laboratory results for the three (3) soil stockpiles investigated during this scope of work, the following conclusions and recommendations may be provided:

- No asbestos was observed in the field or detected by the laboratory in SP01 or SP03. These stockpiles may be considered suitable for re-use;
- Visual inspections identified one (1) asbestos fragment on the surface of stockpile No.2 adjacent SP02-S01. No further asbestos was observed in the field or detected by the laboratory in the SP02-S01 sample. The fragment was greater than 7 mm and did not crumble under hand pressure which is characteristic of non-friable asbestos in soil;
- Field screening of sieved soil samples did not identify any visual occurrence of asbestos in the 32 samples collected from the three (3) stockpiles. No other visual or olfactory indicators of contamination were noted to trigger further chemical testing. Sample jars were collected in the field and placed on hold pending requirements for testing;
- The laboratory results report detections of asbestos in two (2) samples from SP02. The material is described as asbestos fibres (AF) bound within fibrous paper. Review of the reported concentrations against the HSL documents the results are below the SAC, which may be considered satisfactory:
  - SP02-S04: AF 0.00003% w/w < HSL 0.001%
  - SP02-S09: AF 0.00009% w/w < HSL 0.001%
- The investigation results indicate there is potential for low level asbestos in Stockpile No.2 below the Site Assessment Criteria. The material may be considered suitable for re-use on Site supported by placement at depth below the proposed final surface, and progressive clearance inspections during handling and placement by a Licensed Asbestos Assessor. The project CEMP or equivalent management plan, should be updated to include this requirement for clearance inspections;
- Should any further asbestos be uncovered works should cease and a Licensed Asbestos Assessor be notified to inspect and re-assess the Unexpected Find.

This letter including the results of testing and discussion is prepared only for the above project and must be read in full in conjunction with the ENRS statement of Limitations. The discussions should not be used for any other project. ENRS should be informed if any of the above adopted/ assumed conditions, specifications etc. changes to refine the assessment accordingly.

For and on behalf of ENRS

Rohan Last (BSc, MSc) Hydrogeologist & Environmental Scientist SafeWork NSW Asbestos Assessor (LAA000166) e rohan@enrs.com.au t 02 4448 5490 m 0401 518 443 108 Jerry Bailey Road Shoalhaven Heads NSW 2535 ABN 68 600 154 596 www.enrs.com.au

**Environment & Natural Resource Solutions** 

Environment & Natural Resource Solutions

#### **10 LIMITATIONS**

This report and the associated services performed by ENRS are in accordance with the scope of services set out in the contract between ENRS and the Client. The scope of services was defined by the requests of the Client, by the time and budgetary constraints imposed by the Client, and by the availability of access to Site.

ENRS derived the data in this report primarily from visual inspections, and, limited sample collection and analysis made on the dates indicated. In preparing this report, ENRS has relied upon, and presumed accurate, certain information provided by government authorities, the Client and others identified herein. The report has been prepared on the basis that while ENRS believes all the information in it is deemed reliable and accurate at the time of preparing the report, it does not warrant its accuracy or completeness and to the full extent allowed by law excludes liability in contract, tort or otherwise, for any loss or damage sustained by the Client arising from or in connection with the supply or use of the whole or any part of the information in the report through any cause whatsoever.

Limitations also apply to analytical methods used in the identification of substances (or parameters). These limitations may be due to non-homogenous material being sampled (i.e. the sample to be analysed may not be representative), low concentrations, the presence of 'masking' agents and the restrictions of the approved analytical technique. As such, non-statistically significant sampling results can only be interpreted as 'indicative' and not used for quantitative assessments.

In practice, it is generally impossible to locate all asbestos in the course of an inspection due to factors including but not limited to access restrictions to certain areas including subsoil, the need to avoid damage, minimising inconvenience, operating plant, unavailability of specific information regarding the premises. The presence of asbestos and asbestos containing materials (ACM) is determined visually while the surveyor will collect samples of suspected ACM and have them analysed in a laboratory. Any restrictions on the amount of sampling will reduce confidence in the inspection findings. The ACM that cannot be seen will not be found.

The data, findings, observations, conclusions and recommendations in the report are based solely upon the state of Site at the time of the investigation. The passage of time, manifestation of latent conditions or impacts of future events (e.g. changes in legislation, scientific knowledge, land uses, etc) may render the report inaccurate. In those circumstances, ENRS shall not be liable for any loss or damage that may be occasioned directly or indirectly through the use of, or reliance on, the contents of the report.

This report has been prepared on behalf of and for the exclusive use of the Client, and is subject to and issued in connection with the provisions of the agreement between ENRS and the Client. ENRS accepts no liability or responsibility whatsoever and expressly disclaims any responsibility for or in respect of any use of or reliance upon this report by any third party or parties.

It is the responsibility of the Client to accept if the Client so chooses any recommendations contained within and implement them in an appropriate, suitable and timely manner.



	Ρ
	Lo
ENVIRONMENT & MATURAL RESOURCE SOLUTIONS	

	Client:	Lloyd Group	Drawn:	RL	Figure:	1	
N	Project:	ENRS1990	Source:	NearMap	Date:	25/08/2021	
	Location:	85 Byron Road, Leppington, NSW.	Scale:	ScaleBar	Title:	Site Plan – Stockpile Sample Locations	
OMS			Status:	Rev 1		(sampled 20/8/2021)	

Attachment 1:

Laboratory COA



23 August 2021

Appendix 5.4 D

Attention:	Rohan Last
Company:	ENRS Pty. Ltd.
Fax/email:	lab@enrs.com.au
Address:	108 Jerry Bailey Road Shoalhaven Heads, NSW 2535

SWE Reference:S109963.1Client Reference:85 Byron Road, Leppington NSW 2179Date of Receipt:20/05/2021NATA Accreditation No:**17092**NATA Accreditation Scope:7.82.31 – Asbestos Fibre Identification<br/>7.84.31 – Asbestos



Page 1 of 9

The results of the tests, calibrations and/or measurements in this document are traceable to Australian/national standards. Accredited for compliance with ISO/IEC 17025.

#### **Asbestos Identification**

**1. Introduction:** This report presents the results of 32 samples, collected by SWE on 20 August 2021 and analysed as received for the presence of asbestos.

**2. Methods:** Qualitative identification of asbestos type fibres in bulk using Polarised Light Microscope carried out in accordance with AS4964-2004, NEPM; WA DoH (2009); Work Health and Safety legislation and guidelines and SWE's *In-House Method 3 – Fibre Identification*. The collection of the sampling is not covered under the below NATA Accreditation Scope.

#### 3. Results:

SWE Ref.	SAMPLE DESCRIPTION	DIMENSIONS/ WEIGHT	ASBESTOS DETECTED
S109963.1/SP 01-S01	Brown Soil	796 g	No Asbestos Detected at the reporting limit of 0.1 g/kg Organic fibres detected No trace asbestos detected Quantification Comments*1: FA: No asbestos or trace asbestos detected at the reporting limit of 0.001 %w/w Approximate raw weight of FA = 0.0 g AF: No asbestos or trace asbestos detected at the reporting limit of 0.001 %w/w Approximate raw weight of AF = 0.0 g
S109963.1/SP 01-S02	Brown Soil	1014 g	No Asbestos Detected at the reporting limit of 0.1 g/kg Organic fibres detected No trace asbestos detected Quantification Comments*1: FA: No asbestos or trace asbestos detected at the reporting limit of 0.001 %w/w Approximate raw weight of FA = 0.0 g AF: No asbestos or trace asbestos detected at the reporting limit of 0.001 %w/w Approximate raw weight of AF = 0.0 g

S109963.1-NEPM-200821

Safe Work and Environments Pty Ltd 35/103 Majors Bay Road, Concord, NSW 2137 Phone: 02 8757 3611 Fax: 02 8757 3612 Email: enquiries@swe.com.au

Page 2 of 9



SWE Ref.	SAMPLE DESCRIPTION	DIMENSIONS/ WEIGHT	ASBESTOS DETECTED
S109963.1/SP 01-S03	Brown Soil	540 g	No Asbestos Detected at the reporting limit of 0.1 g/kg Organic fibres detected No trace asbestos detected Quantification Comments*1: FA: No asbestos or trace asbestos detected at the reporting limit of 0.001 %w/w Approximate raw weight of FA = 0.0 g AF: No asbestos or trace asbestos detected at the reporting limit of 0.001 %w/w Approximate raw weight of AF = 0.0 g
S109963.1/SP 01-S04	Brown Soil	738 g	No Asbestos Detected at the reporting limit of 0.1 g/kg Organic fibres detected No trace asbestos detected Quantification Comments*1: FA: No asbestos or trace asbestos detected at the reporting limit of 0.001 %w/w Approximate raw weight of FA = 0.0 g AF: No asbestos or trace asbestos detected at the reporting limit of 0.001 %w/w Approximate raw weight of AF = 0.0 g
S109963.1/SP 01-S05	Brown Soil	756g	No Asbestos Detected at the reporting limit of 0.1 g/kg Organic fibres detected No trace asbestos detected Quantification Comments*1: FA: No asbestos or trace asbestos detected at the reporting limit of 0.001 %w/w Approximate raw weight of FA = 0.0 g AF: No asbestos or trace asbestos detected at the reporting limit of 0.001 %w/w Approximate raw weight of AF = 0.0 g
S109963.1/SP 01-S06	Brown Soil	620 g	No Asbestos Detected at the reporting limit of 0.1 g/kg Organic fibres detected No trace asbestos detected <i>Quantification Comments*1:</i> <b>FA:</b> No asbestos or trace asbestos detected at the reporting limit of 0.001 %w/w Approximate raw weight of FA = 0.0 g <b>AF:</b> No asbestos or trace asbestos detected at the reporting limit of 0.001 %w/w Approximate raw weight of AF = 0.0 g



Page 3 of 9

SWE Ref.	SAMPLE DESCRIPTION	DIMENSIONS/ WEIGHT	ASBESTOS DETECTED
			No Asbestos Detected at the reporting limit of 0.1 g/kg Organic fibres detected No trace asbestos detected
			Quantification Comments*1:
S109963.1/SP 01-S07	Brown Soil	1288 g	<b>FA:</b> No asbestos or trace asbestos detected at the reportin limit of 0.001 %w/w Approximate raw weight of $FA = 0.0$ g <b>AF:</b> No asbestos or trace asbestos detected at the reportin limit of 0.001 %w/w Approximate raw weight of $AF = 0.0$ g
			No Asbestos Detected at the reporting limit of 0.1 g/kg Organic fibres detected No trace asbestos detected
S100062 1/SD	Brown Soil	1017	Quantification Comments*1:
S109963.1/SP 01-S08		1017 g	<b>FA:</b> No asbestos or trace asbestos detected at the reportin limit of 0.001 %w/w Approximate raw weight of $FA = 0.0$ g <b>AF:</b> No asbestos or trace asbestos detected at the reportin limit of 0.001 %w/w Approximate raw weight of $AF = 0.0$ g
	Brown Soil		No Asbestos Detected at the reporting limit of 0.1 g/kg Organic fibres detected No trace asbestos detected
			Quantification Comments*1:
S109963.1/SP 01-S09		922 g	<b>FA:</b> No asbestos or trace asbestos detected at the reportin limit of 0.001 %w/w Approximate raw weight of $FA = 0.0$ g <b>AF:</b> No asbestos or trace asbestos detected at the reportin limit of 0.001 %w/w Approximate raw weight of $AF = 0.0$ g
	Brown Soil 1		No Asbestos Detected at the reporting limit of 0.1 g/kg Organic fibres detected No trace asbestos detected
S109963.1/SP 01-S10		1419 g	Quantification Comments*1:
			<b>FA:</b> No asbestos or trace asbestos detected at the reportin limit of 0.001 $\%w/w$ Approximate raw weight of FA = 0.0 g <b>AF:</b> No asbestos or trace asbestos detected at the reportin



Page 4 of 9

SWE Ref.	SAMPLE DESCRIPTION	DIMENSIONS/ WEIGHT	ASBESTOS DETECTED
			limit of 0.001 %w/w Approximate raw weight of AF = 0.0 g
S109963.1/SP 02-S01	Brown Soil	723 g	No Asbestos Detected at the reporting limit of 0.1 g/kg Organic fibres detected No trace asbestos detected Quantification Comments*1: FA: No asbestos or trace asbestos detected at the reporting limit of 0.001 %w/w Approximate raw weight of FA = 0.0 g AF: No asbestos or trace asbestos detected at the reporting limit of 0.001 %w/w Approximate raw weight of AF = 0.0 g
S109963.1/SP 02-S02	Brown Soil	568 g	No Asbestos Detected at the reporting limit of 0.1 g/kg Organic fibres detected No trace asbestos detected Quantification Comments*1: FA: No asbestos or trace asbestos detected at the reporting limit of 0.001 %w/w Approximate raw weight of FA = 0.0 g AF: No asbestos or trace asbestos detected at the reporting limit of 0.001 %w/w Approximate raw weight of AF = 0.0 g
S109963.1/SP 02-S03	Brown Soil	645 g	No Asbestos Detected at the reporting limit of 0.1 g/kg Organic fibres detected No trace asbestos detected Quantification Comments*1: FA: No asbestos or trace asbestos detected at the reporting limit of 0.001 %w/w Approximate raw weight of FA = 0.0 g AF: No asbestos or trace asbestos detected at the reporting limit of 0.001 %w/w Approximate raw weight of AF = 0.0 g
S109963.1/SP 02-S04	Brown Soil	794 g	No Asbestos Detected at the reporting limit of 0.1 g/kg* <sup>2</sup> Organic fibres detected No trace asbestos detected Quantification Comments* <sup>1</sup> : FA: No asbestos or trace asbestos detected at the reporting limit of 0.001 %w/w Approximate raw weight of FA = 0.0 g AF: 0.002g of chrysotile asbestos fibres detected bound



Page 5 of 9

SWE Ref.	SAMPLE DESCRIPTION	DIMENSIONS/ WEIGHT	ASBESTOS DETECTED
			within fibrous paper Approximate raw weight of AF = 0.0005 g <b>Calculated FA+AF concentration of 0.00003 %w/w.</b>
S109963.1/SP 02-S05	Brown Soil	879 g	No Asbestos Detected at the reporting limit of 0.1 g/kg Organic fibres detected No trace asbestos detected <i>Quantification Comments*1:</i> <b>FA:</b> No asbestos or trace asbestos detected at the reporting <i>limit of 0.001 %w/w</i> <i>Approximate raw weight of FA = 0.0 g</i> <b>AF:</b> No asbestos or trace asbestos detected at the reporting <i>limit of 0.001 %w/w</i> <i>Approximate raw weight of AF = 0.0 g</i>
S109963.1/SP 02-S06	Brown Soil	851 g	No Asbestos Detected at the reporting limit of 0.1 g/kg Organic fibres detected No trace asbestos detected Quantification Comments*1: FA: No asbestos or trace asbestos detected at the reporting limit of 0.001 %w/w Approximate raw weight of FA = 0.0 g AF: No asbestos or trace asbestos detected at the reporting limit of 0.001 %w/w Approximate raw weight of AF = 0.0 g
S109963.1/SP 02-S07	Brown Soil	668 g	No Asbestos Detected at the reporting limit of 0.1 g/kg Organic fibres detected No trace asbestos detected <i>Quantification Comments*1:</i> <b>FA:</b> No asbestos or trace asbestos detected at the reporting limit of 0.001 %w/w Approximate raw weight of FA = 0.0 g <b>AF:</b> No asbestos or trace asbestos detected at the reporting limit of 0.001 %w/w Approximate raw weight of AF = 0.0 g
S109963.1/SP 02-S08	Brown Soil	746 g	No Asbestos Detected at the reporting limit of 0.1 g/kg Organic fibres detected No trace asbestos detected <i>Quantification Comments*1:</i> <b>FA:</b> No asbestos or trace asbestos detected at the reporting <i>limit of 0.001 %w/w</i>



Page 6 of 9

SWE Ref.	SAMPLE DESCRIPTION	DIMENSIONS/ WEIGHT	ASBESTOS DETECTED
			Approximate raw weight of $FA = 0.0 \text{ g}$ <b>AF</b> : No asbestos or trace asbestos detected at the reporting limit of 0.001 %w/w Approximate raw weight of $AF = 0.0 \text{ g}$
S109963.1/SP 02-S09	Brown Soil	811 g	No Asbestos Detected at the reporting limit of 0.1 g/kg* <sup>2</sup> Organic fibres detected No trace asbestos detected Quantification Comments* <sup>1</sup> : FA: No asbestos or trace asbestos detected at the reportin limit of 0.001 %w/w Approximate raw weight of FA = 0.0 g AF: 0.005g of chrysotile asbestos fibres detected boun within fibrous paper Approximate raw weight of AF = 0.0005 g Calculated FA+AF concentration of 0.00006 %w/w.
S109963.1/SP 02-S10	Brown Soil	724 g	No Asbestos Detected at the reporting limit of 0.1 g/kg Organic fibres detected No trace asbestos detected Quantification Comments*1: FA: No asbestos or trace asbestos detected at the reportin limit of 0.001 %w/w Approximate raw weight of FA = 0.0 g AF: No asbestos or trace asbestos detected at the reportin limit of 0.001 %w/w Approximate raw weight of AF = 0.0 g
S109963.1/SP 03-S01	Brown Soil	749 g	No Asbestos Detected at the reporting limit of 0.1 g/kg Organic fibres detected No trace asbestos detected Quantification Comments*1: FA: No asbestos or trace asbestos detected at the reportin limit of 0.001 %w/w Approximate raw weight of FA = 0.0 g AF: No asbestos or trace asbestos detected at the reportin limit of 0.001 %w/w Approximate raw weight of AF = 0.0 g
S109963.1/SP 03-S02	Brown Soil	856 g	No Asbestos Detected at the reporting limit of 0.1 g/kg Organic fibres detected No trace asbestos detected <i>Quantification Comments*1:</i> FA: No asbestos or trace asbestos detected at the reportir



Page 7 of 9

SWE Ref.	SAMPLE DESCRIPTION	DIMENSIONS/ WEIGHT	ASBESTOS DETECTED
			limit of 0.001 %w/w Approximate raw weight of FA = 0.0 g <b>AF</b> : No asbestos or trace asbestos detected at the reporting limit of 0.001 %w/w Approximate raw weight of AF = 0.0 g
S109963.1/SP 03-S03	Brown Soil	961 g	No Asbestos Detected at the reporting limit of 0.1 g/kg Organic fibres detected No trace asbestos detected <i>Quantification Comments*1:</i> <b>FA:</b> No asbestos or trace asbestos detected at the reporting limit of 0.001 %w/w Approximate raw weight of FA = 0.0 g <b>AF:</b> No asbestos or trace asbestos detected at the reporting limit of 0.001 %w/w Approximate raw weight of AF = 0.0 g
S109963.1/SP 03-S04	Brown Soil	714 g	No Asbestos Detected at the reporting limit of 0.1 g/kg Organic fibres detected No trace asbestos detected Quantification Comments*1: FA: No asbestos or trace asbestos detected at the reporting limit of 0.001 %w/w Approximate raw weight of FA = 0.0 g AF: No asbestos or trace asbestos detected at the reporting limit of 0.001 %w/w Approximate raw weight of AF = 0.0 g
S109963.1/SP 03-S05	Brown Soil	679 g	No Asbestos Detected at the reporting limit of 0.1 g/kg Organic fibres detected No trace asbestos detected Quantification Comments*1: FA: No asbestos or trace asbestos detected at the reporting limit of 0.001 %w/w Approximate raw weight of FA = 0.0 g AF: No asbestos or trace asbestos detected at the reporting limit of 0.001 %w/w Approximate raw weight of AF = 0.0 g
S109963.1/SP 03-S06	Brown Soil	653 g	No Asbestos Detected at the reporting limit of 0.1 g/kg Organic fibres detected No trace asbestos detected <i>Quantification Comments*1:</i> FA: No asbestos or trace asbestos detected at the reportin



Page 8 of 9

SWE Ref.	SAMPLE DESCRIPTION	DIMENSIONS/ WEIGHT	ASBESTOS DETECTED
			limit of 0.001 %w/w Approximate raw weight of FA = 0.0 g <b>AF:</b> No asbestos or trace asbestos detected at the reporting limit of 0.001 %w/w Approximate raw weight of AF = 0.0 g
S109963.1/SP 03-S07	Brown Soil	749 g	No Asbestos Detected at the reporting limit of 0.1 g/kg Organic fibres detected No trace asbestos detected <i>Quantification Comments*1:</i> <b>FA:</b> No asbestos or trace asbestos detected at the reporting limit of 0.001 %w/w Approximate raw weight of FA = 0.0 g <b>AF:</b> No asbestos or trace asbestos detected at the reporting limit of 0.001 %w/w Approximate raw weight of AF = 0.0 g
S109963.1/SP 03-S08	Brown Soil	773 g	No Asbestos Detected at the reporting limit of 0.1 g/kg Organic fibres detected No trace asbestos detected Quantification Comments*1: FA: No asbestos or trace asbestos detected at the reporting limit of 0.001 %w/w Approximate raw weight of FA = 0.0 g AF: No asbestos or trace asbestos detected at the reporting limit of 0.001 %w/w Approximate raw weight of AF = 0.0 g
S109963.1/SP 03-S09	Brown Soil	746 g	No Asbestos Detected at the reporting limit of 0.1 g/kg Organic fibres detected No trace asbestos detected Quantification Comments*1: FA: No asbestos or trace asbestos detected at the reporting limit of 0.001 %w/w Approximate raw weight of FA = 0.0 g AF: No asbestos or trace asbestos detected at the reporting limit of 0.001 %w/w Approximate raw weight of AF = 0.0 g
S109963.1/SP 03-S10	Brown Soil	690 g	No Asbestos Detected at the reporting limit of 0.1 g/kg Organic fibres detected No trace asbestos detected <i>Quantification Comments*1:</i> FA: No asbestos or trace asbestos detected at the reportin



Page 9 of 9

SWE Ref.	SAMPLE DESCRIPTION	DIMENSIONS/ WEIGHT	ASBESTOS DETECTED
			limit of 0.001 %w/w Approximate raw weight of FA = 0.0 g <b>AF:</b> No asbestos or trace asbestos detected at the reporting limit of 0.001 %w/w Approximate raw weight of AF = 0.0 g
S109963.1/SP 03-S11	Brown Soil	782 g	No Asbestos Detected at the reporting limit of 0.1 g/kg Organic fibres detected No trace asbestos detected Quantification Comments*1: FA: No asbestos or trace asbestos detected at the reporting limit of 0.001 %w/w Approximate raw weight of FA = 0.0 g AF: No asbestos or trace asbestos detected at the reporting limit of 0.001 %w/w Approximate raw weight of AF = 0.0 g
S109963.1/SP 03-S12	Brown Soil	661 g	No Asbestos Detected at the reporting limit of 0.1 g/kg Organic fibres detected No trace asbestos detected Quantification Comments*1: FA: No asbestos or trace asbestos detected at the reporting limit of 0.001 %w/w Approximate raw weight of FA = 0.0 g AF: No asbestos or trace asbestos detected at the reporting limit of 0.001 %w/w Approximate raw weight of AF = 0.0 g

<sup>\*1</sup>: Quantification calculations and results not covered under NATA Accreditation and AS4964. AF = Asbestos Fines. FA = Friable Asbestos

<sup>\*2</sup>: Asbestos was detected at a concentration estimated to be below the reporting limit of 0.1 g/kg

Analysed and reported by:

Rune Knoph Approved Issuer of Report



S109963.1-NEPM-200821

25/103 Majors Bay Road, Concord, NSW 2137 Phone: 02 8757 3611 Fax: 02 8757 3611 Email: enquiries@swe.com.au **Environment & Natural Resource Solutions** 

Appendix 5.4 D

Attachment 2:

**Field Notes** 

ENRS1990\_Stockpile Alr2

STOCKPILE 1

SAMPLE	DEPTH DESCRIPTION		ASBESTOS VISUALLY IDENTIFIED?
SP01/S1/ 0.4~	0-4	LIGHT BROWN, SANDY LOAM, SOME TREE ROOTS	NO the out
SP01/52/ 0,7m	0.7	"	NO
SP01/53/ 1.5M	1.5	"	NO
SP01/S4/ 1.0m	1.0	"	NO
SP01/55/ Am 1:0 m	1.0	11	NO
SP01/56/ 0.5m	0.5	"	NO
SP01/57/ 112m	1.2	11	NO
SP01/58/ 0.6m	0.6	"	NO
SP01/59/ 1.0 m	1.00	"	No
SP01/S10/ 0.5~	0.5	"	NO

#### STOCKPILE 2

SAMPLE	DEPTH	DESCRIPTION	ASBESTOS VISUALLY IDENTIFIED?
5P02/51/ 1.5M		PARK BROWN SOIL - WET WITH CONSIGNATION DEBRIS	XES - MEAR SURFAC
SP02/52/ 1.5m		CAMPACTE & BRICKS ON MOST SAMPLES	NO
SP02/53/ 1.5~		11	NO
5P02/54/ 1:0m		11	NO
SP02/55/ 1.0m		"	NO
SP02/56/ 0.5m		"	NO
SP02/57/ 1.0 M		"	000
SP02/58/ 1.0 m		11	NO
SP02/59/ 112m		11	NO
SP02/510/ 0.5m		"	No

#### STOCKPILE 3

SAMPLE	DEPTH	DESCRIPTION	ASBESTOS VISUALLY IDENTIFIED?
SP03/S1/ 1.0 m	1	LIGHT BROWN SANDY LOAM DRY WITH THE MOST CONSTRUCTION DEBRIS OUT OF THE	NO
SP03/52/ 1.0m		STOCKFILES (CONCRETE, BRICKES, CEDAMIC)	NO
SP03/S3/ 1. #2m		11	NO
SP03/S4/ 1.0 m		"	NO
SP03/55/ 0.5m		"	NO
SP03/56/ 0.5~		1,	NO
SP03/57/ 0.5m		//	NO
SP03/S8/ 1.0		11	NO
SP03/59/ 1.5 m		"	NO
SP03/510/ 0.5-		1	No
SP03/S11/ / 10 M		"	NO
SP03/512/ 1.0 m	1	"	No

**Attachment 3:** 

Photo Log





Stockpile SP01 Photo Log

Plate 3 of 17

Stockpile SP01 Photo Log

Plate 1 of 17





Stockpile SP01 Photo Log





Stockpile SP01 Photo Log

Plate 5 of 17

Stockpile SP01 Photo Log

Plate 7 of 17





Stockpile SP01 Photo Log

Plate 8 of 17



Stockpile SP01 Photo Log

Plate 9 of 17





Plate 12 of 17





Stockpile SP01 Photo Log

Plate 13 of 17

Stockpile SP01 Photo Log

Plate 15 of 17





Stockpile SP01 Photo Log


Stockpile SP01 Photo Log

Plate 17 of 17





Stockpile SP02 Photo Log

Plate 1 of 30







Stockpile SP02 Photo Log

Plate 5 of 30



Plate 8 of 30





Stockpile SP02 Photo Log

Plate 11 of 30

Plate 9 of 30







Stockpile SP02 Photo Log

Plate 15 of 30



Stockpile SP02 Photo Log

Plate 13 of 30





Stockpile SP02 Photo Log





Stockpile SP02 Photo Log

Plate 17 of 30

Stockpile SP02 Photo Log

Plate 19 of 30









Stockpile SP02 Photo Log

Plate 21 of 30





Plate 24 of 30





Stockpile SP02 Photo Log

Plate 25 of 30

Stockpile SP02 Photo Log

Plate 28 of 30



Stockpile SP02 Photo Log

Plate 29 of 30







Stockpile SP03 Photo Log

Plate 1 of 12

Stockpile SP03 Photo Log

Plate 2 of 12









Stockpile SP03 Photo Log

Plate 6 of 12







Stockpile SP03 Photo Log

Plate 10 of 12

Stockpile SP03 Photo Log

Plate 9 of 12





## Appendix 5.4G

Eastern Creek Ecology Park Bingo Waste Services Pty Ltd

> 1 Kangarop Avenue EASTERN CREEK NSW 2766

Phone: 1300 424 646



#### Tax Invoice GEN1341249-1

#### Date: 16/10/21

Time In: 8:01:12 AM | Time Out: 8:24:29 AM

#### Customer

**Nippon Supplies** 

#### PO: LAHC

#### Vehicle: DWL48G

Туре		UOM	Qty.	Price	
Gross:		Tonne	5.00		
Tare:		Tonne	2.90		
Net: incom	ling: Asbestos Sheeting	Tonne	2.10		

Amount Excl. GST

Total Excl. GST

GST

Total Incl. GST Paid By: EFTPOS

Printed:

Signature:

Statement of Compliance

You are under the instruction of site personnel All machinery has right of way at all times No hazardous materials are accepted All Drivers must check axie weights and GVM All loads must be adequately restrained You agree to take all reasonable steps to prevent oreaches of heavy vehicle national laws Any breaches of the above may be subject to extra charges

16/10/2021 8:31:27 AM

cha

### 6. Waste Classifications of Materials to be Removed or Imported into Site

In accordance with the Amity College Development Consent (SSD 9227), condition C22(h) the waste classification (for materials to be removed) and validation (for materials to remain) be undertaken to confirm the contamination status in these areas of the site is to be specified.

Waste from site must be classified in accordance with the NSW Waste Classification Guidelines, Part 1: Classifying Waste (NSW EPA, 2014), and that all materials excavated and removed from the site shall be disposed:

- i. In accordance with the Protection of the Environment Operations Act 1997 (POEO Act), and;
- ii. To a facility legally able to accept the material

Additionally, the removal of waste materials from the site shall only be carried out by a licensed contractor holding the appropriate license, consent or approvals to dispose of the waste materials according to the classifications outlined in EPA waste classification and with the appropriate approvals obtained, if required, from NSW EPA.

Asbestos disposal must be tracked and reported to the EPA using WasteLocate online Tool.

Given that the contaminated areas as identified by GeoEnviro Consultancy have been remediated, this requirement will only apply to any additional unexpected finds contamination areas. The protocols for dealing with unexpected finds are detailed in Section 5.1 above.

All imported soil must comprise only VENM, ENM, or other material approved in writing by EPA is brought onto the site, in accordance with condition D24(a) of the Amity College Development Consent (SSD 9227).

Further details to be adhered to regarding the above are contained in the engineering drawings and requirements prepared by consulting engineers Martens & Associates provided with the early works tender package.

20/10/2021 Update - A small amount of asbestos fragments identified during implementation of the unexpected finds protocol has resulted in disposal of a disposal of materials.

These materials were classified, the stakeholders and auditor was notified, advice received (see below)

#### RE: ENRS1990 stockpile results



Paul Moritz <Paul.Moritz@douglaspartners.com.au> To Joseph Elley; 🔾 Peter Reed; 🔿 Recep Aydogan (raydogan@amity.nsw.edu.au); 🔿 rohan@enrs.com.au Cc O Kane Sabo; O Nick Messiou; O Vincent Phuong; O Emily Eden (i) You forwarded this message on 15/10/2021 1:04 PM.

Joseph,

Before the material is transported off-site it should be double-bagged in plastic (and the receiving facility will probably want that to apply anyway).

Once dealt with, please provide me with:

- Analysis certificate confirming it is asbestos-containing.
- Weight of material collected and by whom, when,
- Receipt for deposition at a licensed facility.
- Details of transporter (check on vehicle licensing/registration requirements for transporting this material).

Paul

Paul Moritz BSc PhD FRACI CENVP Contaminated Sites Auditor (Vic, NSW, ACT, NT)

Principal

Douglas Partners Pty Ltd | ABN 75 053 980 117 | www.douglaspartners.com.au 231 Normanby Road South Melbourne VIC 3205 | PO Box 5051 South Melbourne VIC 3205 P: 03 9673 3500 | M: 0429 885 475 | E: paul.moritz@douglaspartners.com.au

### 7. Construction Traffic and Pedestrian Management

### Introduction

#### a. Overview

The traffic management objectives for this project are as follows:

- i. Ensure the safety of employees, contractors, the general public, Amity College personnel, pedestrians, cyclists and traffic in and around the school site.
- ii. Maintenance of satisfactory access to the site during construction.
- iii. To minimise environmental nuisance and impact as a result of construction traffic, and to keep traffic delays on Byron Road to a minimum.
- iv. Minimise disturbance to the environment and to minimise the risk of noise, dust complaints or complaints in relation to construction traffic from neighbouring property owners or residents in the immediate local area.
- v. The above approach and report has been provided with consultation with council (refer to attached correspondence with Camden Council)

#### b. Construction Access

The access requirements for construction traffic for the Stage 1 works is illustrated in the accompanying engineering drawings and requirements prepared by consulting engineers Martens & Associates provided with the Stage 1 works tender package. The authorized access points comprise the following:

- i. Access to the site from Byron Road.
- ii. Access to the site from Pluto Avenue.

#### c. Mitigation measures

Where required, Lloyd Group will engage suitably qualified and approved traffic controllers in order to undertake works in a safe and responsible manner. Traffic controllers are to carry licence tickets at all times.

Other specific traffic controls and measures would include the following:

- i. All transport vehicles to have proper noise attenuation and to be maintained in good order.
- ii. Queuing will be forbidden in local streets. Truck movements will be staggered to prevent queuing occurring.
- iii. Oversize truck movements (predominantly floats) will only occur during approved hours 10.00am to 2.00pm.
- iv. All construction vehicles (excluding worker vehicles) are to be contained wholly within the site, except if located in an approved on-street work zone, and vehicles must enter the site before stopping. Consent condition D12 requires no obstruction of any public way.
- v. Adequate off-road parking will be provided for construction vehicles and construction workforce vehicles.



- vi. All trucks and earthmoving machinery on site will have fitted, and will maintain, suitable reversing lights and reversing alarms for on site safety.
- vii. Consent condition D10 must be complied with. It requires the following: "All construction vehicles (including site personnel vehicles) are to be contained wholly within the site, except if located in an approved on-street work zone, and vehicles must enter the site before stopping."

#### d. Monitoring and Corrective Actions

Construction roads will be inspected to ensure road conditions support safe working and driving. Following periods of heavy rain or adverse conditions, on-site construction roads will be inspected prior to heavy vehicle traffic use to ensure driver and vehicle safety.

In the event of a traffic incident, the relevant sub-contractor shall stop the vehicle involved in the incident and clear any spills. In the event of a complaint the Head Contractor or their representatives will investigate the complaint promptly and initiate appropriate action to reduce impact. All incidents are to be reported to Amity College.

Throughout the duration of Stage 1 construction, Lloyd Group will be responsible for providing to Amity College details of the operations undertaken, including results of all noise or vibration monitoring, details of discussions with the local council and the community, unexpected finds, incidents and accidents, complaints and actions taken in response to complaints, as well as details of material removed from or imported into the site.

#### e. Updates to this Traffic and Pedestrian Management Plan

This Traffic and Pedestrian Management Plan only applies to works associated with the Stage 1 building. The

Plan will need to be revised accordingly for any other future construction stages.

#### 7.1. Purpose

This Construction Traffic and Pedestrian Management Sub-Plan (CTPMSP) has been prepared to outline and describe how Lloyd Group will, during the construction of the Project, comply with the NSW Minister for Planning's Conditions of Consent (CoC). This CTPMSP is to be used during construction of the Project. This plan is applicable to all staff and Subcontractors associated with the construction of the Project.

The purpose of this CTPMSP is to detail the specific mitigation measures and controls to avoid, mitigate and/or manage potential impacts and minimise disruption to, and ensure the safety of the wide range of stakeholders potentially affected by the works, including but not limited to: motorists, pedestrians; cyclists; public transport users, local residents and property owners; business owners; and workers/staff engaged on the Project.

#### 7.2 Legislative requirements

Legislation relevant to traffic and transport management for this project includes:

- Environmental Planning and Assessment ACT 1979
- Roads Act 1993

- Local Government Act 1993
- Road Transport (Safety & Traffic Management) Act 1999
- Work Health and Safety Act 2011 (NSW)

#### 7.3. Industry Standards and Guidelines

Additional guidelines and standards relating to the management of traffic and access include:

• Roads and Maritime Services (RMS) Traffic Control at Worksites (Ver: 6.0 2020 or any subsequent revision / technical direction from RMS)

• RMS Specification DCM G10 – Control of Traffic

• Transport Management Centre Road Occupancy Manual (2012 or any subsequent revision / technical direction from RMS)

- RTA NSW Speed Zoning Guidelines (2004)
- AS 1742: Manual of Uniform Traffic Devices:
  - Part 1 General Introduction and Index of Signs
  - o Part 2 -Traffic Control Devices for General Use
  - Part 3 Traffic Control Devices for Work on Roads
  - Part 4 Speed Controls
  - Part 10 Pedestrian Control and Protection
  - Part 11 Parking Controls
- Part 13 Local Area Traffic Management.
  - NSW Bicycle Guidelines
  - Relevant Austroads Guides and TfNSW (RMS) Supplements
  - The NSW Rural Fire Service Bush Fire Management Plan
  - TfNSW TDT 2010/07 Use of Variable Message Signs

• RTA – Delineation Guidelines (2008) • Environmental Management Plan Guideline: Guideline for

Infrastructure Projects (DPIE, April 2020)

#### 7.3. Project Summary

This report provides an assessment of a State significant development (SSD) application for a new school, Amity College (SSD-9227) located at 85 Byron Road and 63 Ingleburn Road, Leppington – STAGE 1 WORKS. Lloyd Group has been awarded with job to complete the Stage 1 Works on the project, including:

Construction of two - four storey buildings to accommodate:

- the primary and secondary school classrooms;
- multipurpose halls;
- library; and
- administrative areas;
- at grade / basement car parking and bicycle parking areas;
- Construction of bus bays on Byron Road;
- Landscaping, stormwater and public domain works;
- Construction of new local roads, on-street car parking spaces, drop-off / pick-up zones, drainage works and service connections of the located at 85 Byron Road, Leppington.



Figure 1 – Site Location

### 7.4. Site Description

The site is legally described as part Lot 1 DP 525996 (85 Byron Road), and part Lot 2 DP 525996 (63 Ingleburn Road), Leppington within the Camden LGA. The site is approximately 38 kilometres (km) from the Sydney Central Business District and 1.24km south-east of Leppington Station (Figure 2 below).



The site is 3.2 hectares (ha) in area, generally rectangular in shape, and located at the corner of Byron Road and Ingleburn Road (boundary shown in yellow in Figure 2). The future school development would be located on the southern part of this site (identified in red in Figure 2).

The site is in a region characterised by gently undulating topography. The northern part of the site is flat while the southern part has a gentle fall from 100 Australian Height Datum (AHD) in the east to between 94 and 97 AHD along the western boundary.

The site has a natural low point at the centre sloping towards Byron Road in the east and the adjoining property at 69 Ingleburn Road to the west. A minor section of the site along the western boundary comprises flood prone land. The site has a primary frontage of 286 metres (m) to Byron Road and a secondary frontage of 103m to Ingleburn Road. A partially constructed road (half-width) known as Pluto Avenue adjoins the site to the south (Please see Figure 3 of site boundaries below).



Figure 4 – Lloyd Group Site Management Plan – Stage 1



Optimus TM CTPMSP Report for 63 Ingleburn Road & Byron Road, Leppington – New Amity College Leppington Campus -- page 8

### 7.5. Staging Plan - Commencement Dates and Duration

Please see staging plan in table provided below, project commencement date is scheduled to be on 10th of May 2021:

Stages	Activity	Start Date	Finish Date
01	Site Establishment	01/02/2022	15/02/2022
02	Civil Works/Earthworks/Retaining Walls	09/02/2022	14/05/2022
03	Foundation/Substructure	11/04/2022	15/06/2022
04	Structure	08/06/2022	02/09/2022
05	Roofing/Façade	20/07/2022	14/10/2022
06	Fitout	17/08/2022	05/01/2023

#### 7.6. Hours of Work

As noted in Conditions D5 and D6; construction, including the delivery of materials to and from the site, may only be carried out between the following hours:

(a) between 7am and 6pm, Mondays to Fridays inclusive; and

(b) between 8am and 1pm, Saturdays.

No work may be carried out on Sundays or public holidays.

Construction activities may be undertaken outside of the hours in condition above if required:

(a) by the Police or a public authority for the delivery of vehicles, plant or materials; or

(b) in an emergency to avoid the loss of life, damage to property or to prevent environmental harm; or

(C) where a variation is approved in advance in writing by the Planning Secretary or nominee if appropriate justification is provided for the works.

Notification of such construction activities as referenced in condition D6 must be given to affected residents before undertaking the activities or as soon as is practical afterwards. Rock breaking, rock hammering, sheet piling, pile driving and similar activities may only be carried out between the following hours:

(a) 9:00am to 12pm (noon), Monday to Friday;

(b) 2:00pm to 5:00pm Monday to Friday; and

(C) 9:00am to 12pm (noon), Saturday.

### 7.7. Daily Onsite Workforce

Average daily workforce of approximately 30-40 people (tradesmen) and may increase to 100 at peak stages of construction

### 7.8. Subject Road – Byron Road

Byron Road is a local 2 way 2 lane council road. It connects with Rickard Road on the northern end and with Heath Road on southern end. Road primary carries residential traffic and it is not used by through fare traffic. It is considered as a low traffic volume road and major road improvement are planned to happen within next 4 years. Signposted speed on Byron Road is 70km/h, however due intersection with Ingleburn Road located 100m away from proposed construction site entrance factual traffic speed at the site entry point is 50km/h. Road Hierarchy Diagram is presented below:



Pluto Avenue – is a local 2 way 1 lane council road, provides access to local residents, and it will be used by school visitors in the future upon completion of the project



Amity College CEMP Project Rev 12 04/02/22

## 7.9. Public Transport Facilities

The nearest bus stops are 140m away towards north, with direct link services to Camden and Leppington Train Station. Here is a detailed information upon nearest bus stop location:



Figure 5 – nearest bus stops with services to Liverpool 856 and Leppington Train Station 858 Stop ID:2171446



Figure 6 – Bus Network in the area

#### 7.10. Pedestrian and Cycle Paths

Byron Road does not feature any footpaths or designated cycle routes in the area throughout all day. Pluto Avenue features uncompleted footpath on southern side. Please see diagram of cyclist network area in diagram below:



Figure 7 – Cyclist Network in the area

### 7.11. Location of Proposed Hoardings

Amity College CEMP Project Rev 12 04/02/22



Construction fence will cover permitter of the site (with Lloyd Group anti-sediment cloth), for further information please refer to site traffic management plan/site layout diagram in the appendix of this document – **Section 7.39 Appendix A Figure 8**. Site gates will be used to secure the construction site from unauthorised access.

#### 7.12. Location of proposed Crane Standing Zone

Lloyd Group proposes to use different size mobile cranes within site boundaries.

### 7.13. Location of proposed Work (Construction Work) Zone

Construction (work) zones for Stage 1 at the Amity College project is dependent on the works being carried out throughout various phases of the project and site configurations. These are as follows:

- General Daily site access through Pluto Avenue and Byron Rd does not require work zone (refer TCP #3040)
- Public Domain Works on Pluto Avenue work zone required (refer TCP#3174)
- New Water Connection on Byron Rd work zone required (refer TCP#3172)
- Stormwater Connection on Pluto Avenue work zone required (refer TCP#3173)

### 7.15. Concrete Pour Work Zones

Lloyd Group proposes multiple concrete pours as for new buildings as for public domain works. Generally, all concrete pours will be done within site boundaries including currently fenced off area at Pluto Avenue – completion second half of Pluto Avenue pavement/kerb and gutter and footpath.

### 7.16. Loading / Unloading Zones

All loading and unloading activities will be done within the construction site boundaries as shown on Figure 8 of Section 7.39 Appendix A.

#### 7.17. Location of Excavations

2xExcavators (18T) will be used for demolition and earth work purposes within site boundaries, all spoil material removal will be removed by tipper truck and trailers that will have to be loaded/unloaded within work site boundaries. The excavators will be delivered and dropped to site by tilt-tray truck as shown on image below:



#### 7.18. Site Accommodations

All site accommodations will be located wholly within the site compound not on public lands – please refer to Section 7.39 Appendix A – Figure 8.

#### 7.19. Material, Plant and Spoil Bin Storage Areas

These areas will be allocated within the construction site boundary. Skip bins will be contained wholly within the site boundary (garbage bin area). No storage of materials, plant or spoil will be allowed on public land or public roads. All waste/material will be collected on site in a position for easy access for both use on site and removal by trucks. As previously described, all removal trucks will have the load covered by tarpaulin or other means to secure the load and will adhere to the approved travel routes as described in this CTPMSP.

It is noted that Lloyd Group Pty Ltd must obtain a permit from the Camden Council regarding the placing of any plant/equipment o public ways, should this ever be required.

#### 7.20. Nearby Construction Sites

New Residential Estate - 66 Byron Road, Leppington - opposite from subject site

LLOYD

### 7.21. Access Management Arrangements

Dedicated temporary construction site driveway entrance and exit will be signposted and managed by certified traffic controllers. This will remain in place to safely manage pedestrians and construction-related vehicles to the Site frontage's roadways and footpaths.

Authorised Traffic Controller will also be in place to assist with vehicle access to any private car spaces if required. It is not expected, but should there be a need to relocate any car spaces due to the spaces being inaccessible, suitable alternative arrangements will be provided to the occupant of the car space.

#### 7.22. Vehicle Movement Plan

A vehicle movement plan has been developed for this project and is located in **Section 7.39 Appendix A Figure 9**. VMP has been designed in the way that construction traffic will use minimum of local roads and the main access roads for VMP are State Road Camden Valley Way, Ingleburn Road and Byron Road.

#### 7.23. Impact to Residents, Businesses and the Public

Most of the works will be carried out within construction site boundaries, this project is not expected to have any significant impacts on residents, public transport and cyclists. It is recommended that high impact works as earth removing works (truck and trailer operation) need to be at off peak hours.

It has been planned that traffic control applications will cause any significant traffic delays. The most significant impact that may cause some delays in traffic flows is turning trucks accessing work site.

The rest of existing access arrangements and services to other transport modes will be maintained comparable to the existing situation. Adequate provision for motorists, pedestrians and cyclists will be made for current movements along all frontages and intersecting streets.

#### 7.24. Neighbouring Properties

Access to neighbouring properties will be maintained at all times. No full Road Closures are planned on this stage. Neighbouring property occupants and local stakeholders will be regularly notified of the timeframes for completion and of any other impacts that may affect the local surrounds.

#### 7.25. Transport Management for Service, Delivery, and Garbage Vehicles

Project is not expected to make any other third party truck operation impacts.

#### 7.26. Public Transport Impacts

This project is expected to have nil impact on public transport (buses) timetables. All truck movement works will be done away from public transport routes and bus stops.

### 7.27. On Site Parking

Site management reserves 6 parking spots for tradesmen (light vehicles) and 3 spots for heavy machinery or truck placements within the site boundaries. Site Layout allows to use vast space of land providing parking for construction personnel needs. No truck pooling/parking will be permitted at roadways within the Camden Council Local Government Area.

### 7.28. Emergency Services

For any works on the roadway (not proposed at this moment), a 3.2m isle is to be maintained at all times during any road works to ensure emergency vehicle can pass if required.

### 7.29. Pedestrians

Project will make nil impact on pedestrian movements, as there are no footpaths in the project area along Byron and Ingleburn Roads.

### 7.30. Cyclists

Cyclists will be subject to the same Traffic Management Controls as registered road users and will always have the right of way over construction works and vehicles accessing the site. At current condition proposed construction traffic movement will make no impact on cyclist traffic as closest designated cyclist route is located at Camden Valley Way. (please see **Figure 7** for your information).

### 7.31. Driver Code of Conduct

Lloyd Group will include the following in all subcontract procurement packages:

- A copy of the approved truck routes as detailed in Figure 9
- Adhering the approved maximum truck sizes
- Operation High Impact Truck and Trailer Operation at off peak times
- Elimination use of compression breaking on theapproach to work site on Ingleburn and Byron Road
- Contracted Truck Drivers to have courteous and positive attitude towards other motor users

- Truck Drivers to use flashing amber lights within 100m approach distance to site
- Any other entry restrictions, or site access restrictions as agreed to by the authorities.

Lloyd Group will be responsible for managing all site access points and monitoring subcontractor behaviour and subcontractor truck access arrangements to ensure compliance with conditions of contract. Lloyd Group will be responsible for managing for all the site gate access to ensure there is no access to or from the site before or after approved construction hours. Drivers are to be particularly vigilant when entering

/exiting Byron Road. Vehicles are not to queue on the road network and must enter and exit work site in a forward direction. All deliveries will be pre-booked and are to check in at the site office on arrival.

### 7.32. Types of Trucks Approaching Site

There will be a combination of small rigid vehicles (SRV's 5.2m), heavy rigid vehicles (MR's 7.5m) pantech and flatbed, and concrete trucks accessing and egressing from the site. Site Surrounding Roads were designed to carry vehicles with short wheel base, hence there are no plans to use vehicles longer than 8m.

## Vehicle dimensions



Single unit truck/bus

Length: 7.50 m Width: 2.50 m Lock to lock time: 4.0 s Max steering angle: 36.65° Turn radius (curb to curb): 9.91 m Turn radius (wall to wall): 10.54 m

## Vehicle dimensions



Concrete mixer - Custom

Length: 7.50 m Width: 2.44 m Lock to lock time: 6.0 s Max steering angle: 35.40° Turn radius (curb to curb): 8.79 m Turn radius (wall to wall): 9.65 m



The estimated average number of daily truck movements would be 9 per day.

The estimated construction traffic generated by the works is summarized in Table 3 below.

### TABLE 3: CONSTRUCTION VEHICLE MOVEMENTS

STAGE	TRUCKS	TRUCK TYPE	DURATION
Excavation and Civil Works	12 truck and trailers trucks in total Around 3 trucks a week	Truck and Trailers	4 weeks
Concrete and Structure Works	150 Deliveries or Pours in total Around 4 Concrete Pours a week Around 3 Formwork Deliveries Per week	Concrete Agitator Concrete Pump Formwork Deliveries (Semitrailer)	18 weeks
Façade, Structural Steel and Roofing Works	100 Deliveries in total Around 9 deliveries per week	Semitrailer	12 weeks
Internal Fitout Works	100 Deliveries in total Around 9 deliveries per week	Heavy Duty Vehicle	12 weeks
External and Landscaping works	100 Deliveries in total Around 9 deliveries per week	Heavy Duty Vehicle	12 weeks
Tradesmen Vehicles	40 vehicles per week	LVs	6 weeks

Note: Construction vehicle movements have been assumed without the input from a builder and as such is subject to change prior to submission to Camden Council

### Vehicle Queueing

No queuing or marshalling of trucks is permitted on any public road. If there is no adequate space on-site or in the approved temporary work area. All construction vehicles should be coordinated to site only when sufficient space is available. Circulating construction vehicles on the network will not be tolerated.

#### 7.34. Abnormal and Oversize/Over mass Loads

Oversize and over-mass vehicles are not allowed to travel on Local Roads (unless approval for a one-off occasion is obtained from the Camden Council Traffic Operations Unit). Requests to use these vehicles must be submitted to Camden Council 28 days prior to the vehicle's scheduled travel date.

Specific Traffic Management Plan will be developed for each abnormal movement and will be submitted for assessment to the relevant local and regulatory authorities on a case by case basis. For more information, please contact the National Heavy Vehicle Regulator (NHVR) on 1300 696 487 or <a href="https://www.nhvr.gov.au/">https://www.nhvr.gov.au/</a>

Temporary signposting will be implemented as per the detailed traffic plans. As documented in **Section 7.40 Appendix B** – Traffic Control Plans.

Designed TCPs cover different work scenarios, for further information please see table below:

Event	DESCRIPTION	ТСР
1	Daily Site Access – through Pluto Avenue and Byron Road	#3040
2	Public Domain Works on Pluto Avenue	#3174
3	New Water Connection on Byron Road	#3172
4	Stormwater Connection on Pluto Avenue	#3173

#### 7.35. Risk Assessment

A detailed risk assessment and control method must be documented for each stage of the works. A Safe Work Method Statement is to be developed in consultation with all stakeholders and signed off by all workers prior to commencement of work.

#### 7.36. Stakeholder Works Notifications

Notifications will be provided to all impacted stakeholders. Local community notification and consultation processes will be undertaken with all stakeholders prior to any changes to or impact on the local road network (days of concrete pours, frequent movements of delivery trucks). A copy of the notification letter for general traffic control works to residents is in below (content of letter can be changed in order to suit particular work scenarios):

#### Byron Road, Leppington – Amity College Leppington Campus Project - Lloyd Group Monday 17<sup>th</sup> January – Friday 21<sup>st</sup> January 2022 07:00am to 6:00pm

Wednesday, 12<sup>th</sup> January 2022

Dear Resident,

Please be advised that a construction works (and construction related traffic movements) will be occurring on Byron Road. Access to the road way and footpath for public will remain open under the guidance traffic control signage and/or authorised traffic controllers. For any concerns on the day of the works please contact Joseph on 0408 848 050.

Apologies for any potential delays caused.

If you would like any further details, please contact Joseph on 0408 848 050 between 9.00am and 6.00pm Monday to Friday.

#### Community Communication Strategy: Early Works and Stage 1

Outline Planning Consultants have been engaged to provide a Community Communication Strategy for the Early Works and Stage 1. Amity College School SSD 9227 Community Communication Strategy has been provided in **Section 15 Appendix D** of this report and outlines items as required by **Condition C7** of the Development Consent Conditions.

This Communication Strategy has been provided to the Planning Department for information and provides mechanisms to facilitate communication between the Applicant, the relevant Council, and the community throughout each stage and for a minimum of 12 months following the completion of construction of each relevant stage.

Key Stakeholders for the project are outlined and described in Section 4 of The Community Communication Strategy.

As noted in this Communication Strategy, timeframes for providing notification to stakeholders for different types of works are as per the following table:

Works activity	Minimum community notification period
Notification to communities following major incident	Same day
Emergency works/unforeseen events	Same day
Contamination management and notification	Within 48 hours
Upcoming works notification (minimum disruption)	5-7 days
Notifications regarding traffic changes, parking impacts, road closures, and/or detours	10-14 days
Notifications regarding operational changes for the school community, applicable after the Stage 1 Primary School is operational (school drop-off points, entry and exit points)	10-14 days
Notifications regarding major construction impacts or planned out of hours work	10-14 days

#### 7.37. Emergency Services Notification

Emergency Services will be informed in a timely manner of relevant activities proposed within this CTPMSP that affect the use of the roadway. It is noted that it is a condition of the Camden Council Construction Regulation Unit that emergency services be notified prior to obtaining Mobile Hoisting, Temporary Works, Road Opening or Road Closure permit from the Construction Regulation Unit.

#### 7.38. Key Contacts

NAME	POSITION	CONTACT #
Brandon Farr	Public Roads Authority Technical Officer	02 4654 7777

### 7.39. Traffic Layouts

### APPENDIX A

Site Traffic Management Plan/Site Layout - Figure 8



Vehicle Movement Plan for Construction Vehicles – Figure 9


### 7.40. Traffic Control Plans

### APPENDIX B

#### TRAFFIC CONTROL PLANS - TCP #3040 - DAILY SITE ACCESS ON BYRON ROAD



#### TRAFFIC CONTROL PLANS - TCP #3174 – PUBLIC DOMAIN WORKS ON PLUTO AVENUE



TRAFFIC CONTROL PLANS - TCP #3173 - STORMWATER CONNECTION ON PLUTO AVENUE



TRAFFIC CONTROL PLANS - TCP #3172 - STORMWATER CONNECTION ON BYRON ROAD



## 8. Construction Noise, Vibration and Dust Management

## 8.1. Overview

Noise and dust generated during construction are the impacts most referenced by clients and local residents. Vibration will be also a key concern during the demolition of the works.

Dilapidation reports have been prepared of the adjacent buildings prior to commencement of any works.

Noise and vibration generated during excavation and construction works is assessed at surrounding residential receivers in accordance with the *Interim Construction Noise Guideline*.

Lloyd Group is committed to achieving minimal impact on the immediate surrounds during the construction. Consultants will be used to monitor vibration, dust and noise during major excavation and earthworks, with results made available to all stakeholders for review.

Development Consent condition C25 provides a summary of the matters that must be addressed in the Construction Noise and Vibration Management Plan. *It is noted that any construction activities involving plant or power tools are going to create an environment where noise above 75dB is experienced. To mitigate the effect of these works construction activities will be carried out in accordance with the DA Hours.* 

Specific conditions relating to the control of noise and vibration during construction are detailed in Development Consent conditions D13 to D17. These conditions form a part of the mitigation measures proposed for the Stage 1 works covered by this Plan.

## 8.2. Interim Construction Noise Guidelines EPA 2009

The Interim Construction Noise Guideline recognises that construction and excavation works will at times generate noise that is clearly audible at neighbouring sites. The primary focus is to provide a means of determining the severity of noise impacts at surrounding affected receiver locations and a framework for managing construction noise, generally through implementing best practice noise minimisation principles and facilitating communication between construction workers and the local community.

In regard to the latter, Lloyd Group has written to local residents seeking their views on noise impacts and mitigation measures proposed.

Construction noise criteria were also derived from measured background noise levels. This is based on LAeq,15minutes  $\leq$  LA90,daytime + 10 dB during the recommended standard hours\*.

Based on the acoustic report by Koikas Acoustics, entitled Acoustic Assessment School Operational Noise Impact Assessment Amity College Leppington Campus dated 29/05/2019 the applicable construction noise criteria are:

- LAeq,15 min (daytime) ≤ 44 dB, for residential premises near Site Location 1 (east), and
- LAeq,15 min (daytime) ≤ 46 dB, for residential premises near Site Location 2 (west).

The location of the above noise locations is illustrated in the accompanying Figure 8.1. Note that Location 2 is well within the school site and Location 1 is near the main construction access point from Byron Road.



## FIGURE 8.1: Noise Locations

(Source: Koikas Acoustics Acoustic Assessment School Operational Noise Impact Assessment Amity College Leppington Campus dated 29/05/2019 Figure 1)

Development Consent condition D13 sets down the noise standard to be satisfied. It states:

"D13. The development must be constructed to achieve the construction noise management levels detailed in the Interim Construction Noise Guideline (DECC, 2009). All feasible and reasonable noise mitigation measures must be implemented and any activities that could exceed the construction noise management levels must be identified and managed in accordance with the management and mitigation measures identified in the CNVMSP in condition C25."

Koikas Acoustics predict that noise from construction is predicted to, at times, exceed the Noise Affected level of the ICNG at nearby premises. This is due to the proximity of the adjoining residences in relation to the assessment site and the typical nature of noise associated with construction equipment.

## 8.3. Vibration Requirements

Development Consent condition D15 sets down the vibration standard to be satisfied. It also refers to the requirement of consent condition C25. Condition D15 states:

"D15. Vibration caused by construction at any residence or structure outside the site must be limited to:

(a) for structural damage, the latest version of DIN 4150-3 (1992-02) Structural vibration - Effects of vibration on structures (German Institute for Standardisation, 1999); and

(b) for human exposure, the acceptable vibration values set out in the Environmental Noise Management Assessing Vibration: a technical guideline (DEC, 2006) (as may be updated or replaced from time to time)."

Koikas Acoustics predict that ground during excavation and earthworks for the below-ground floor levels may impact on adjoining residences, however, by reference to Table 9 of their report the works associated with the Stage 1 works are to be undertaken at distances in excess of that identified in that table, the nearest minimum working distance being 23m (hydraulic hammer). The Koikas report also predicts that: "*The vibration generated from an excavator removing site soil during earthworks for the basement is not expected to result in structural damage or human annoyance to nearby receivers.*" (p.43)



## 8.4. Air Quality

Development Consent conditions D20-D21 set down the applicable air quality measures and requirements. Lloyd Group will seek to achieve the requirement of consent condition DC20 which states:

"D20. The Applicant must take all reasonable steps to minimise dust generated during all works authorised by this consent."

### 8.5. Noise and Vibration Measures

For the Stage 1 construction, the following noise and vibration mitigation measures are adopted, incorporating the recommendations made in the Koikas Acoustics report referred to above:

- All construction work to be undertaken strictly during the approved hours of operation, namely, 7.00am to 6.00pm Monday to Friday and 8:00am to 1:00pm on Saturdays.
- Development Consent condition D8 limits rock breaking, rock hammering, sheet piling, pile driving and similar activities may only be carried out between the following hours:
  - 9:00am to 12pm (noon), Monday to Friday;
  - 2:00pm to 5:00pm Monday to Friday; and
  - 9:00am to 12pm (noon), Saturday.
- All equipment to have manufacturers noise control equipment (exhaust/mufflers/sound proofing) in sound working condition. Daily plant maintenance checks to be carried out. Any plant, equipment or vehicles fitted with acoustic canopies shall be used with the canopy closed at all times whist operational.
- The use of moveable screens for specific work practices.
- Limits on time of rock hammering, sheet piling and the like.
- Use of appropriately sized plant and equipment to undertake the earthworks, excavation and allied tasks required as a part of the Stage 1 works.
- Limits on duration of noisy activities. For activities that may generate abnormal noise levels, local residents will be informed prior to commencement. Where possible, limit excessive noise generating activities to daylight hours.
- To minimise vibration from rock breaking, it is recommended that a hydraulic hammer attachment with a pointed 'cone' type hammer is used in place of a flat 'block' type hammer.
- Carry out progressive noise monitoring.
- Minimum work distances, as tabled within the Koikas acoustic report, should be observed at all times, especially regarding structural damage guidelines.
- Ongoing community liaison, to allow occupants of local residences in close proximity to the construction works, to plan and organise their week around any noisy activities.
  - All site personnel will be made aware of potential noise sources from their operations, the noise limits are to be observed inclusive of adaptation of mitigation measures. Construction operations will be conducted during approved hours, and within the requirements of all local noise regulations. All personnel will be advised of regulatory requirements regarding air and noise in work pre briefs.
  - In the event of a noise complaint the Project Manager must be informed. Noise monitoring may be conducted to confirm actual construction noise levels

## 8.6. Community Consultation

The local community has been provided the opportunity to provide feedback for the development via a letter box drop delivered on the 24<sup>th</sup> of May 2021, 24 business days have passed and we are yet to receive any commentary from the local community but if we receive any feedback we will review and implement feedback into our CEMP for the project.

Outline Planning Consultants have been engaged to provide a Community Communication Strategy for the Early Works and Stage 1. Amity College School SSD 9227 Community Communication Strategy has been provided in **Section 15 Appendix D** of this section and outlines items as required by **Condition C7** of the Development Consent Conditions.

As noted in this Communication Strategy, timeframes for providing notification to stakeholders for different types of works are as per the following table:

Works activity	Minimum community notification period						
Notification to communities following major incident	Same day						
Emergency works/unforeseen events	Same day						
Contamination management and notification	Within 48 hours						
Upcoming works notification (minimum disruption)	5-7 days						
Notifications regarding traffic changes, parking impacts, road closures, and/or detours	10-14 days						
Notifications regarding operational changes for the school community, applicable after the Stage 1 Primary School is operational (school drop-off points, entry and exit points)	10-14 days						
Notifications regarding major construction impacts or planned out of hours work	10-14 days						

This Communication Strategy has been provided to the Planning Department for information and provides mechanisms to facilitate communication between the Applicant, the relevant Council, and the community throughout each stage and for a minimum of 12 months following the completion of construction of each relevant stage.



### **Further Community Consultation**

The Community Communication Strategy also includes the below table containing methods and timeframes for responding to complaints and enquiries:

Type of complaint	Time it will take to acknowledge that complaint	Target response time
Telephone call made during business hours to either Amity College or construction management (if construction is underway)	<ul> <li>At time of call- agreement will be reached with caller as to estimated timeframe for resolution.</li> <li>Follow up call within 2 hours if the above timeframe cannot be reached.</li> </ul>	<ul> <li>Complaint to be closed out within 48 hours.</li> <li>If this is not possible, continue contact, escalate as required and resolve within 7 business days.</li> </ul>
Telephone call made outside of business hours to either Amity College or construction management (if construction is underway)	Within 2 hours of receiving message upon returning to office.	<ul> <li>Following acknowledgement, complaint to be closed out within 48 hours.</li> <li>If this is not possible, continue contact, escalate as required and resolve within 7 business days.</li> </ul>
Email received during business hours	At time of email (automatic response)	<ul> <li>Complaint to be closed out within 48 hours.</li> <li>If this is not possible, continue contact, escalate internally as required and resolve within 7 business days.</li> </ul>
Email received outside of business hours	At time of email (automatic response)	<ul> <li>Complaint to be closed out within 48 hours, once return to business hours.</li> <li>If this is not possible, continue contact, escalate internally as required and resolve within 7 business days.</li> </ul>
Enquiries (not complaints)		
Telephone call made during business hours to either Amity College or construction management (if construction is underway)	At time of call- agreement will be reached with caller as to estimated timeframe for resolution.	To be logged and closed out within 7 business days.
Telephone call made outside of business hours to either Amity College or construction management (if construction is underway)	Within 2 hours of receiving message upon returning to office.	To be logged and closed out within 7 business days.
Email received during business hours	At time of email (automatic response)	To be logged and closed out within 7 business days.
Notifications regarding major construction impacts or planned out of Email received outside of business hourshours work	At time of email (automatic response)	To be logged and closed out within 7 business days.
Letters	Not applicable	To be logged and closed out within 10 business days following receipt of the letter.

## 8.7. Air and Dust Control Measures

As per the Amity College Development Consent, condition C20, within three months of the issue of any construction certificate (not including demolition) for each relevant construction stage, Lloyd Group will ensure that a rainwater reuse/harvesting system for the development is developed for the site. A rainwater re-use plan must be prepared and certified by a suitably qualified hydraulic engineer and a copy of the plans submitted to the satisfaction of the Certifier.

In accordance with the *Amity College Development Consent (SSD 9227)*, condition D21, Lloyd Group will ensure that:

- a) Exposed surfaces and stockpiles are suppressed by regular watering;
- b) All trucks entering or leaving the site with loads have their loads covered;
- c) Trucks associated with the development do not track dirt onto the public road network;
- d) Public roads used by these trucks are kept clean; and
- e) Land stabilisation works are carried out progressively on site to minimise exposed surfaces.

Lloyd Group will also ensure the following, as part of the air and dust control plan:

- Dust control measures will be implemented on all unsealed trafficable areas considered to generate significant wind-blown or traffic generated dust emissions. Subject to availability recycled water will be used as preference to potable water. Recycled water will come from sources that meet relevant EPA requirements.
- Roadways and work areas will be watered using approved recycled water or approved privately sourced water, to minimised dust levels outside of working hours, as necessary.
- Movements on and offsite will be reduced as far as possible during wet weather. Mud on roads will be removed by sweeping or using shovels.
- In extreme wind conditions, construction activities may need to cease until conditions improve.
- No burning off is permitted on site.
- Where appropriate, vehicle engines not in use for a period exceeding 20 minutes will be turned off to reduce greenhouse gas emissions and unnecessary noise.
- All fumes to be exhausted to open air will be released through a mobile ventilation system.
- All items of plant and equipment to be in good working order and regularly serviced to reduce exhaust emissions.
- Construction equipment will be properly maintained to ensure exhaust emissions are minimised. If visible smoke can be seen from any equipment (while working on a construction site) for longer than 10 seconds duration, the equipment will be taken out of service and adequately repaired or tuned so the smoke is no longer visible for periods longer than 10 seconds.

## 8.8. Handling of Noise/Vibration Complaints

A site contact and phone number will be distributed to all surrounding premises and displayed on the site noticeboard for any complaints arising du e to noise and/or vibration generated during construction works.

Lloyd Group will have clear complaints handling procedure and staff who are well-versed in the complaints handling procedure of construction works. A register of all noise, dust and vibration complaints will be kept on site and be readily available for inspection, with copies regularly provided to Amity College representatives.

Details of the complaints register are to include details of the following:

- The date and time of the complaint.
- The person receiving a complaint.
- Complainant phone number and/or email address.
- Site contact who the complaint was referred to for action.
- Description of the complaint.
- Action to be taken to address the complaint and the time frame for action to be implemented.

All complaints should be given a fair hearing and adequately investigated. This may involve scheduling a relevant consultant to substantiate or refute any received complaint, and/or verifying any remedial action taken by the site manager by way of on-site testing.

## 8.9. Monitoring of Performance

Lloyd Group will be responsible for providing to Amity College details of the operations undertaken, including results of any and all noise or vibration monitoring, incidents and accidents, details of discussions with the local council and the community, unexpected finds, complaints and actions taken in response to complaints, as well as details of material removed from or imported into the site.

During the approved working hours it is anticipated that works will be carefully managed and appropriate noise mitigating measures will be strictly implemented where required.

It is recommended that close communication be maintained with potential sensitive noise and vibration receptors throughout the project.

Acoustic consultants will be engaged to undertake such an assessment and provide an acoustic and vibration report. The report should identify the formulated criteria for disruptive noise, natural background levels recorded from adjoining properties, foreseeable construction associated noise levels, standards and specific guidance.

As part of Lloyd Group's site setup, Contact Details of relevant site staff are displayed at the street Notice board in the event of any member of the community wishing to provide feedback or opportunities for improvement in regards to performance of noise/vibrations.

Project meetings are also held on a regular basis throughout projects and are an opportunity for Clients, consultants and other parties to identify and raise any potential improvements. Should there be any urgent matters, it is encouraged that either the PM or Site Manager is notified immediately to rectify its cause.

## 9. Construction Waste & Other Impacts Management

## 9.1. Overview: Waste Management Generally

Lloyd Group is committed to reducing the amount of waste generated onsite and uses the EPA wastes hierarchy to achieve this aim. The wastes hierarchy is an order of preference and states that waste should be managed in accordance with the hierarchy, with avoidance being the most preferred option and disposal being the least.

- No littering of the Project Site will be tolerated.
- Brief all employees on waste minimisation, management, and disposal prior to works proceeding as part of the Site Induction.
- Brief all suppliers on waste minimisation, management, and disposal of packaging. Where possible suppliers to provide products free of packaging.
- Provide appropriate waste storage containers with secure lids to prevent fauna access.
- Construction waste such as concrete, steel, brick rubble and wood is to be separated for recycling.
- Putrescible waste to be regularly disposed of to landfill.
- Cigarette butts are to be disposed of in bins appropriately.
- Residues and containers to be stored in designated areas protected from stormwater drains.
- Chemical residues, packaging, and used containers are to be disposed of in accordance with the relevant SDS.
- Portable toilets are to be emptied regularly and waste disposed off site by a licensed Contractor in accordance with local Council and EPA requirements.
- Contaminated materials (e.g. soil contaminated with oils) to be appropriately stored and contained on site and disposed or relocated at the direction of the Environmental Delegate. NB: such material may require laboratory testing prior to determining where it can be disposed.
- Spent absorbent materials will be bagged and stored in a suitable storage container labelled accordingly. Full containers will be removed by a licensed contractor to a licensed landfill.
- Stormwater collected in bunds is to be visually inspected for contamination (i.e. a sheen) prior to release onto a hardstand area away from stormwater pits.
- No on-site dumping and burning is permitted.
- All vehicles carrying loads of dry soil, rock, concrete or vegetation will be loaded to a level and then appropriately covered such that spillage and dust dispersal during travel is minimised.
- Upon removal of site facilities, areas are to be left clean and tidy.
- Debris & sediment collected behind sediment controls is to be re-used where possible (e.g. rehabilitation works) or disposed of to a designated spoil site.

## 9.2. Contaminated Waste Management

All materials generated on site during either demolition or excavations are to be fully evaluated for potential contamination. This process is to be scheduled with the Project Manager and/or Site Manager on an as needs basis.

Should contaminated wastes be evident (e.g. asbestos, hydrocarbons, etc.), the client will be advised so that arrangements can be made for the engagement of appropriately qualified specialists in hazardous materials handling.

Any contaminated waste will be managed in accordance with the Site WHS Plan requirements.

As per the Amity College Development Consent, condition C6 and C38 prior to the commencement of construction Lloyd Group will ensure to implement the unexpected contamination finds protocols provided at Section 10 of the Remediation Action Plan titled '*Remediation Action Plan – Proposed New Amity College Campus, Lot 1 DP 525996 No 85 Byron Road and Lot 2 DP 525996 No 63 Ingleburn Road Leppington NSW*', dated 30/5/2019 prepared by GeoEnviro Consultancy to ensure that potentially contaminated material is appropriately managed.

Any material identified as contaminated is to be disposed off-site, the disposal location and results of testing submitted to the Planning Secretary prior to its removal from the site.

Disposal of prescribed waste/contaminated materials, including contaminated spoil shall be under the following controls:

- Use of licensed prescribed waste contractors and vehicles;
- Advising waste contractors of waste composition and any special hazards associated with the waste;
- Retention of waste transport certificates.

### 9.2.1. Asbestos

If asbestos is identified on this site a qualified hygienist may be engaged to provide advice on the management procedures required to effectively manage asbestos onsite. The client will be asked to provide a report showing all known locations for existing asbestos within the site boundary. The following controls will be implemented:

- Areas already identified as containing asbestos will be identifiable on site via appropriate signage. All
  employees working on site will be briefed of the presence of asbestos in these areas via a toolboxmeeting
  and/or in the site induction.
- Where required an Asbestos Management Plan may be developed as a subsidiary document to this Environmental Management Plan.
- Any grey fibrous cement materials observed on site, and not previously identified as an asbestos contaminated area, must be treated as asbestos-cement materials, or sampled for asbestos fibres.
- Any pipe or other lagging or insulation identified on site that cannot be positively identified as synthetic mineral fibre (SMF) material, polystyrene foam or brown hessian organic fabric should be treated as asbestos lagging.
- If asbestos is suspected of being found during construction activities, works in the immediate vicinity are to cease immediately. Works are not to recommence in that area until confirmation by the way of a hygienist report that has confirmed the type of material.

## 9.3. Waste Water/Washout Areas

Washout processes and facilities for paint and/or finishing trades are to be minimised and water recycling for these activities are encouraged where possible. Finishing trades washout facilities should **NOT** be plumbed to any building services and will be of a stand-alone nature. The maintenance of these facilities should be the subcontractor's responsibility and should comply with all appropriate Environmental Legislation and local authority guidelines.

## 9.4. Packaging

All suppliers of building materials will be encouraged to nominate packaging minimisation and reuse initiatives, which have been implemented, as part of product supply to the project. Bulk handling and reusable transport containers will be encouraged. Methods can include:

Original Packaging	Recyclable Packaging
Shrink wrapping	Metal strapping
Plastic packaging	Paper packaging
Foam packaging	Shredded paper

## 9.5. Recycled Materials

Suppliers will be encouraged to nominate products that include a recycled component (e.g. using concrete with recycled aggregate) and ability/opportunity for recycling of unused components in accordance with the specified 80% waste reduction target. aspect and Impact Register

At the start of each project a Project Safety & Environmental Risk Assessment is completed. It includes environmental aspects and impacts.

## 9.6. Contaminated Material Disposal

In accordance with the Amity College Development Consent, condition C30, prior to the commencement of the removal of any waste material from the site, Lloyd Group will notify the TfNSW Traffic Management Centre of the truck route(s) to be followed by trucks transporting waste material from the site.

- Fuelling, maintenance and cleaning of vehicles and construction plant will not be carried out in areas from which fuel or oil may be discharged to street gutters or storm water drainage systems. The location of such activities needs to be fully considered so as to minimise the potential for spillage into sensitive receptors.
- Storage of fuel, oils, chemicals on site will be held to an absolute minimum. No such materials shall be stored on site without the permission of the Site Manager. The location of these shall be well clear of trafficable areas in case of collision. A spill kit will be kept in close proximity.
- Where practical impervious bunds (or a similar retention system) may be constructed around all fuel or
  oil storage areas to ensure retention of not less the 110 per cent of the capacity of the largest tank in
  each bund. Drums and tanks containing oil or other pollutants will be stored within impervious bunds.
  Suitable barriers shall be erected along bund walls to prevent elevated storage tanks and drums stored
  more than 2 drum heights, from falling outside of bunded areas. Adequate absorption materials shall
  be readily available to collect and recover any liquid spillages.
- Dry methods of spillage clean-up will be used wherever possible. Bunded fuel areas will not be fitted with valves or drains but shall be graded to pump out sump. Oil contaminated storm water and/or soil will be disposed of to a licensed disposal site where relevant.
- Fuelling construction plant will not be carried out without an operator or driver being in attendance at all times. Road going vehicles will not be fuelled on site.



- All spillage on to sealed areas will be cleaned up as quickly as practical and placed into suitable receptacles for reclamation or disposal in a manner that does not cause pollution of the environment.

### 9.7. Hazardous Materials (Fuels & Chemicals) Transport, Storage & Handling

- The storage and handling of fuels and chemicals will comply with all relevant legislation
- SDS's will be obtained when purchasing chemicals and will be available to all personal on-site for all chemicals stored and handled.
- Contaminated soils that are Prescribed Industrial Wastes (PIW) must be transported by appropriately permitted trucks with a relevant Waste Transport Certificate, or local authority equivalent, completed for each load, and disposed of at a suitably licensed site in accordance with the local Environmental Regulatory Authority.
- Minimal volumes of fuels and chemicals will be stored onsite. If required to be stored in the work area, liquid chemicals will be bunded to 110% of the total volume stored.
- Batteries are to be located in clearly defined areas. Batteries are to be sealed units to prevent acid spills (where possible). Batteries are to be charged in well ventilated areas.
- Spill response equipment will be located at various locations around the site during the construction and must be carried in all fuel transport vehicles/trailers.
- Inspection of fuel and chemical storage areas are to be undertaken daily.
- Drivers of fuel and chemical transport vehicles to the sites will be trained in the procedures for emergency response for spills.
- Persons handling chemicals will be provided with appropriate training and personal protective equipment.
   The operator must be present during re-fuelling operation.
- Vehicles carrying fuel for the purpose of refuelling other vehicles shall be clearly identifiable, have the fuel stored in approved containers and have a hydrocarbon spill kit on board.
- Re-fuelling areas will not be within 100m of any natural drainage line and will be within bunded areas (where possible).
- Products to be stored in designated areas only such that soil/water is not contaminated (e.g. cement products to be stored in weather proof area).
- Flammables are to be stored in approved storage areas and placarded appropriately.
- All drums/containers for use must be adequately labelled and made of appropriate material.
- Fire extinguishers to be available at storage areas where flammables are stored.
- In the event of a spill, a spill kit will be used to clean up immediately. If this is not possible the relevant authorities will be contacted.

In addition to the above, and as required by Amity College Development Consent, conditions D28 to D31:

"D28.All waste generated during construction must be secured and maintained within designated waste storage areas at all times and must not leave the site onto neighbouring public or private properties.

D29. All waste generated during construction must be assessed, classified and managed in accordance with the Waste Classification Guidelines Part 1: Classifying Waste (EPA, 2014).



D30. The Applicant must ensure that concrete waste and rinse water are not disposed of on the site and are prevented from entering any natural or artificial watercourse.

D31. The Applicant must record the quantities of each waste type generated during construction and the proposed reuse, recycling and disposal locations for the duration of construction."

### 9.8. Site Facilities Management

- Sediment control will be implemented in temporary laydown areas as required.
- All areas of the site are to be left neat and tidy, uncluttered with debris, random construction materials, plant and equipment etc.
- Vehicle, plant, and equipment laydown areas are to be established within designated areas only.
- Office, workshop and storage areas are to be maintained at regular intervals.
- Dust suppression by water sprays to be undertaken in site facility areas (as required). Where possible dewatering water or recycled water will be utilised as dust suppression.
- Fuel and chemical storage areas managed and maintained.
- Products to be stored such that soil / water are not contaminated (e.g. fuel and chemical storage and cement products to be protected from weather).
- No trapping of animals is to occur.

## 9.9. Noxious Weeds Management

- Mitigation measures will be implemented to prevent the spread of listed noxious weeds both on and off site.
- Vehicles and plant will be isolated from heavily affected areas if the area is not within the construction footprint in the form of fencing/barricading that will be affixed with signage.
- Fencing/barricading and signage will be inspected as part of the environmental Inspection to ensure appropriate segregation is maintained.
- Vehicles/plant to stick to designated crushed rock haul roads.
- Topsoil on site will not be transported offsite without being treated first.
- Plant/machinery will be inspected prior to entering and exiting site to ensure weed seeds are not being transported on or off site.

## 10. Construction Soil and Water Management Plan

## 10.1. Overview

Soil and water management controls are to be effectively maintained at all times during the course of construction of all stages of the school project and are not to be removed until each stage is satisfactorily completed. The following overarching objectives apply to the prevention of erosion and sediment run-off from the project site:

- To ensure that the water quality of the downstream environment is not worsened by the site development.
- Minimise sediment transport in surface water runoff. In this regard it is proposed to install storm water drains and sediment basins in and around the project site.
- Adequate provisions to be made to collect and discharge stormwater as required by Amity College Development Consent, condition D25 and C27.
- There must be no increase in stormwater runoff from the site to downstream properties, including No. 69 Ingleburn Road, during construction, as required by Amity College Development Consent, condition D23.
- All earthworks, drainage and erosion and sediment controls must be undertaken in accordance with the engineering drawings and technical notes prepared by Martens & Associates accompanying the Stage 1 works tender package. Refer **Figures 1.2, 1.3, 1.4, 10.1** and to **Section 12 Appendix A** for details.



## FIGURE 10.1: Early Works Sediment & Erosion Control Works (Source: Martens & Associates 24 April 2021- refer Appendix A)

### **ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENTPLAN**

Further confirmation satisfying consent condition C27(a) below from Terry Harvey Project Manager / Senior Engineer BEng (civil) Martens & Associates Pty Ltd

MA response:

- See attached correspondences with Council regarding on-site and off-site stormwater management.
- Council has requested that interim drainage along Byron Road (i.e. to divert site upstream catchment) needs to be addressed and approved by Council to avoid internal and external adverse flooding impacts including peak flows discharged to Scalabrine Creek drainage reserve (i.e. site downstream). All Council requirements related to this have been satisfied.
- Site Construction Soil and Water Management Plans have been prepared to address all Council requirements and are in accordance with Landcom's "Blue Book".
- Additionally, Section 138 road work plans have been prepared and submitted to Council to address and fulfill the above requirements of soil and stormwater management related to off-site overland flows.

## COUNCIL / MARTENS CORRESPONDENCE ON THE NEXT PAGE

### ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT PLAN

From:	Faraj Gibbs <faraj.gibbs@camden.nsw.gov.au></faraj.gibbs@camden.nsw.gov.au>
Sent:	Thursday, 18 March 2021 3:43 PM
To:	Terry Harvey
Cc:	David Atkin; Brendan Stokes
Subject:	RE: 6493: Byron Road queries to Council in relation to S138 approval

Hi

Byron Road is currently at the detailed design stage, being managed by Council Infrastructure Planning Engineer **Brendan Stokes** (cc). The proposed road section will change from that indicated in the WSP Preliminary Concept Design. A shared path is proposed along the 85 Byron Road frontage.

Council does not support the creation of a temporary overland flow path within the site. Although an interim scenario, channelised flows would render the site affected by mainstream flooding as well as below flood planning level. Interim overland flows from the major road need to be retained within the existing major road reserve. The applicant needs to provide a temporary frontage and drainage system at Byron Road

Regards

### Faraj Gibbs

Infrastructure Planning Engineer



This mail,

including any attached files, may contain confidential and privileged information for the sole use of the intended recipient(s). If you are not the intended recipient (or authorised to receive information for the recipient), please contact the sender by reply e-mail and delete all copies of this message. Any views or opinions presented are solely those of the author.

From: Terry Harvey <THarvey@martens.com.au>

Sent: Thursday, 18 March 2021 12:39 PM

To: Faraj Gibbs <Faraj.Gibbs@camden.nsw.gov.au>

Cc: David Atkin <david.atkin@camden.nsw.gov.au>; Thang Ma <Thang.Ma@camden.nsw.gov.au>; Brendan Stokes

### **ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT PLAN**

<Brendan.Stokes@camden.nsw.gov.au>; Peter Reed <preed@granassociates.com.au>; Gary Peacock <gpeacock@outline.com.au>; 'Douglas Kennedy' <dkennedy@granassociates.com.au>; 'Andrew Romanczuk' <aromanczuk@granassociates.com.au>; Sina Arbabzadeh <sarbabzadeh@martens.com.au>; Anna Wong <awong@martens.com.au>

Subject: FW: 6493: Byron Road queries to Council in relation to S138 approval

#### Hi Faraj,

We are currently undertaking Byron Road design works in accordance with SSD 9227 consent conditions B2, B4 & B7 and B14.

We would appreciate Council's feedback on two design intentions within Byron Road which will be subject to a S138 Roads Act approval, these being:

- 1. Byron Road formation
- 2. Temporary retaining/swale along the school boundary.

### 1. Byron Road formation

Condition B2 states:

 details of a 2.5m wide shared path along the north-western verge of Byron Road for future cyclist movement;

We note that condition B2(c) requirements differs from the WSP concept design for Byron Road. The following images outline the difference between the typical Section noted by the **WSP concept design** and the **Camden Growth Centre Precincts DCP (Figure 3-12: Typical collector road)**:

Comments:

- The approved road reserve width (approved site boundary) does not allow for the typical collector road to be
  provided based on the WSP concept design, which does not consider a 2.5m shared footpath (shown in figures
  below).
- We suggest the 2.5m wide footpath is constructed adjacent the Byron Road kerb (i.e no 1.5m planting) to allow the 2.5m sharepath.
- The attached sketch plans with notated cross sections demonstrates the suggested Byron Road design for Council's confirmation.
- There will likely be a need to consider pedestrian safety (temporarily) where no kerb is proposed between Byron Road and the sharepath. Does Council have a preferred method of separation?

We would appreciate Council's feedback prior to issuing road designs for \$138 approval.

### Camden Growth Centre Precincts DCP (Figure 3-12: Typical collector road)

## **ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT PLAN**



Figure 3-12: Typical collector road (off road cycle path)

WSP concept design:

### ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT PLAN



 details of a footpath connection from the site, along Byron Road to the existing bus stop on Ingleburn Road;

### 2. Temporary berm/swale along the school boundary:

To allow permanent site works to be constructed on the School site which considers both the existing and future Byron Road constructed levels, we suggest a temporary berm (approx. 0.6m high) along a limited section of the site boundary.

This will remove the need for considerable future site works (reinstalling an electrical substation, hydrants, retaining walls, grading and landscaping) once Byron Road is constructed.

Comments:

- 0.6m berm along boundary (top of berm matches ultimate Byron Road/ site levels). Future Byron Road
  reserve is to be constructed (filled) up to the top of berm to form the future Byron Road verge. (See
  attached sketch).
- A temporary drainage swale would be located along the site boundary (within the road reserve) to convey the minor flows from the small catchment area (see sketch below and sections attached).

We would appreciate Council's feedback prior to issuing road designs for S138 approval.

### **ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT PLAN**



Kind Regards,

Terry Harvey Project Manager / Senior Engineer BEng (civil)



Marlens & Associates Pty Ltd Suite 201, 20 George St Hornsby, NSW 2077 P + 61 2 9476 8989 F + 61 2 9476 8767 www.martens.com.au

### **ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT PLAN**

Further confirmation satisfying consent condition C27(e) below

### MA response:

- All soil and stormwater management measures have been design to cater for all site generated flows up to and including the 10% AEP (1 in 10 year) storm events as per following:
- Proposed earth bank (to divert upstream catchment) sized for 1% AEP flows. Refer to response to C27(a).
- Proposed earth bank (site high flows) sized for 1% AEP flows. Refer to PS06-B311 for details.
- Proposed sediment basin sized based on blue book for 10% AEP (1in 10 year) storm event. Refer to PS06-B302 for details.
- Proposed earth bank (within basement excavation) and drainage pipe designed to cater for 1% AEP.

## COUNCIL / MARTENS CORRESPONDENCE ON THE NEXT PAGE

### **ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT PLAN**

#### Joseph Elley

From:	Sina Arbabzadeh <sarbabzadeh@martens.com.au></sarbabzadeh@martens.com.au>
Sent:	Wednesday, 3 February 2021 4:28 PM
To:	Faraj Gibbs
Cc:	Thang Ma; David Atkin; Brendan Stokes; Gary Peacock; Terry Harvey
Subject:	RE: 6493: Amity engineering works proposal

Faraj,

Thanks for your email, We have finished the conceptual hydraulic assessment for the site with the following assumptions and as suggested and confirmed by you earlier:

- Site trunk drainage has been modelled in DRAINS model (as per the condition B14) in order to demonstrate the overland routes and pit and pipe capacities up to 1% AEP.
- Upstream catchments (existing upstream properties and undeveloped Byron Road) has been considered in our catchment analysis and to demonstrate the existing Byron Road drainage capacity and any possible overlaps and the subject site.
- OSD pre/post results demonstrated to ensure no adverse impacts on downstream properties and compliance with Council engineering specifications.

Can you please confirm the followings:

- Prepared design will be submitted to the Certifier as per condition of consent B14. Brendan previously
  requested the submission of design to Council for the assessment.
- The prepared concept hydraulic assessment drawing plans along with DRAINS model will be submitted to the certifying authority.

Regards

#### Sina Arbabzadeh | Senior Engineer & Technical Team Leader

T 02 9476 9999 | F 02 9476 8767 | W www.martens.com.au Suite 201, 20 George Street, Hornsby, NSW 2077

## martens

#### civil | water | geotechnical | environment | projects

Matters & Associates Pty Ltd
The message is intended for the addressee nomed and may contain confidential / privileged information. If you are not the intended recipient, prease detet
is and notify the sender. Yawa approach in the message are those of the individual sender, and are not necessarily the view of Matters & Associates Pty Ltd
(our should some validance) the for views.

Please consider the environment before printing this em

From: Faraj Gibbs <Faraj, Gibbs@camden.nsw.gov.au> Sent: Monday, 1. February 2021 1:31 PM To: Sina Arbabzadeh <sarbabzadeh@martens.com.au> Cc: Thang Ma <Thang. Ma@camden.nsw.gov.au>; David Atkin <david.atkin@camden.nsw.gov.au>; Brendan Stokes

1

<Brendan.Stokes@camden.nsw.gov.au> Subject: RE: 6493: Amity engineering works proposal

#### Sina

Can you please clarify in writing your outstanding concerns and issues in relation to the DA and associated conditions?

```
Regards
```



This mail, including any attached files, may contain confidential and privileged information for the sole use of the intended recipient(s). If you are not the intended recipient (or authorised to receive information for the recipient), please contact the sender by reply e-mail and delete all copies of this message. Any views or opinions presented are solely those of the author.

## 10.2. Sediment & Erosion Control Plan

The sediment and erosion controls measures accord with the requirements of the relevant guidelines, including *Managing Urban Stormwater Soils and Construction*, 4th Edition published by Landcom (the so-called 'Blue Book'), as set down in the Martens & Associates plans and technical notes in **Section 12 Appendix A**.

The following outlines the procedures that will be implanted to address C29 of the consent conditions. These are the key features of the sediment and erosion control plan for the Stage 1 works, summarised from the technical notes prepared by Martens & Associates, consulting engineers for the Stage 1 works program:

- All runoff and erosion controls are to be installed before any works are carried out at the site.
- Lloyd Group shall protect overland flow paths, drains, adjoining land and downstream water quality from sedimentation, especially during periods of wet weather. Accordingly, sediment and erosion control measures must be implemented prior to excavation and maintained during construction.
- Lloyd Group shall regularly maintain SEC devices and remove accumulated silt from such devices before no more than 60% of their sediment storage capacity is lost.
- Areas of site disturbance are to be minimised at any one time with development staged such that a new area is not to commence until the previous disturbed area is fully stabilised.
- Lloyd Group will protect overland flow paths and drains identified by by Martens & Associates in the above, as well as adjoining land and downstream water quality from sedimentation. Accordingly, sediment and erosion control measures must be implemented prior to excavation and maintained during construction.
- All contaminated surface waters and debris from the site, including water from any de-watering of excavated areas, must be screened, collected and pollutants captured within the site.
- Stormwater inlets and drains receiving stormwater must be always protected during work on site.
- Movement of water must be controlled by diverting upslope clean surface runoff (via diversion drains and sediment fencing) around the disturbed areas.
- Erosion and sediment control measures must be maintained in good working order and be repaired or replaced throughout the course of works on site.
- Stockpiles of topsoil, sand, aggregate, spoil, or other material shall be stored clear of any drainage path or
  easement, natural watercourse, footpath, kerb or road surface and shall have measures in place to the
  satisfaction of the superintendent acting reasonably, to prevent the movement of such material off site, in
  particular during wet weather.
- Lloyd Group will commence rehabilitation immediately following any site disturbance including regrading, formation and revegetation works. Disturbed areas to be rehabilitated shall be regularly water revegetated areas until effective cover has properly established, and vegetation is growing vigorously. Maintenance is to continue until all vegetation is well established and independent of further water applications. Areas of site disturbance are to be minimised at any one time with development staged such that a new area is not to commence until the previous disturbed area is fully stabilised. Areas requiring rehabilitation, topsoiling and grass seeding are identified in the accompanying Figure 10.2.
- Storage of equipment during wet weather conditions will be confined to within the construction compound fronting Byron Road.



## FIGURE 10.2: Rehabilitation Areas (shaded green)

(Source: Gran Associates)

## 10.3. Soil Management Generally

At all stages of the works are to comply with the Martens & Associates Civil documents control plans for the Stage 1 works program- refer **Section 12 Appendix A**.

During excavation works the following controls will be implemented:

- Excavated spoil will be stockpiled in 2m high mounds and covered or grass seeded to minimised dust generation.
- Stockpiles will be located away from hazards such as areas of concentrated flow, waterways, channels, gutters, drains, and steep slopes. Spoil will not be placed where it is likely to fall or wash into roads, gutters or drains.

- Topsoil will be stockpiled separately from general excavated material so that it may be used when rehabilitating the site.
- Any soil to be excavated and disposed offsite, that is known to be contaminated, will be done so in accordance with relevant Environmental Authority Guidelines.
- Contaminated soils must be transported by appropriately permitted trucks where relevant, with a Waste Transport Certificate (Australia only) completed for each load; and disposed of at a suitably licensed site in accordance with the relevant Environmental legislation.
- The number and size of soil stockpiles will be minimised.
- Soil stockpiles will not impede natural or constructed surface drainage channels or access tracks and will be confined to designated areas within the construction corridor and will be appropriately separated based on soil layers and contamination status.
- Soil stockpiles to be monitored and environmental controls installed as appropriate.
- Every attempt will be made to re-establish vegetation as soon as practicable after reinstatement earthworks to stabilise exposed soils. Erosion and sediment control structures will be retained during reinstatement until vegetation is established.
- Excavation within identified acid sulphate soil areas will be avoided in the first instance. If avoidance is not possible or an unexpected encounter occurs work will be temporarily postponed in the area until management measures can be implemented.
- Any soil to be disposed off-site (regardless of whether it is contaminated or otherwise) will be classified according to Environmental Regulator Guidelines and consigned to the appropriately licensed facility.
- If asbestos fragments are identified within excavated soil a qualified removalist will be engaged to remove the asbestos, or the soil will be transported offsite.

## 10.4. Road Maintenance

- Road cleaners will be engaged to clean roads as required.
- Cattle grates are to be installed where required.
- Wheel wash facilities may also be implemented where required.

### 10.5. Storm Flows

Storm flow calculations and details are contained in Drawing PS06-B302, prepared by consulting engineers Martens & Associates- refer **Section 12 Appendix A** for details. The calculations have been based on an assessment of storm flows and sediment basin capacities for the catchments illustrated in accompanying **Figure 10.3**.

Assessment will be made of the site area ground water catchments. Temporary dish drains may be established to direct water runoff. The drains will have straw bales and gravel to retain silt at intermittent points.

At any discharge point to the site stormwater system the pit lids are to be covered with shade cloth, filter fabric or silt socks.

The downhill sides of the site fence may have shade cloth filter fabric to a height of 300mm if the directional flow of water travels through the fence enclosure.

The new stormwater system will be installed and commissioned as early as possible to minimise the period of uncontrolled roof and road water. The fence and drainage controls will be maintained on a regular basis to ensure effectiveness.



During wet weather events plant activity will be slowed on site, care to wash down vehicles prior to exiting site will take place, any mud on the road will be cleaned regularly as well as street sweeping after the event to ensure roads remain clean of debris.

During a flood event all plant activities on site would stop, leading up to the event all sediment controls would be reviewed and reinforced where possible including temporary sand bagging over site entry to maintain where possible full barrier from inside the site to the outside.



FIGURE 10.3: Early Works Sediment Basin Catchment Plan

(Source: Martens & Associates 24 April 2021- refer Appendix A)

## 10.6. Concrete Agitator Wash down

Concrete agitator chutes, where possible, will be washed down off site. Where this is not possible, they will be washed down in a designated area. Sediment will be contained and disposed of with waste materials in the designated waste bins and removed by waste recycling contractor. Alternatively, chutes will be washed into sealable container or drum located on the concrete truck. The concrete residue is then treated or recycled back into the concrete plant.

## 11. Environment Management Framework

The following section outlines the framework that will be used by Organisation to manage, document, and report on environmental issues at the site.

## 11.1. Subcontractor Management

Sub-contractors are required to always comply with the provisions of the Environmental Management Plan. This will be documented by each sub-contractor or the nominated site representative for each organisation by the Site Induction Form which forms part of the HSEQ compliance system. Sub-contractor's environmental performance obligations shall be incorporated into sub-contractor's contract for works to be undertaken at the site.

## 11.2. Monitoring and Inspections

Monitoring and inspection of the site will be carried out by means of weekly site meetings and site safety and environmental walk. These measures will be used to identify areas of non-conformance and / or opportunities for improvement. Monitoring and / or inspections required on a more frequent basis by the Environmental Management Plan will be conducted as required and reviewed in the weekly site meeting.

## 11.3. Non-conformances

Non-conformance to the environmental procedures at the site must be addressed on the same day that they are identified. Any member of the Lloyd Group team including but not limited to Project Manager, Contracts Administrator, Site Manager or HSEQ Manager are permitted to raise non-conformances. Once identified as a non-conformance, a formal non-conformance must be issued on the day of the identification through HammerTech to the subcontractor or company responsible for rectifying the issue.

An example of this proforma is included in Section 16 Appendix E of this report.

The party receiving the non-conformance must either close out or provide a method of rectification (including time for rectification) to close out the issue within 24 hours of receiving the Non-Conformance. Upon review by the Project Manager, in the event this timeframe is not achieved satisfactorily; further action through contract notices will be implemented as required.

The non-conformance must be documented using the Hammertech Online Safety Management System.

On a project level, the Project Manager is responsible for tracking, raising, reviewing rectification methods and closing out of non-conformances.

The Site Manager is responsible for monitoring the project to identify non-conformances and closing out the non-conformances satisfactorily.

Through Hammertech, notifications of non-conformances are instantly provided to Lloyd's HSEQ team and will be provided attention as necessary by the NSW HSEQ manager.

Hammertech requires a member of Lloyd Group to mark the non-conformance as resolved to close out the issue.

Non-conformances are also reported weekly to the Superintendent and Principal as part of Lloyds weekly reporting and may be communicated further depending on the nature of the issue. Weekly Reports will contain tracking statistics showing number of open, closed and total non-conformances on the project.

## 11.4. Environmental Measuring and Test Equipment

Measuring and test equipment used on site to monitor the environment is to be appropriately identified, calibrated, maintained, and stored. Such equipment includes, but is not limited to:

- Air monitoring equipment.
- Noise monitoring equipment.

Records of current calibration for such equipment are to be provided by the service provider prior to use on site. Equipment found to be out of calibration will be removed from service until recalibrated.

Items used for indicative purposes only (e.g., applications on smartphones) will not be calibrated. These items may be used to identify the need for formal monitoring or the introduction of specific controls.

Workers using measuring and test equipment used for monitoring the environment will be trained in its use.

### 11.5. Community Relations and Emergency Site Contacts

Where complaints are made by the community or other third parties directly to Organisation or subcontractors directly under its control, these will be forwarded to the Project Manager, Site Manager and/or HSEQ Manager. The complaint will be recorded on HammerTech.

NAME	POSITION	EMAIL	PHONE
Joseph Elley	Project Manager	Joseph.Elley@lloydgroup.com.au	0408 848 050
Michael Pearce	Site Manager	Michael.pearce@lloydgroup.com.au	0421 945 106

## 11.6. Training

All personnel working on the site during the construction activities will receive a site induction to explain the relevant environmental and safety hazards, environmental and safety protocols, sensitivities and emergency procedures for the site. The content of the induction program will be specific to the project and endorsed by the Organisation Site Manager responsible for the site and will be presented by the Site Manager or a delegated representative.

Training is recorded through the Training and Skills Plan found in Section 18 Appendix G

Each subcontractor is responsible for providing their employees with the relevant training and supervision, so they have the necessary competency and skills to undertake their responsibilities.

## 11.7. Environmental Complaints

Any environmental complaints that are received are logged in the Site Manager's Diary. All complaints are investigated and consultation with the complainant will occur. The resolution of the complaint is documented and communicated back to the complainant. Full co-operation is given to any Regulatory Authorities that may be involved in investigating a complaint by an external party.



## 11.8. Tendering

During the contract tendering phase the project environmental requirements will be addressed and noted within the Tender Interview document which forms part of the Purchase Order engaging the Subcontractor. This includes, as appropriate, information about potential significant environmental impacts associated with the transportation or delivery, use, end-of-life treatment and final disposal of products and services.

The contract documentation issued to the Tenderer will include all relevant parts of the Project Contract Documents, including relevant sections of Preliminaries and General Requirements.

## 11.9. Environmental Emergency Management

An environmental incident may include a spillage or major leak, failure of a pollution control device such as a bund, major settlement, collapse of a bank or embankment, impact to water quality, fire, impact to soil quality, off-site noise and/or prolonged generation of construction dust.

In an emergency all works will cease and the approved Emergency Response Plan will be activated.

### Refer: Emergency Management Plan Section 17 Appendix F

The HSEQ Manager is responsible for reviewing changes and instructing the relevant Organisation representative as to the document updates required. HSEQ Manager is also responsible for deciding whether an occurrence is an incident. Relevant changes will then be communicated across the organisation.

Information regarding updates to legal and other requirements will be gathered from the following sources:

- Regulatory Authority Alerts;
- Master Builders Association Victoria (membership).
- Environmental Protection Agency

The following authorities may be required to be contacted in the event of an emergency:

ORGANISATION	CONTACT DETAILS									
Fire / Police / Ambulance	Emergency hotline	000								
Camden Council	Authorisations, notices	(02) 4654 7777								
NSW - Environmental Protection Authority	Info and pollution	131 555								
Sydney Water	Authorisations, notices	132092 (from NSW) or 1300 143 734 (from interstate)								

## 11.10. Access to Legislation

Workers on site have access to relevant Health and Safety Acts, Regulations, Australian Standards, Codes of Practice and other documentation relevant to health and safety. This is communicated to each worker at the time of induction.



ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT PLAN

## 12. Appendix A – Stage 1 Works Tender Drawings and Technical Notes

GRAN ASSOCIATES AUSTRALIA ARCHITECTS ABN 46 115 243 073 LEVEL 1, 597 DARLING STREET ROZELLE NSW 2039 PH +61 2 9818 8437

Nominated Architects PETER REED, RAIA, AIA PR I N CI PA L NSW REG. 5377 ANTHONY KEMENY, FRAIA DIRECTOR NSW REG. 4599

DOCUMENT TRANSMITTAL / REGISTER

PTY LTD

### JOB No: 1803

## PROJECT: AMITY COLLEGE LEPPINGTON - TENDER STAGE 1 DRAWINGS ARCHITECTUAL

DOCUMENT TRANSMITTAL	DAY	12	16						
Refer separate Document	MONTH	8	8						
Transmittal Sheet OR Email	YEAR	21	21						

No	DRAWING/DOCUMENT TITLE										
A-000	COVER SHEET AND DRAWING LIST	Α	в				1	1	1		
A-001	SITE PLAN	Α	в								
A-011	GRID SETOUT PLAN		в								
A-101	BASEMENT OVERAL PLAN	Α	в								
A-102	GROUND FLOOR OVERALL PLAN	Α	в								
A-103	FIRST FLOOR OVERALL PLAN	Α	В								
A-104	ROOF OVERAL PLAN	Α	в								
A-111	BASEMENT GA PLAN - PART 1	Α	В								
A-112	BASEMENT GA PLAN - PART 2	Α	в								
A-113	GROUND FLOOR GA PLAN - PART 1	Α	В								
A-114	GROUND FLOOR GA PLAN - PART 2	Α	В								
A-115	GROUND FLOOR GA PLAN - PART 3	Α	В								
A-116	FIRST FLOOR GA PLAN - PART 1	Α	В								
A-117	FIRST FLOOR GA PLAN - PART 2	Α	В								
A-118	FIRST FLOOR GA PLAN - PART 3	Α	В								
A-119	ROOF HIGHTLIGHT LEVEL PLAN - PART 1 & 2	Α	В								
A-120	ROOF HIGHTLIGHT LEVEL PLAN - PART 3	Α	В								
A-131	BASEMENT CONCRETE SETOUT PLAN - PT 1		В								
A-132	BASEMENT CONCRETE SETOUT PLAN - PT 2		в								
A-133	GROUND FLOOR CONCRETE SETOUT PLAN - PT 1		В								
A-134	GROUND FLOOR CONCRETE SETOUT PLAN - PT 2		В								
A-135	GROUND FLOOR CONCRETE SETOUT PLAN - PT 3		В								
A-136	FIRST FLOOR CONCRETE SETOUT PLAN - PT 1		В								
A-137	FIRST FLOOR CONCRETE SETOUT PLAN - PT 2		в								
A-138	FIRST FLOOR CONCRETE SETOUT PLAN - PT 3		В								
A-139	ROOF CONCRETE SETOUT PLAN		В								
A-141	BASEMENT REFLECTED CEILING PLAN - PT 1		В								
A-142	BASEMENT REFLECTED CEILING PLAN - PT 2		В								
A-143	GROUND FLOOR REFLECTED CEILING PLAN - PT 1		в								
A-144	GROUND FLOOR REFLECTED CEILING PLAN - PT 2		В								
A-145	GROUND FLOOR REFLECTED CEILING PLAN - PT 3		В								
A-146	FIRST FLOOR REFLECTED CEILING PLAN - PT 1		В								
A-147	FIRST FLOOR REFLECTED CEILING PLAN - PT 2		В								
A-148	FIRST FLOOR REFLECTED CEILING PLAN - PT 3		в								
A-151	GROUND FLOOR FURNITURE PLAN - PT 1		В								
A-152	GROUND FLOOR FURNITURE PLAN - PT 2		В								
A-153	GROUND FLOOR FURNITURE PLAN - PT 3		в								
A-154	FIRST FLOOR FURNITURE PLAN - PART 1		в								
A-155	FIRST FLOOR FURNITURE PLAN -PART 2		в			[					
A-156	FIRST FLOOR FURNITURE PLAN -PART 3		в								
A-161	BASEMENT FINISHES PLAN - PART 1		в			[					
A-162	BASEMENT FINISHES PLAN - PART 2		в								

GRAN ASSOCIATES AUSTRALIA ARCHITECTS ABN 46 115 243 073 LEVEL 1, 597 DARLING STREET ROZELLE NSW 2039 PH +61 2 9818 8437

Nominated Architects PETER REED, RAIA, AIA PR I N CI PA L NSW REG. 5377 ANTHONY KEMENY, FRAIA DIRECTOR NSW REG. 4599

DOCUMENT TRANSMITTAL / REGISTER

PTY LTD

### JOB No: 1803

## PROJECT: AMITY COLLEGE LEPPINGTON - TENDER STAGE 1 DRAWINGS ARCHITECTUAL

DOCUMENT TRANSMITTAL	DAY	12	16						
Refer separate Document	MONTH	8	8						
Transmittal Sheet OR Email	YEAR	21	21						

						-			
A-163	GROUND FLOOR FINISHES PLAN - PART 1		В						
A-164	GROUND FLOOR FINISHES PLAN - PART 2		В						
A-165	GROUND FLOOR FINISHES PLAN - PART 3		В						
A-166	FIRST FLOOR FINISHES PLAN - PART 1		В						
A-167	FIRST FLOOR FINISHES PLAN - PART 2		В						
A-168	FIRST FLOOR FINISHES PLAN - PART 3		В						
A-201	SOUTH-EAST ELEVATION	Α	В						
A-202	NORTH-EAST ELEVATION	Α	В						
A-203	NORTH-WEST ELEVATION	Α	В						
A-204	SOUTH-WEST ELEVATION	Α	в						
A-205	SOUTH-WEST ELEVATION AT BOUNDARY	Α	в						
A-301	SECTION AA	Α	в						
A-302	SECTIONS BB & CC	Α	в						
A-303	SECTIONS DD & EE	Α	в						
A-304	SECTIONS FF	Α	в						
A-305	SECTIONS HH & JJ	Α	в						
A-306	SECTIONS KK & LL	Α	в						
A-401	AMENITIES GROUND FLOOR		в						
A-402	AMENITIES FIRST FLOOR		в						
A-403	AMENITIES BASEMENT		в						
A-404	AMENITIES ABLUTION ROOMS		в						
A-405	AMENITIES IN PART 3		в						
A-411	STAIRS DETAIL - LIBRARY		в						
A-412	STAIRS DETAIL 01 & 02		в						
A-413	STAIRS AND LIFT DETAIL 04		в						
A-414	STAIRS AND RAMP DETAIL - BASEMENT		в						
A-415	STAIR & RAMP - EXTERNAL		в						
A-416	TYPICAL STAIR, HANDRAIL AND BALUSTRADE DETAILS		в						
A-421	TIERED LEARNIG THEATER ROOM ELEVATIONS								
A-422	MALE PRAYER ROOM ELEVATIONS								
A-423	FEMALE PRAYER ROOM ELEVATIONS								
A-431	STAFF KITCHENETTE		в						
A-432	MALE KITCHEN		в						
A-433	FEMALE KITCHEN		в						
A-501	GROUND FLOOR EXTERNAL WINDOW & DOOR		в						
	SCHEDULE								
A-502	FIRST FLOOR EXTERNAL WINDOW & DOOR SCHEDULE	Α	в						
A-503	ROOF HIGHLIGHT WINDOW & LOUVRE SCHEDULE	Α	в						
A-504	INTERNAL WINDOW & DOORS SCHEDULE	Α	в						
A-505	GLAZED SLIDERS & DETAILS	Α	в						
A-506	OPERABLE WALL DETAILS	Α	в						
A-507	WINDOW AND DOOR DETAILS	Α	в						
A-521	DOOR SCHEDULE TYPE A	Α	в						
GRAN ASSOCIATES AUSTRALIA ARCHITECTS ABN 46 115 243 073 LEVEL 1, 597 DARLING STREET ROZELLE NSW 2039 PH +61 2 9818 8437

Nominated Architects PETER REED, RAIA, AIA PR I N CI PA L NSW REG. 5377 ANTHONY KEMENY, FRAIA DIRECTOR NSW REG. 4599

DOCUMENT TRANSMITTAL / REGISTER

PTY LTD

#### JOB No: 1803

#### PROJECT: AMITY COLLEGE LEPPINGTON - TENDER STAGE 1 DRAWINGS ARCHITECTUAL

DOCUMENT TRANSMITTAL	DAY	12	16						
Refer separate Document	MONTH	8	8						
Transmittal Sheet OR Email	YEAR	21	21						

	F				1	1				
A-522	DOOR SCHEDULE TYPE B,C & D	Α	в							
A-523	DOOR SCHEDULE TYPE E,F & G	Α	в							
A-601	WALL TYPE SCHEDULE 1	Α	В							
A-602	WALL TYPE SCHEDULE 2	Α	В							
A-603	WALL TYPE SCHEDULE 3	Α	В							
A-604	WALL TYPE SCHEDULE 4	Α	В							
A-611	WALL SECTIONS		В							
A-612	WALL SECTIONS		В							
A-613	WALL SECTIONS		В							
A-614	WALL SECTIONS - COMMON ROOM		В							
A-615	WALL SECTIONS - ENTRY LINK		В							
A-616	WALL SECTIONS - STAFF ROOM		В							
A-617	SKYLIGHT SECTIONS		В							
A-618	BASEMENT WALL SECTIONS		В							
A-701	HOMEBASE SECTION DETAILS									
A-702	PLAN DETAILS		В							
A-703	PLAN DETAILS		В							
A-704	DETAILS		В							
A-705	DETAILS		В							
A-706	SECTION DETAILS									
A-707	SECTION DETAILS									
A-708	SECTION DETAILS									
A-801	JOINERY DETAILS - LIBRARY 01		в							
A-802	JOINERY DETAILS - LIBRARY 02		В							
A-803	JOINERY DETAILS - LIBRARY 03		в							
A-804	JOINERY DETAILS - LIBRARY 04		в							
A-805	JOINERY DETAILS - LIBRARY 05		в							
A-806	JOINERY DETAILS - LIBRARY UNDER STAIR TUNNEL 01		в							
A-807	JOINERY DETAILS - LIBRARY UNDER STAIR TUNNEL 02		в							
A-808	JOINERY DETAILS - HOMEBASE GROUND FLOOR 01		в					1		
A-809	JOINERY DETAILS - HOMEBASE GROUND FLOOR 02		в					1		
A-810	JOINERY DETAILS - HOMEBASE GROUND FLOOR 03		В							
A-811	JOINERY DETAILS - HOMEBASE GROUND FLOOR 04		В							
A-812	JOINERY DETAILS - HOMEBASE FIRST FLOOR 01		В							
A-813	JOINERY DETAILS - HOMEBASE FIRST FLOOR 02		В							
A-814	JOINERY DETAILS - HOMEBASE FIRST FLOOR 03		В							
A-815	JOINERY DETAILS - HOMEBASE FIRST FLOOR 04		В							
A-816	JOINERY DETAILS - HOMEBASE FIRST FLOOR 05		В							
A-817	JOINERY DETAILS - INNOVATION HUB 01		В							
A-818	JOINERY DETAILS - INFORMAL LEARNING GROUND FLOOR 01		в							
A-819	JOINERY DETAILS - INFORMAL LEARNING GROUND FLOOR 02		в							
A-820	JOINERY DETAILS - INFORMAL LEARNING GROUND FLOOR 03		в							

GRAN ASSOCIATES AUSTRALIA ARCHITECTS ABN 46 115 243 073 LEVEL 1, 597 DARLING STREET ROZELLE NSW 2039 PH +61 2 9818 8437

Nominated Architects PETER REED, RAIA, AIA PR I N CI PA L NSW REG. 5377 ANTHONY KEMENY, FRAIA DIRECTOR NSW REG. 4599

DOCUMENT TRANSMITTAL / REGISTER

PTY LTD

#### JOB No: 1803

#### PROJECT: AMITY COLLEGE LEPPINGTON - TENDER STAGE 1 DRAWINGS ARCHITECTUAL

DOCUMEN	T TRANSMITTAL	DAY	12	16								
Refer sepa	rate Document	MONTH	8	8								
Transmitta	l Sheet OR Email	YEAR	21	21								
					•	•			•			
A-821	JOINERY DETAILS - IN	FORMAL LEARNING FIRST FLOOR		в								
A-021	01 - PC LOC			U								1
A-822	JOINERY DETAILS - IN	FORMAL LEARNING FIRST FLOOR		в								
A-022	02 - LOCKERS			Б								
A-823	JOINERY DETAILS - IN	FORMAL LEARNING FIRST FLOOR		в								
A-025	03 - SEAT & STORAG	E		Б								
A-824	JOINERY DETAILS - S	TAFF TEA ROOM 01		В								
A-825	JOINERY DETAILS - S	TAFF PRINT & COPY 01		В								1
A-826	JOINERY DETAILS - T	EMPORARY SICK BAY 01		В								
A-827	JOINERY DETAILS - T	EMPORARY RECEPTION 01		В								
A-828	JOINERY DETAILS - G	ROUP STUDY 01		В								
A-829	JOINERY DETAILS - A	RTS 01		В								
A-830	JOINERY DETAILS - A	RTS 02		В								
A-831	JOINERY DETAILS - N	IUSIC 01		В								
A-832	JOINERY DETAILS - N	IUSIC 02		В								
			-		 -	-	1	1	-	 		

11020			-											
A-829	JOINERY DETAILS - ARTS 01		в											
A-830	JOINERY DETAILS - ARTS 02		В											
A-831	JOINERY DETAILS - MUSIC 01		В											
A-832	JOINERY DETAILS - MUSIC 02		В											
A 022	JOINERY DETAILS - WITHDRAWAL ROOM GROUND													
A-833	FLOOR 01		В											
A-834	JOINERY DETAILS - WITHDRAWAL ROOM 1 FIRST		в											
A-034	FLOOR 01													
A-835	JOINERY DETAILS - WITHDRAWAL ROOM 2 FIRST		в											
	FLOOR 01		_											
A-836	JOINERY DETAILS - ANTE ROOM 1 / ABLUTION 01		В											
A-837	JOINERY DETAILS - ANTE ROOM 2 / ABLUTION 01		В											
A-838	JOINERY DETAILS - COMMON ROOM 1 01		в											
A-839	JOINERY DETAILS - COMMON ROOM 1 02		В											
A-840	JOINERY DETAILS - COMMON ROOM 2 01		в											
A-841	JOINERY DETAILS - COMMON ROOM 2 02		в											
A-842	JOINERY DETAILS - COMMON ROOM 3 & 5 01		В											
A-843	JOINERY DETAILS - REMOTE OPERABLE WALL CABINET		в											
A-043	DOOR 01		В											
Schedule 1	Abbreviations		Α											
Schedule 2	Room finishes Schedule		Α											
Schedule 3	Exterior Materials & Colours Schedule		Α											
Schedule 4	Interior Materials & Colours Schedule		Α											
Schedule 5	Sanitary fixtures Schedule		Α											
Schedule 6	FixturesFittings&Equipment		Α											
Schedule 7	Loose furniture		Α											
Schedule 8	Door hardware		Α											
163	number of copies	40	150	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
	3D CAD MODEL													
	REVIT MODEL													



Nominated Architects PETER REED, RAIA, AIA PR I N CI PA L NSW REG. 5377 ANTHONY KEMENY, FRAIA DIRECTOR NSW REG. 4599

DOCUMENT TRANSMITTAL / REGISTER

PTY LTD

#### JOB No: 1803

#### PROJECT: AMITY COLLEGE LEPPINGTON - TENDER STAGE 1 DRAWINGS ARCHITECTUAL

DOCUMENT TRANSMITTAL	DAY	12	16						
Refer separate Document	MONTH	8	8						
Transmittal Sheet OR Email	YEAR	21	21						

DISTRIBUTION									
Recep Aydogan	Amity	X	Х						
Matthew Morrisey	PCA	х							
C–DISC / D-DWG / P-PI	DF/ DB-Dropbox / RVT - Revit								

Z:\Direct\A1803\_AmityLeppington\1.3 Doc Register-Transmittal\A1803\_ACL\_ Document RegisterTrans\_Tender St 1.xlsx



Level 1, 57 Kembla Street Wollongong NSW 2500

PO Box 863 Wollongong NSW 2500

T (02) 4226 3333 F (02) 4226 3666

E southceast@northrop.com.au

## TRANSMITTAL

SHEET DISCIPLINE JOB No. 1 of 2 STRUCTURAL 202368

DESCRIPTION							DA	TE				
AMITY COLLEGE LEPPINGTO	ON	D	19	29	29	06	23	30				
		М	03	04	06	07	07	07				
		Υ	21	21	21	21	21	21				
DOCUMENT TITLE	DOC N	<b>0</b> .										
Cover Sheet And Drawing List	S00			1		2	2	3				
Specification Notes Sheet 1	S01			1		2	2	3				
Specification Notes Sheet 2	S02			1		2	2	3				
Specification Notes Sheet 3	S03			1		2	2	3				
Specification Notes Sheet 4	S04			1		2	3	4				
Basement Slab Plan – Part 1	S10		1	2			3	4				
Basement Slab Plan – Part 2	S11		1	2			3	4				
Basement Details Sheet 1	S15			1			2	3				
Ground Floor Slab Plan – Part 1	S20		1	2			3	4				
Ground Floor Slab Plan – Part 2	S21		1	2			3	4				
Ground Floor Slab Plan – Part 3	S22			1			2	3				
Ground Floor Details Sheet 1	S25						1	2				
First Floor Slab Plan – Part 1	S30		1	2			3	4				
First Floor Slab Plan – Part 2	S31		1	2			3	4				
First Floor Slab Plan – Part 3	S32			1			2	3				
First Floor Details Sheet 1	S35			1			2	3				
Lower Roof Plan – Part 1	S40				1		2	3				
Lower Roof Plan – Part 2	S41				1		2	3				
Lower Roof Plan – Part 3	S42				1		2	3				
Second Floor Details Sheet 1	S45				1		2	3				
DISTRIBUTION		,		1	1	N	o. OF	COPI	ES	1	1	
Gran Associates			1	1	1	1	1	1				<u> </u>
	= Tender = Construction	n	I	A	1	1	1	т				
FORMAT P = Print E F = Film E	= Electronic		Е	E	Е	E	E	E				
SIZE ie A1/A3 etc			A1	A1	A1	A1	A1	A1				
	= Email P = Post		Е	Е	Е	Е	Е	Е				



#### SHEET DISCIPLINE JOB No.

2 of 2 STRUCTURAL 202368

DESCRIP	TION				_	_	DA	TE				-
AMITY COI	LLEGE LEPPINGTON	D	19	09	29	23	30					
		N	05	06	06	07	07					
		Y	21	21	21	21	21					
DOCUME	NT TITLE [	DOC No					ISS	SUE				
Column Deta	ails	S50				1	2					
Typical Block	k Wall Details	S51				1	2					
Wall Details	Sheet 1	S53				1	2					
Wall Details	Sheet 2	S54				1	2					
Stair Plan &	Details - Sheet 1	S55				1	2					
Stair Plan &	Details - Sheet 2	S56				1	2					
Precast Deta	ails	S58				1	2					
Upper Roof I	Framing Plan – Part 1	S60	1		2	3	4					
Upper Roof I	Framing Plan – Part 2	S61	1		2	3	4					
Upper Roof I	Framing Plan – Part 3	S62	1		2	3	4					
Roof Framin	g Elevations Sheet 1	S65										
Roof Framing	g Details Sheet 1	S70					1					
Roof Framing	g Details Sheet 2	S71				1	2					
Roof Framing	g Details Sheet 2	S72				1	2					
Walkway Aw	ning Plans	S80		1								
DISTRIBU	ITION					N	D. OF	COPI	ES			
Gran Assoc				1	1	1	1					
				1	1	1			<u> </u>	<u> </u>	<u> </u>	
				1	1	1			<u> </u>	<u> </u>	<u> </u>	
			1	1		1			T	T	 T	
PURPOSE	I = Information T = Ter A = Approval C = Co M = Amendment	nder Instruction	I	I	I	I	Т					
FORMAT	P = Print E = Ele F = Film	ectronic	E	E	E	Е	E					
SIZE	ie A1/A3 etc		A1	A1	A1	A1	A1					
METHOD	C = Courier E = Em H = Hand P = Po		Е	Е	Е	E	Е					

istrical Environmental Civil Hydraulio Mechanical Structural Electrical Environmental Civil Hydraulio Mechanical Structural Electrical Environmental Civil Hydraulio Mechanical Structural E vil hydraulic Mechanical Structural Electrical Environmental Civil Hydraulic Mechanical Structural Electrical Environmental Civil Hydraulic Mechanical Structural Electrical Environment nuctural Mechanical Structural Electrical Environmental Civil Hydraulic Mechanical Electrical Environmental Civil Hydraulic Mechanical Structural Electrical Environmental Civil Hydraulic



JHA Consulting Engineers Level 23, 101 Miller Street North Sydney, NSW 2060 T 02 9437 1000 E general@jhaengineers.com.au www.jhaservices.com ABN 48 612 666 172

Electrical Services			-	ject					MITY COLL	EGE LEI	FING	NUN						
			Proj	ject	'Nu	mb	er	20	0384									
	Date			16														
	Month			04														
	Year			21								_		_				
	Sent By		JF	CS	CS	CS	SC	SC	S									
Distribution List	Company										Numb	per of	copi	es				
drew Romanczuk	Gran Associates		1	1	1	1	1	1										
		-					_	_		_		_		_		_		
er Reed	Gran Associates		1	1	1	1	1	1										
y Kemeny	Gran Associates		1	1	1	1	1	1										
ason For Issue		-	Р	Р	P	P	P	T										
reliminary <b>I</b> - Tender <b>C</b> - Construction <b>I</b> - For Information <b>A</b> - For Approval	3	Set	Γ'	٣	P	P	P											
cument Format			Р	Р	S	S	S	S										
DFD - DWGS - PDF & DWGH - Hard Copy		Current	٢	٢	3	3	3	3										
thod of Delivery		S	Е	Е	-	-	-	-										
mail P - Post C - Courier H - Hand Delivered U - Upload M - Media (USB/CD)		-	E		E	E	E	E										
Document Title	No.					-	-	-		_	Re	visior	. :			-	 	
ver Sheet Legend Of Symbols General Notes And Drawing												10101						
is shoet togend of symbols deneral notes And Didwing	E000	Α	P1	P2	P3	P4	I P	5 A										
sting Schodulo	E001	^	D1	D0	<b>D</b> 2	D.								_		_		
nting Schedule Plan				P2								-				_	+	
ement Lighting And Fire Detection Layout Part 1				P2 P2												-		
ement Lighting And Fire Detection Layout Part 1 ement Lighting And Fire Detection Layout Part 2				P2 P2														
und Floor Lighting And Fire Detection Layout Part 2				P2 P2													+	
und Floor Lighting And Fire Detection Layout Part 2				P2										_		_		
bund Floor Lighting And Fire Detection Layout Part 3				P2										_		_		
Floor Lighting And Fire Detection Layout Part 1				P2												_		
Floor Lighting And Fire Detection Layout Part 2				P2							-					_		
Floor Lighting And Fire Detection Layout Part 3				P2														
ement Power, Communications Layout Part 1				P2														
ement Power, Communications Layout Part 2				P2														
und Floor Power, Communications Layout Part 1				P2														
und Floor Power, Communications Layout Part 2				P2														
und Floor Power, Communications Layout Part 3				P2														
Floor Power, Communications Layout Part 1				P2												_		
Floor Power, Communications Layout Part 2				P2														
Floor Power, Communications Layout Part 3				P2														
f Power, Communications Layout Part 1				P2														
of Power, Communications Layout Part 2				P2														
f Power, Communications Layout Part 3				P2														
und Floor Cable Tray Layout				P2														
Floor Cable Tray Layout				P2														
ement Security Layout Part 1				P2														
ement Security Layout Part 2	E251	A	P1	P2	P3	P4	P:	5 A	<b>\</b>									
und Floor Security Layout Part 1	E260 A	Α	P1	P2	P3	P4	P:	5 A	<b>\</b>									
und Floor Security Layout Part 2	E261 A	Α	P1	P2	P3	P4	P:	5 A	<b>\</b>									
und Floor Security Layout Part 3				P2														
Floor Security Layout Part 1				P2														
Floor Security Layout Part 2				P2														
Floor Security Layout Part 3				P2														
ematics And Details Sheet 1				P2														
ematics And Details Sheet 2				P2								_						
ematics And Details Sheet 3	E302	Α	Ρ1	P2	P3	P4	I P	5 A										
							1	1										
	_					-	-	+								-		
						-	-	-				_			+	_	+	
						-	-	1				-						
						-	-	+-				-				_		
								_				_				_		
												-						_
								_				_		_				

IF NOT ALL DOCUMENTS ARE RECEIVED, PLEASE CONTACT THE SENDER

The company or any relevant subsidiary should not be liable for loss, damages, claims and/or demands whatsoever arising in respect of any errors occurring from data transferred electronically from computer or removable storage to other systems.



JHA Consulting Engineers Level 23, 101 Miller Street North Sydney, NSW 2060 T02 9437 1000 Egnerati@haengineers.com.au www.haservices.com ABN 48 612 666 172

March and Camilana			Pro	ject	Nai	me		AM	MITY COLLEGE LEPPINGTON
Mechanical Services				ject			ər	200	00384
	Date		_	16	_	_	_	13	3
	Month		03	04	05	07	08	08	18
	Year		21	21	21	21	21	21	1
	Sent By		DZ	DZ	DZ	DZ	DZ	DZ	
Distribution List	Company								Number of copies
ndrew Romanczuk	Gran Associates	5	1	1	1	1	1	1	1
eter Reed	Gran Associates	5	1	1	1	1	1	1	1
ny Kemeny	Gran Associates		1						
			Ċ		Ċ		Ė	Ĺ	
eason For Issue				Р	Р	P	P	T	
Preliminary I - Tender C - Construction I - For Information A - For Approval		nt Sel	P P	-	-	-	-	-	
PDF D - DWG S - PDF & DWG H - Hard Copy ethod of Delivery		Current Set	-	S	S	S	-	S	
Email P - Post C - Courier H - Hand Delivered U - Upload M - Media (USB/CD)	-		E	E	E	E	E	E	
Document Title	No.								Revision
over Sheet Legend Of Symbols General Notes And Drawing	M000			P2					
asement Air Conditioning And Ventilation Layout Part 1	M100			P2					
asement Air Conditioning And Ventilation Layout Part 2	M101			P2 P2					
round Floor Air Conditioning And Ventilation Layout Part 1 round Floor Air Conditioning And Ventilation Layout Part 2	M110 M111	A	P1 P1	P2 P2	P3	P4	P5	A	
round Floor Air Conditioning And Ventilation Layout Part 3	M112			P2					
st Floor Air Conditioning And Ventilation Layout Part 1	M120			P2					
st Floor Air Conditioning And Ventilation Layout Part 2	M121	Α	P1	P2	P3	P4	P5	Α	A
st Floor Air Conditioning And Ventilation Layout Part 3	M122	Α	P1	P2	P3	P4	P5	A	Α
oof Air Conditioning And Ventilation Layout Part 1	M130			P2					
of Air Conditioning And Ventilation Layout Part 2	M131			P2					
oof Air Conditioning And Ventilation Layout Part 3	M132	A	PI	P2	P3	P4	P5	A	A
echanical Specification		Α						А	A
			_	_	_	_	-	_	
				-	-	-	-	-	
			-	-	-	-	-	-	
						-	-	-	
			-		-		-	-	
								_	
				_	-	-	-	-	
			-	-	-	-	-	-	
				-	-	-	-	-	
						-	-	-	
								-	
	1								
			_						
			_	_	_	-	-	-	
				-	-	-	-	-	
			-	-	-	-	-	-	
			-	-	-	-	-	-	
			-	-					
	1								
			-						
				_	_	-	_	-	
					_	-	-	-	

IF NOT ALL DOCUMENTS ARE RECEIVED, PLEASE CONTACT THE SENDER

The company or any relevant subsidiary should not be liable for loss, damages, claims and/or demands whatsoever arising in respect of any errors occurring from data transferred electronically from computer or removable storage to other systems.











SCALE 1:100 @ A1 , SCALE 1:200 @ A3



SCALE 1:100 @ A1 , SCALE 1:200 @ A3



	CONCRETE COL
MARK	SIZE
CC1	600 x 300
CC2	450DIA.
CC3	800 x 300
CC4	1200 × 200
CC5	490 x 490
CC6	600 x 400
CC7	800 x 300

	FOUNDATION	SCHEDULE
MARK	SIZE	COMMENT(S)
BP1	600DIA.	BORED PIER 5N20 VERT. N12-300 HELIX. 2000 SOCKET INTO SILTSTONE BEDROCK
BP2	600DIA.	BORED PIER 5N20 VERT. N12-300 HELIX. 4000 SOCKET INTO SILTSTONE BEDROCK
BP3	600DIA.	BORED PIER 5N20 VERT. N12-300 HELIX. 7000 SOCKET INTO SILTSTONE BEDROCK
BP4	600DIA.	BORED PIER MASS CONCRETE 300 SOCKET INTO SILTSTONE BEDROCK
CP1	450DIA.	RC PILE, MIN 1500DP, INTO FIRM CLAY, 4N16 VERT. N12-300 HELIX.
ET1	600W × 400DP	STRIP FOOTING 3N16T&B R10-450 TIES
ET2	600W × 400DP	EDGE BEAM - 5L11TM BOTTOM UNO
IT1	600W × 400DP	INTERNAL BEAM
PF1	1500W x1500 x 600DP	PAD FOOTING N16-200 'U' BARS EW BTM FOUND IN BEDROCK
SF1	600W x 400DP	STRIP FOOTING 3N16T&B R10-450 TIES FOUND IN BEDROCK
SF2	600W x 400DP	STRIP FOOTING 520T&B R10-300 TIES SUPPORTED ON PIERS

WALL SCHEDULE		
MARK	THICKNESS	COMMENT(S)
CW1	200	RC WALL – N12–200 HORIZ, N16–200 VERT. EACH FACE
CW2	150	RC WALL - N12-200 EACH WAY CENTRAL
DW1	200	DINCEL WALL – N16–150 SPACING VERTICAL BARS
LEGEND		

(100)	DENOTES SLAB T
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,	DENOTES SLAB S
CW1/0	DENOTES LOAD B
CC110	DENOTES REINFOR
	HATCH DENOTES FILL WITH MASS

\_\_\_\_\_ SJ \_\_\_\_\_

DENOTES GRATED DRAIN.

DENOTES SAWN JOINT

UMN	SCHEDULE
	COMMENT(S)
	CONCRETE COLUMN – 8N20 VERTICAL. 2N10–300 TIES
	CONCRETE COLUMN – 6N20 VERTICAL. N10–300 TIES
	CONCRETE COLUMN – 8N20 VERTICAL. 2N10–300 TIES
	CONCRETE COLUMN – 12N16 VERTICAL. 3N16–300 TIES
	CONCRETE COLUMN – 8N20 VERTICAL. 2N10–300 TIES
	CONCRETE COLUMN – 8N20 VERTICAL. 2N10–300 TIES
	CONCRETE COLUMN – SUPPORTING FUTURE STRUCTURE. 8N20 VERT. BARS, 2N12–300 TIES
N SC	HEDULE
	COMMENT(S)
	BORED PIER 5N20 VERT. N12-300 HELIX.

## THICKNESS

STEP

BEARING CONCRETE WALL OVER

ORCED CONCRETE COLUMN OVER

S PAD FOOTINGS TO BE EXCAVATED TO BEDROCK AND S CONCRETE TO UNDERSIDE OF PAD FOOTING TYP.



FOR	TENDER

S11

[4]





**H**ran

			GRAN ASSOCIATES AUSTRALIA
	CONCRETE COLU		ARCHITECTS PTY LTD
CC1	<b>SIZE</b> 600 x 300	COMMENT(S) CONCRETE COLUMN – 8N20 VERTICAL.	LEVEL 1, 597 DARLING STREET ROZELLE NSW 2039
	600 X 500	2N10-300 TIES	PH: +61 2 9818 8437 FAX: + 61 2 9818 6288
CC2	450DIA.	CONCRETE COLUMN – 6N20 VERTICAL. N10–300 TIES	PETER REED ARAIA, AIA NOM ARCH 5377 ANTHONY KEMENY FRAIA NSW REG No. 4599
ССЗ	800 x 300	CONCRETE COLUMN - 8N20 VERTICAL.	MECHANICAL, ELECTRICAL
CC4	1200 × 200	2N10-300 TIES CONCRETE COLUMN - 12N16 VERTICAL.	& LEVEL 3 CONSULTANT
СС5	490 x 490	3N16–300 TIES CONCRETE COLUMN – 8N20 VERTICAL.	LEVEL 3, 101 MILLER STREET SYDNEY NSW 2000
		2N10-300 TIES	<b>T</b> +61 (02) 9437 1000
CC6	600 x 400	CONCRETE COLUMN – 8N20 VERTICAL. 2N10–300 TIES	STRUCTURAL, FIRE & HYDRAULIC ENGINEER
CC7	800 x 300	CONCRETE COLUMN - SUPPORTING FUTURE	
		STRUCTURE. 8N20 VERT. BARS, 2N12-300 TIES	LEVEL 11, 345 GEORGE STREET SYDNEY NSW 2000 <b>T</b> +61 (02) 9241 4188
			CIVIL ENGINEER
	WALL SCH		MARTENS & ASSOCIATES SUITES 201, 20 GEORGE
MARK	THICKNESS		STREET NSW 2077 T +61 (02) 9476 9999
CW1	200	RC WALL – N12–200 HORIZ, N16–200 VERT. EACH FACE	
CW2	150	RC WALL - N12-200 EACH WAY CENTRAL	
DW1	200	DINCEL WALL – N16–150 SPACING VERTICAL BARS	
			PART 3
			PARTS
	FOUNDATION	SCHEDULE	
MARK	SIZE		
BP1	600DIA.	BORED PIER 5N20 VERT. N12–300 HELIX. 2000 SOCKET INTO SILTSTONE BEDROCK	
BP2	600DIA.	BORED PIER 5N20 VERT. N12-300 HELIX.	
BP3	600DIA.	4000 SOCKET INTO SILTSTONE BEDROCK BORED PIER 5N20 VERT. N12-300 HELIX.	
	500BIA.	7000 SOCKET INTO SILTSTONE BEDROCK	
BP4	600DIA.	BORED PIER MASS CONCRETE 300 SOCKET INTO SILTSTONE BEDROCK	
CP1	450DIA.	RC PILE, MIN 1500DP, INTO FIRM CLAY, 4N16	
		VERT. N12-300 HELIX.	KEYPLAN
ET1 ET2	600W x 400DP 600W x 400DP	STRIP FOOTING 3N16T&B R10-450 TIES EDGE BEAM - 5L11TM BOTTOM UNO	
IT1	600W x 400DP	INTERNAL BEAM	
PF1	1500W x1500 x 600DP	PAD FOOTING N16-200 'U' BARS EW BTM	N° DESCRIPTION DATE
SF1	600W × 400DP	FOUND IN BEDROCK STRIP FOOTING 3N16T&B R10-450 TIES	IISSUED FOR CC28.04.22ISSUED FOR COORDINATION23.07.2
		FOUND IN BEDROCK	3 ISSUED FOR TENDER 30.07.2
SF2	600W x 400DP	STRIP FOOTING 520T&B R10-300 TIES SUPPORTED ON PIERS	
(100) CW1/0 CW1/U CW1 CW1	DENOTES LOAD BEAR DENOTES LOAD BEAR DENOTES REINFORCED DENOTES REINFORCED DENOTES REINFORCED		Scale I: 100 @A Date Project Statu Drawn By H.ABELLA CHECKED BY L.BECHE Project. No. 20236 Client Name:
^1	DENOTES CUSTOM PR	ECAST STRUCTURE	
			Project Name:
		GROUND BEAMS TO BE 120 TOP & BOTTOM WITH	AMITY COLLEGE
			Address: 85 BYRON ROAD, LEPPINGTON NSV Title: GROUND FLOOR SLAB PLAN - PART 3

	CONCRETE COLU	MN SCHEDULE	AUSTRALIA ARCHITECTS PTY LT
MARK	SIZE	COMMENT(S)	ARCHITECTS PTY LTI
	600 x 300	CONCRETE COLUMN – 8N20 VERTICAL.	ROZELLE NSW 2039 PH: +61 2 9818 8437
CC2	450DIA.	2N10-300 TIES CONCRETE COLUMN – 6N20 VERTICAL.	FAX: + 61 2 9818 6288 PETER REED ARAIA, AIA NOM ARCH 5377
	4JVUA.	N10-300 TIES	ANTHONY KEMENY FRAIA NSW REG No. 4599
ССЗ	800 x 300	CONCRETE COLUMN – 8N20 VERTICAL. 2N10–300 TIES	MECHANICAL, ELECTRICAL & LEVEL 3 CONSULTANT
CC4	1200 x 200	CONCRETE COLUMN – 12N16 VERTICAL. 3N16–300 TIES	JHA ENGINEERS
C5	490 x 490	CONCRETE COLUMN - 8N20 VERTICAL.	LEVEL 3, 101 MILLER STREET SYDNEY NSW 2000 <b>T</b> +61 (02) 9437 1000
	600 x 400	2N10-300 TIES CONCRETE COLUMN – 8N20 VERTICAL.	
	800 x 300	2N10-300 TIES CONCRETE COLUMN – SUPPORTING FUTURE	STRUCTURAL, FIRE & HYDRAULIC ENGINEER
		STRUCTURE. 8N20 VERT. BARS, 2N12–300 TIES	NORTHROP CONSULTING LEVEL 11, 345 GEORGE STREET SYDNEY NSW 2000 T +61 (02) 9241 4188
			CIVIL ENGINEER
	WALL SC	HEDULE	MARTENS & ASSOCIATES SUITES 201, 20 GEORGE STREET NSIM 2027
IARK	THICKNESS		STREET NSW 2077 T +61 (02) 9476 9999
	200	RC WALL – N12–200 HORIZ, N16–200 VERT. EACH FACE	
/2 V1	150 200	RC WALL – N12–200 EACH WAY CENTRAL DINCEL WALL – N16–150 SPACING VERTICAL	
		BARS	
	FOUNDATION	SCHEDULE	PART 3
ARK	SIZE	COMMENT(S)	
1	600DIA.	BORED PIER 5N20 VERT. N12-300 HELIX.	
2	600DIA.	2000 SOCKET INTO SILTSTONE BEDROCK BORED PIER 5N20 VERT. N12-300 HELIX.	
		4000 SOCKET INTO SILTSTONE BEDROCK	
23	600DIA.	BORED PIER 5N20 VERT. N12-300 HELIX. 7000 SOCKET INTO SILTSTONE BEDROCK	
24	600DIA.	BORED PIER MASS CONCRETE 300 SOCKET	
P1	450DIA.	INTO SILTSTONE BEDROCK RC PILE, MIN 1500DP, INTO FIRM CLAY, 4N16	
Г1		VERT. N12-300 HELIX.	<u>KEYPLAN</u>
	600W x 400DP 600W x 400DP	STRIP FOOTING 3N16T&B R10-450 TIES EDGE BEAM - 5L11TM BOTTOM UNO	
2	600W X 400DP	INTERNAL BEAM	
	1500W x1500 x 600DP	PAD FOOTING N16-200 'U' BARS EW BTM	N° DESCRIPTION DATE
	600W x 400DP	FOUND IN BEDROCK STRIP FOOTING 3N16T&B R10-450 TIES	IISSUED FOR CC28.04.22ISSUED FOR COORDINATION23.07.2
		FOUND IN BEDROCK	3 ISSUED FOR TENDER 30.07.2
	600W x 400DP	STRIP FOOTING 520T&B R10-300 TIES SUPPORTED ON PIERS	
	DENOTES LOAD BEAF DENOTES LOAD BEAF DENOTES REINFORCED DENOTES REINFORCED DENOTES REINFORCED DENOTES SETDOWN M DENOTES CUSTOM PF DENOTES REGIONS OF	RING CONCRETE WALL OVER RING CONCRETE WALL UNDER RING CONCRETE WALL OVER AND UNDER O CONCRETE COLUMN OVER O CONCRETE COLUMN UNDER O CONCRETE COLUMN OVER AND UNDER WALUE FOR WET AREAS RECAST STRUCTURE GROUND BEAMS TO BE	Scale       1:100 @         DATE       PROJECT STATE         DRAWN BY       H.ABELL         CHECKED BY       L.BECHE         PROJECT. NO.       20236         Client Name:         Optimized colspan="2">Optimized colspan="2">Optimized colspan="2">Optimized colspan="2">Project Name:         Project Name:         AMITY COLLEGE
			Address: 85 BYRON ROAD, LEPPINGTON NSV Title: GROUND FLOOR SLAB PLAN - PART 3 DRAWING NO. REVISION NO.
		FOR TENDE	

	LUNLREIE LULU	IMN SCHEDULE	AUSTRALIA ARCHITECTS PTY LT
MARK	SIZE	COMMENT(S)	LEVEL 1, 597 DARLING STREET
CC1	600 x 300	CONCRETE COLUMN – 8N20 VERTICAL. 2N10–300 TIES	ROZELLE NSW 2039 PH: +61 2 9818 8437
CC2	450DIA.	CONCRETE COLUMN – 6N20 VERTICAL.	FAX: + 61 2 9818 6288 PETER REED ARAIA, AIA NOM ARCH 5377
ССЗ	800 x 300	N10-300 TIES CONCRETE COLUMN – 8N20 VERTICAL.	ANTHONY KEMENY FRAIA NSW REG No. 4599
CC4	1200 × 200	2N10-300 TIES CONCRETE COLUMN - 12N16 VERTICAL.	MECHANICAL, ELECTRICAL & LEVEL 3 CONSULTANT
205	490 x 490	3N16-300 TIES CONCRETE COLUMN – 8N20 VERTICAL.	JHA ENGINEERS LEVEL 3, 101 MILLER STREET SYDNEY NSW 2000
		2N10-300 TIES	<b>T</b> +61 (02) 9437 1000
	600 x 400	CONCRETE COLUMN – 8N20 VERTICAL. 2N10–300 TIES	STRUCTURAL, FIRE & HYDRAULIC ENGINEER
	800 × 300	CONCRETE COLUMN – SUPPORTING FUTURE STRUCTURE. 8N20 VERT. BARS, 2N12–300	NORTHROP CONSULTING
		TIES	LEVEL 11, 345 GEORGE STREET SYDNEY NSW 2000 <b>T</b> +61 (02) 9241 4188
			CIVIL ENGINEER
	WALL SC		MARTENS & ASSOCIATES SUITES 201, 20 GEORGE
ARK	200	COMMENT(S) RC WALL – N12–200 HORIZ, N16–200 VERT.	STREET NSW 2077 T +61 (02) 9476 9999
/2	150	EACH FACE RC WALL - N12-200 EACH WAY CENTRAL	
1	200	DINCEL WALL - N16-150 SPACING VERTICAL	
		BARS	
			PART 3
	FOUNDATION	SCHEDULE	
RK	SIZE		
1	600DIA.	BORED PIER 5N20 VERT. N12-300 HELIX. 2000 SOCKET INTO SILTSTONE BEDROCK	
2	600DIA.	BORED PIER 5N20 VERT. N12-300 HELIX.	
}	600DIA.	4000 SOCKET INTO SILTSTONE BEDROCK BORED PIER 5N20 VERT. N12-300 HELIX.	
		7000 SOCKET INTO SILTSTONE BEDROCK	
+	600DIA.	BORED PIER MASS CONCRETE 300 SOCKET INTO SILTSTONE BEDROCK	
1	450DIA.	RC PILE, MIN 1500DP, INTO FIRM CLAY, 4N16	KEYPLAN
	600W x 400DP	VERT. N12-300 HELIX. STRIP FOOTING 3N16T&B R10-450 TIES	
	600W x 400DP	EDGE BEAM - 5L11TM BOTTOM UNO	
	600W x 400DP 1500W x1500 x 600DP	INTERNAL BEAM PAD FOOTING N16-200 'U' BARS EW BTM	N° DESCRIPTION DATE
		FOUND IN BEDROCK	I ISSUED FOR CC 28.04.1
	600W x 400DP	STRIP FOOTING 3N16T&B R10-450 TIES FOUND IN BEDROCK	2ISSUED FOR COORDINATION23.07.23ISSUED FOR TENDER30.07.2
	600W x 400DP	STRIP FOOTING 520T&B R10-300 TIES SUPPORTED ON PIERS	5 ISSUED FOR TENDER 50.07.
0	DENOTES SLAB THIC	KNESS	
$   \frac{1}{2} \frac$	DENOTES LOAD BEA DENOTES LOAD BEA DENOTES REINFORCE DENOTES REINFORCE DENOTES REINFORCE DENOTES SETDOWN DENOTES CUSTOM PE	RING CONCRETE WALL OVER RING CONCRETE WALL UNDER RING CONCRETE WALL OVER AND UNDER D CONCRETE COLUMN OVER D CONCRETE COLUMN UNDER D CONCRETE COLUMN OVER AND UNDER VALUE FOR WET AREAS	SCALE I: 100 @ DATE PROJECT STAT DRAWN BY H.ABELL CHECKED BY L.BECHE PROJECT. NO. 20230 Client Name: Client Name: Project Name: AMITY COLLEGE
/0 /U 1 	DENOTES LOAD BEA DENOTES LOAD BEA DENOTES LOAD BEA DENOTES REINFORCE DENOTES REINFORCE DENOTES REINFORCE DENOTES SETDOWN DENOTES CUSTOM PE	RING CONCRETE WALL OVER RING CONCRETE WALL UNDER RING CONCRETE WALL OVER AND UNDER D CONCRETE COLUMN OVER D CONCRETE COLUMN UNDER D CONCRETE COLUMN OVER AND UNDER VALUE FOR WET AREAS RECAST STRUCTURE = GROUND BEAMS TO BE N20 TOP & BOTTOM WITH	DATE PROJECT STAT DRAWN BY H.ABELL CHECKED BY L.BECHE PROJECT. NO. 20236 Client Name:
	DENOTES LOAD BEA DENOTES LOAD BEA DENOTES LOAD BEA DENOTES REINFORCE DENOTES REINFORCE DENOTES REINFORCE DENOTES SETDOWN DENOTES CUSTOM PE DENOTES REGIONS OF REINFORCED WITH 5	RING CONCRETE WALL OVER RING CONCRETE WALL UNDER RING CONCRETE WALL OVER AND UNDER D CONCRETE COLUMN OVER D CONCRETE COLUMN UNDER D CONCRETE COLUMN OVER AND UNDER VALUE FOR WET AREAS RECAST STRUCTURE = GROUND BEAMS TO BE N20 TOP & BOTTOM WITH	DATE       PROJECT STAT         DRAWN BY       H.ABELL         CHECKED BY       L.BECHE         PROJECT. NO.       20236         Client Name:         Optimized colspan="2">Optimized colspan="2">Optized colspan="2"

	DENOTES	SLAB	THICK
	DENOTES	SLAB	STEP
3	DENOTES	LOAD	BEAR
	DENOTES	LOAD	BEAR
5	DENOTES	LOAD	BEAR
10	DENOTES	REINF	ORCEE
10	DENOTES	REINF	ORCEE
×	DENOTES	REINF	ORCEE
	DENOTES	SETDO	DWN V
	DENOTES	CUSTO	om pr
3	DENOTES	REGION	NS OF



SCALE 1:100 @ A1 , SCALE 1:200 @ A3





LEGEND
(100)
۰۰۰۰۰۰۰۰۰۰۰۰۰۰۰۰۰۰۰۰۰۰۰۰۰۰۰۰۰۰۰۰۰۰۰۰۰
CW1/U
CW1

DENOTES	LOAD	BEARI	NG	C0
DENOTES	LOAD	BEARI	NG	CO
DENOTES	LOAD	BEARI	NG	CO
DENOTES	REINF	ORCED	C0	NCF
DENOTES	REINF	ORCED	C0	NCF
DENOTES	REINF	ORCED	C0	NCF
DENOTES	SETDO	DWN V	ALL	JE

DENOTES TEMPORARY MOVE DETAILS BY PT CONTRACTO DENOTES TEMPORARY SLIDI OF WALL (AS PER TYPICAL

NOTE: - S04. 1. FOR

**GRAN ASSOCIATES** 

LEVEL 1, 597 DARLING STREET

PETER REED ARAIA, AIA NOM ARCH 5377

ANTHONY KEMENY FRAIA NSW REG No. 4599

AUSTRALIA

ARCHITECTS

ROZELLE NSW 2039

PH: +61 2 9818 8437

FAX: + 61 2 9818 6288

MECHANICAL, ELECTRICAL

& LEVEL 3 CONSULTANT

STREET SYDNEY NSW 2000

JHA ENGINEERS

LEVEL 3, 101 MILLER

**T** +61 (02) 9437 1000

STRUCTURAL, FIRE &

HYDRAULIC ENGINEER

**T** +61 (02) 9241 4188

CIVIL ENGINEER

NORTHROP CONSULTING LEVEL 11, 345 GEORGE STREET SYDNEY NSW 2000

MARTENS & ASSOCIATES

SUITES 201, 20 GEORGE STREET NSW 2077

**T** +61 (02) 9476 9999

n

NORTHROP

martens

PTY LTD

STEEL FRAMING – HEADER BEAM				
STEEL FRAMING - OUTRIGGER	PART 3			
STEEL FRAMING - OUTRIGGER				
STEEL FRAMING – OUTRIGGER				
STEEL FRAMING OUTRIGGER				
STEEL PURLIN – 600 CTS. STEEL PURLIN – 1200 CTS.				
STEEL PURLIN - 1200 CTS.				
STEEL PURLIN - 600 CTS.				
STEEL PURLIN - 1200 CTS.				
STEEL PURLIN – 450 CTS.				
STEEL PURLIN – 450 CTS.				
STEEL FRAMING - ROOF BEAM				
ROOF SUPPORT BEAM	KEYPLAN			
STEEL FRAMING – ROOF BEAM				
STEEL FRAMING - ROOF BEAM				
STEEL FRAMING - ROOF BEAM				
STEEL FRAMING - EITH M20 CHEMSET TO	N° DESCRIPTION DATE			
LEVEL 1 SLAB EDGE AT 900 CTS. PROVIDE	I ISSUED FOR CC 28.04.21			
FIXING HOLES AT 450 CTS. TO ALLOW CLEARANCE FOR PT GROUTED LIVE ENDS	2 ISSUED FOR COORDINATION 23.07.21			
STEE FRAMING - BONDEK SUPPORT AT	3 ISSUED FOR TENDER 30.07.21			
LIFT OVERRUN. M20-600 CHEMSET TO LIFT				
STEEL FRAMING				
SLIDING PARTITION HEADER BEAM				
SLIDING GLAZED DOOR HEADER BEAM				
OPERABLE WALL HEADER BEAM				
WALL BRACING - DIAGONAL STRUT				
WALL BRACING – REFER TYPICAL DETAIL	SCALE I : 100 @AI			
	DATE PROJECT STATUS			
	DRAWN BY H.ABELLA			
	CHECKED BY L.BECHER			
	PROJECT. NO. 202368			
	Client Name:			
KNESS				
P				
	1			
RING CONCRETE WALL OVER	amity college			
	3			
RING CONCRETE WALL UNDER				
	Project Name:			
RING CONCRETE WALL OVER AND UNDER	AMITY COLLEGE			
D CONCRETE COLUMN OVER				
B CONCRETE COLOTIN OVER				
D CONCRETE COLUMN UNDER	Address:			
	85 BYRON ROAD, LEPPINGTON NSW			
	,,,,,,,			
D CONCRETE COLUMN OVER AND UNDER				
D CONCRETE COLUMN OVER AND UNDER				
	Title			
VALUE FOR WET AREAS	FIRST FLOOR SLAB PLAN -			
VALUE FOR WET AREAS Y MOVEMENT JOINT.				
VALUE FOR WET AREAS Y MOVEMENT JOINT. TRACTOR	FIRST FLOOR SLAB PLAN -			
VALUE FOR WET AREAS Y MOVEMENT JOINT. TRACTOR Y SLIDING JOINT TO TOP	FIRST FLOOR SLAB PLAN -			
VALUE FOR WET AREAS Y MOVEMENT JOINT. TRACTOR Y SLIDING JOINT TO TOP	FIRST FLOOR SLAB PLAN -			
VALUE FOR WET AREAS RY MOVEMENT JOINT. TRACTOR RY SLIDING JOINT TO TOP RYPICAL WALL DETAILS)	FIRST FLOOR SLAB PLAN -         PART 3         Drawing No.         Revision No.			
VALUE FOR WET AREAS Y MOVEMENT JOINT. TRACTOR Y SLIDING JOINT TO TOP	FIRST FLOOR SLAB PLAN - PART 3			
D CONCRETE COLUMN OVER AND UNDER VALUE FOR WET AREAS AY MOVEMENT JOINT. TRACTOR AY SLIDING JOINT TO TOP TYPICAL WALL DETAILS) FOR TENDER	FIRST FLOOR SLAB PLAN -         PART 3         Drawing No.         Revision No.			
VALUE FOR WET AREAS RY MOVEMENT JOINT. TRACTOR RY SLIDING JOINT TO TOP RYPICAL WALL DETAILS)	FIRST FLOOR SLAB PLAN -         PART 3         Drawing No.         Revision No.			
VALUE FOR WET AREAS RY MOVEMENT JOINT. TRACTOR RY SLIDING JOINT TO TOP RYPICAL WALL DETAILS)	FIRST FLOOR SLAB PLAN -         PART 3         Drawing No.         Revision No.			

<u>E</u> D	<u>:</u> R SPECIFICATION NOTES REFER TO DWG S01 –
	SCHEDULE
	COMMENT(S)
	CONCRETE COLUMN – 8N20 VERTICAL. 2N10–300 TIES
	CONCRETE COLUMN – 6N20 VERTICAL. N10–300 TIES
	CONCRETE COLUMN – 8N20 VERTICAL. 2N10–300 TIES
	CONCRETE COLUMN – 12N16 VERTICAL. 3N16–300 TIES
	CONCRETE COLUMN – 8N20 VERTICAL. 2N10–300 TIES
	CONCRETE COLUMN – 8N20 VERTICAL. 2N10–300 TIES
	CONCRETE COLUMN – SUPPORTING FUTURE STRUCTURE. 8N20 VERT. BARS, 2N12–300

COMMENT(S)

STEEL FRAMING - GLAZING HEADER BEAM

TIES

CLERESTORY BEAM

CLERESTORY BEAM

CLERESTORY RAFTER

STEEL FRAMING – FASCIA

STEEL FRAMING – HEADER BEAM



- AND NATURAL GAS SERVICES TO BE PE 100 PN16 UNO.
- AT 1% GRADE UNO.
- AT 1.66% GRADE UNO.
- LOCATIONS OF QUICK CONNECT VALVE BOXES. PROVIDE 25mm RAINWATER REUSE SUPPLY TO EACH VALVE BOX -MAKE CONNECTION TO SUPPLIED VALVE BOX. ALL





ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT PLAN

#### 13. Appendix B – Risk Register

Lioyd NSW Ris Project Name Project Manager Client Bevision Number Bevision Date	Amity College	42 h Elley 1		M		BRISBANE	1		Note 2: 5 must cor Note 3: 1 of: • EXTRI must be • HIGH impleme • MECI produce • LOW be prodi	Significant implete this No activity EME (19 - 2 found; (15-18) is i inted UM (7-14) d (8 - 11) is r uced	15) is record recorded: ris is recorded:	ntal Hazards assessmen ertaken wh ed: DO NOT sk is unacce risk is und sk consider	nt; scored HIGH or above rere a SFAIRP risk score PROCEED a safer way ptable- controls must l mirable. SWM45 must b cd acceptable. SWM45 t	be e						]					
Trade Reference	Activity (chronological order)	Hazard Aspect/Source	Kisk/impact	Likelihood	Consequence	Kisk Rating	Company Controls (These are applied across all projects as per Boyd Procedures) 1. Management System Controls. ************************************		0 Irrination	Hierarch Substrution	ing of Contro Engine of ng	Administrative	is an acceptable Control Measure utilised	ts this High Risk Construction Work	is a SWMS documen required.	t is a permit required for these works	5 Likelihood	Consequence	nent Risk Rating	Further C Action O Required	ontrol Cont Iwner Impli Type	rols emented /frequency	Risk Status Com Open/Closed Note	iments Statutory Reference is Anstructions	
LLOYD	Planning high risk activities	Planning and coordination of high risk activities.	Unplanned and uncoordinated work poses a risk to worke and the public.	Possible	Catastrophic	1-22	1. 2) SIVING to be developed and approved by the site manager/supervisor prior to commissing work on site. 3) SIVING to be individed in all coordination meetings - Coordination plan and SIVING to form the coor of work scheduling and management. 2. N/A	I CRAW Workshops to be undertaken with all stakeholders to identify rolks an distance another. It are stakeholder to attend coordination metings. 3. Minutes of meetings to be distributed before work activities commerce.	a 🗸 🤉				Yes	Yes	Yes	No	Unlikely	Moderate	M-9	Si N	te tanager		Open	Clause 299-303 of the Work Health & Safety Regulation 2017 [KSW] Construction Work - Code of Practice	
LOYD	Energency management.	Workers not aware of emergency processes.	Emergency events no adequately managed	Unlikely	Catastrophic	5-22	2 3 Not Snarporty Management Kas to be developed. 3 Not Snarporty Management Kas to be developed and backeting, whereas of the contract the two strategisters are also a strate or a site of the strate of the strate of the strategister for all at the strate data of the strate of the strategister of the strategister of the strate of the strategister of the strateg	12. Site Speak(E energines) Flor to be developed 22. Site Manager to have first Aid Training	~		~		Yes	Yes	Yes	No	Unlikely	Moderate	M-9	Si N	ite Sanagor		Open	Claure 43 of the Work Health & Safety Regulation 2017 (NSW) Construction Work - Code of Practice First Aid in the Workplace - Code of Practice Managing the Work Environment and Facilities - Code of Practice	
LLCYD	Emergency planning &	Lack of Communication.	Unprepared for	Unlikely	Catastrophic	6-32	Emergency delik underskana at the indicated frequency. Bits Sopervisor and other identified personnel to have Emergency Response Training Inst Ard Training for appropriate personnel.	1. Site Specific Emergency Plan to be developed 2. Site Manager to have Tink Ald Training					Yes	Tes	Yes	No	Unlikely	Moderate	M-9	51	ite		Open	Clause 43 of the Work Health & Safety	v
	response	Lack of Communication. Not knowledge contact details of enorgency service personnel. Unaware of evacuation procedure	emergencies				al Star Energienes Management Filme Into Mendingell.     The Star Star Star Star Star Star Star Star	2. Site Manager to Alway Test Add Tracking												Μ	tanagor			Regulation 2027 (DKM) Construction Work - Code of Practice First Aid in the Workplace - Code of Practice Managing the Work Environment and Facilities - Code of Practice	
LOYD	First Aid	No first aider available whilst work is undertake on site. First aid equipment and facilities not suitable to the type of works being undertaken.	Inadequate first aid n personnel / facilities equipment for the pr	Likely and sject	Major	6-21	E a) A Trut Adar must be an site when works are long outstraine. B) A Trut Adar must be an site when works are long outstraine. B) Standard type for all bit required, standards the bit following types of dynamic Cut and the standards of the standard standard standards are bit following types of dynamic Cut and the standard standard standards are bit following types of dynamic Cut and the standard standards are bit following the standard standards B and a dynamic dynamic standards are bit following an other B and B and B and B	1. Site Manager to have Print Add Training					Yes	Yes	No	No	Likely	Minor	M-12	Si N	ite tanager		Open	Clause 42 of the Work Health & Safety Regulation 2017 (MW) First Aid in the Workplace Code of Practice Managing the Work Environment & Facilies Code of Practice	A.
LCYD	Establishment of construction uite boundaries.	Unsucharised entry onto the construction site. Entry onto all without the correct PPE	Members of the public entering work areas. Subcostractors, client delivery personnel entering the site with inadequate PPE.	c Likely	Major	521	I for a to be completely burneaded with transport permitter froming and baseding, which are permitter to the second permitter for the second pe			~			Yes	Yes	Tes	No	Rare	Moderate	16	S	ite Lanagor		Open	Managing the Work Environment and Facilities Code of Practice	1
LOPD	Sin Frening & Gels Society Unserted open	Christofhamed acterns to by children (Cchool Pupid) Chanashid events from unad children / the public Chanashid events from unad children / the public Chanashimid actions persons or vehicles	i injury 46. mobile pi injury form nobile pi injury from fails etc	fren Likely g in et	Major	C.21	Egyppenet. 2	In Strength of the Strength of Stren		-			Ter.	Yes	Ves	Mg	Bare	Moderate	Lő	SI M	te fanager		Dpen	Maaging the Work Environment and Facilities Code of Practice	
ALL	Working outdoors	Exposure to ultra violet light/ heat conditions	Skin disease/cancer, exhaustion/stroke, dehydration	eat Likely	Moderate	H17	L Where sunctained homesel (3 John) shall be defined and going material that the source where of UOT 30-1. Where the sunctain homesel (3 John) shall be first hard the follower where of UOT 30-1. The Register hands to be taken the transmitter that and and and a Register hands to be taken that the source transmitter and the Conduct toutiless table with regard to working solely in the heat.	Live of appropriate YFR as at this first and WHMs.     Convergency of the the samitable as at times.     Aussesseber conditions prior to constraintsment of works and only work     address and on the order samitable as at the samitable as at the same same same same same same same sam		-			Yes	No	No	No	Unlikely	Minor	LS	S	ite tanager		Open	Cluce 41 of the Work Health & Safety Regulation 2017 (NSW) Managing the Work Environment and Facilities - Code of Practice	
LOYD	haffic maragement access, egress and oxolo.	Traffic management during construction activities Work related noise including purpose, agi fracta etc. Vehicle enrisistens / odou generated	injuries to general public/predestrian/ traffic white delveni product to site and during construction activities. Reighbour complaint	Possible	Catastrophic	5-22		La Regrange processo per a here de la constante de la constant					Ves	Yes	Yes	No	Unlikely	Major	M-14	Si	te tanagor		Open	Claure 55-96 (nr an Wroch Health & S Regelated 2021 (North) Traffic Management Guide for Canternation Work	ifety

ALL Use of Tech and Tephyment for General Tech.	Workers using tools.	Noise, eye injuries, duit inhulation, electric shock, electrocution	Unlikely	Catantrophic 2-19	<ul> <li>A Schedurik in jurjement has been a surversit to ear fug by A to the ord surgement much in the proof an oracebak sandtars. Duringed regularment of the all advances of the survey of the survey of the survey of the C survey of the survey of the survey of the survey of the survey of the survey of the survey of the survey of the survey of the survey of the survey of the survey of the survey of the survey of the survey of the curvey of the survey.</li> <li>g Destruct Machine and the survey of the survey of the survey of the survey of the survey of the survey of the survey of the survey of the survey of the curvey of the survey.</li> <li>g Destruct Machine much to surgered of the filter on cubits and the survey of the survey of the survey of the survey of the survey of the survey of the survey of the survey of the s</li></ul>	<ol> <li>Weakly addy subt to be completed to capture tasting and tagging. If then to the large tast is not independent of the large tast of the large tast of the large tast of the large tast of the large tast of the large 2. Consult with its working at toolbox meeting's to remed them to duck tags</li> </ol>			Yes	No	No	No	Untikely	Major	86-14	Site Manag	ger	Open	Clucie 148.55 of the Work Health & Safety Regulators 2017 (Noti) Heartow Manual Tasks - Code of Practice Manage Bechrick Risks - Code of Practice AGN25 3760-2020
ELECTRICAL CONTRACTOR Providing temporary yours to	Electricity	Incorrect power supply to but results in the electrocution of workers. Disuption of power supply. Fines by the regulator.	Possible	Catastrophic 5-22	<ul> <li>In waters of experimentary to water for the A sectors.</li> <li>I beneting of a strandard carding with the first strate of perimeters.</li> <li>I beneting of a strate of cardinal c</li></ul>	We want the starting of an energiest Anticent data graphenet's values. The same type the extra the label can be also the point of the starting much the barries of the starting much the same prime of the starting much the starting of the starting much the same prime of the starting of the starting much the starting much the starting of the starting much the	v		- Tes	Tes .	Yes	Yes	Unlikely	Major	M-14	No Site Mana	ger	Ωpen	Chur 24, 353 of the Work Health & Safety Registering Chicking (Strong 1) Managing Chicking Health (Strain the Wonglace, Call of Physica Work (Strain 1), 1997 (Strain 1), 1997 Advice 3100, 2008 Advice 3100, 2009
ELECTRICAL CONTRACTOR   Restrict work	Electrical equipment not tested and tagged. Unprotected power source used.		Uslikely	Catantrophic C.53	L design of a design by qualified Dask A decistion. 9 Instant of a design by qualified Dask A decistion. 9 Enclose of a design by qualified Dask A decistion. 9 Enclose of the dask and quality and the dask and the da	1. Up to deal to and up explore the memory and a different set of the set	V	V	Y Yes	Yes	Yes	No	Rare	Major	96-10	Sile Manaj	gar	Open	Clause 144, 555 of the Wave Hwath & Safety Registerine 2027 (2004) Managang Elevation (Maria In Re- workings Call of the Hotsen Maria (2000) And Antonia Adapts (2000) Adapts (2000) Ada
ELCTRICA CONTACTOR Resolution on high	Wooking at heights - (Ladden)	fall from height Pailing objects	Possible	Cataletrophs 0.52	<ul> <li>In the second sec</li></ul>				Yes	Yes	Yes	No	Urtikoly	Major	86.34	Site Manaj	ger	Open	Clause 44 of the Work NumBi & Schrift Ragadinov 2023 (2016) Clause 74-86 of of the NumBi A Schrift Ragadinov 2023 (2016) Clause 144, 555 of the Num NumBi A Schrift Ragadinov 2023 (2016) Clause 144, 555 of the Num NumBi A Schrift Managing Filterstand Robas in the Workplance Schlaf (Practice Managing Filterstand Robas in the Workplance Schlaf (Practice) Adv Schlaf (Practice)
ELECTRICA CONTACTOR Resonances	Working at heights - (DM 5 Sanac Life) Mobile Plant	<ul> <li>Fall Grow height</li> <li>Songended Worker</li> <li>Falling elspicts</li> <li>Contact by mobile plant</li> </ul>	Possible	Catalitytic C-22	<ul> <li>Profession and the strength year of th</li></ul>	2. Encore Magine record plan is interpreted for the TMMA. All involves program if the forling of the terms of the part is connecting used.	· •	~	Yes.	Yes	Yes	No	Uelikely	Moderate	M-9	Site Mana	84	Open	Cause 54 of the Work within & Lifery Registrow 2022 (1993) Cause 27-86 of of the Work Hearth & Galley Registrow 2022 (1993) Cause 274-253 of the Work Hearth & Cause 274-253 of the Work Hearth Workgraph This Add Prillion 10 Workgraph Efficient California (1994) Workgraph California (1994)
ELECTRICAL CONTRACTOR Receiping in cable.	Hanging cable. Colled cable on the floor.	Eye Injucies. Slip, trip and falls.	Possible	Minor 14-8	L     Groups all cating is inflat to just of an improve down at regis level     A formula cating is inflat to just of an improve down at regis level     A for more cating on the groups days to all and out of walkingses.     A formula inflat catality in enducing more to herecade of they have day     Groups and an inflat catality in enducing more to herecade of they have day     Entroin which is he cannot not be proportiately learned individuals (DOV contractor     Izeros)		×	×	Yes	Yes	Yes	No	Unlikely	Minor	is	Site Manaj	ger -	Open	Clause 143-55 of the Work Health & Safety Regulation 2017 (MSW) Manging Electrical Disks in the Workplace Code of Practice AS(N25 3000-2018
ALL Using Lawers.	Use of class 2 laser Use of class 3 laser (class 3a and above are a highe risk rating)	Retinal and other eye damage risk / irradiation	Unlikely	Mcderate M-9	L     Control reprings to be in place plane to the works     d) shatch lase of when not in our     d) shatch lase of when not in our     d) are to be out any or mundatures instructions     d) are to be out any or mundatures instructions     d) are to be out any or mundature instructions     d) are to be ou			~	Yes	řes	Yes	No	Unlikely	Minor	ы	Site	gør	Open	Clause 223 of the Work Health & Safery Regulation 2017 (IKSM) AS 2397/2015
ALL Handling materials	Sharp materials / manual handling injuries	Cuts and facerations to workers / crush injury / contusions / sprains / strains	Likely	Moderate M-1	Los di or instante plane - apuis or bior time Annu Franchesen 12024.     Los di or instante plane - apuis or bior time.     Los que plane bior and reason:     Los que plane bior and reason:     Los que plane bior and reason:     Los di or antitudi di la sussione and antidada, 4 gui abradi hiera an instantanda     Los di oranza di la sub console and antidada.     Los di articutari di la sub console and antidada, 4 gui abradi hiera an instantanda     Los di articutari di la sub console and antidada.     Los di articutari di la sub console and antidada.     Los di la sub console and antidada di la sub console and antidada.     Los di la sub console antidada di la sub console antidada     Los antidada di la sub console antidada di la sub console antidada     Los antidada     L	<ol> <li>Three for copy any placed on all exposed no bars</li> </ol>	v		¥ Yes	No	No	No	Unlikely	Insignificant	12	Site Marag	ger	Open	Clause 78.40 of the Work Health & Sufety Regulation.2027 [NSW] Hazardoust Manual Taxis - Code of Practice
TRUCTURS STEEL Down of host second an up	Flert va person interaction Superview Loads Crane fullare / rollower Contact with overhead electrical services	Inshite or other sockers truck by plant or falling objects. Risk of cruch / fatality Electric shock / electrocution	Possible	Catantrophic 6.22	<ul> <li>Community Trade Management Prior Is the Taylor Johnson Sequence of Trade Management Prior Is the Taylor Sequence of Trade Management Prior Is and the Taylor Management Prior Trade Management Is and the Taylor Management Prior Trade Managem</li></ul>	<ol> <li>Only State Cover Opening and Opening the Unit of the Automation and Devine an antimation and allowed particular devines of the Devine of Cover Devine Cover Devine and Devine Cover A cover of Devine Cover Devine Cover Devine Cover Devine A Cover of Devine Cover Devine Cover Devine Cover Devine A Cover of Devine Cover Devine Cover Devine Cover Devine A Cover of Devine Cover Devine Cover Devine Cover Devine A Cover of Devine Cover Devine Cover Devine Cover Devine A Cover of Devine Cover Devine Cover Devine Cover Devine Cover Devine A Cover of Devine Cover Devine Cover Devine Cover Devine Cover Devine A Cover of Devine Cover Devine Cover</li></ol>	V	V	Yes	Yes	Yes	No	Uefikoly	Major	M-34	Sile Manaj	ger -	Open	Clause 1.5 of of the Work Health & Safety Regulation 2020 (1950) Manage Rasks of Plant In the Workplace A 2506 5.5055 A 34497 2021 Safet Work General Guide for Chanes Guide for Chemical & Underground Electric Lines

ALL	Unidentifiable materials.	Coming into contact wit	h Exposure to hazardous Possible	Moderate M-13	1. a) Evacuation Plan to be detailed in the Site Emergency Plan, and communicated to all	2. Site Manager to be contacted as a priority			-	Ye		No	No	No	Unlikely	Minor	14	Sibe	Open	Clause 419-529 of the Work Health &
		unidentified materials	materials.		<ul> <li>a) Evacuation Plan to be detailed in the Site Emergency Plan, and communicated to all employees.</li> <li>b) Asbestos and Unidentified Materials Procedure to be implemented if required.</li> </ul>													Manager		Safety Regulation 2017 [NSW] How to Safely Remove Asbestos - Code of
																				Practice Managing Risks of Hazardous Chemicals
																				in the Workplace - Code of Practice
ALL	Hazardous Materials presence in the workplace	Working with and arour Asbestos, PCBs and Mineral Fibre. Lead-	d Contact with carcinogens Possible Contact with other hazardous materials and	Major H-18	L a) Hazardous Materials Survey to be considered if hazardous materials suspected. b) Exclusion zone to be established and signage established to prevent unauthorised	Management Plans to be made available to all subcontractors.     2. SDS folder to be accessible in the site office		-	~	* Ye	•	Yes	Yes	No	Rare	Moderate	1-6	Site Manager	Open	Clause 419-484 of the Work Health & Safety Regulation 2017 [NSW]
		Mineral Fibre. Lead- exposure, disease. Wrongful disposal.	hazardous materials and chemicals. Synthetic Mineral fibre		access of contaminated areas. c) Autors or other hazardous materials presence must be clarified - management plan	3. Asbestos Register to be maintained on site														How to Safely Remove Asbestos - Code of Practice
			hazardous materials and chemicals. Synthetic Mineral fibre exposure. Asbestos, PCBs. lead- exposure, disease, wrongful disposal.		may need to be developed by specialist removalists. d) Encepsulation(viscation of hazardous materials during removal processes. e) if hazardous materials are being installed on site (i.e. Rockwood, Ribergiess etc.) it shall be handled, stored and installed in accordance with the Product Information Sheet and															Managing Risks of Hazardous Chemicals in the Workplace - Code of Practice
			wrongful disposal.		be handled, stored and installed in accordance with the Product Information Sheet and SDS. (1) Task appropriate PPE (long clothing and respiratory protection required)															in the Workplace - Code of Practice
					2. Literated removabilit (content), depend on type of hazardous resterial)															
EXCAVATION CONTRACTOR	Earthworks	Underground or buried services	Contact with Possible underground or buried services resulting in	Catastrophic 2-22		The subcontractors SMMS are to identify the hand digging inspection holes to identify digth and position of all services. A nosition methy is to be hald with the subcontractor to discuss the identification of low services or insidied services and ensure they are clearly identified point communicement of work.     DRITD plans and existing services drawings to be displayed on site	Ý	×	~	✓ Ye	•	Yes	Yes	Yes	Unlikely	Moderate	M-0	Site Manager	Open	Clause 304-306 of the Work Health & Safety Regulation 2017 [NSW]
			underground or buried services resulting in injuries or disruption to services affecting the community.		L     A Alter survery is to be understateney prior to any excention works to ensure any inderstateney and any structure of the ensurement of the ensu	identification of live services or isolated services and ensure they are clearly identified prior to commencement of work. 3. DBYD cleans and existing services diversions to be displayed on site														Excavation Work - Code of Practice
					a) & Scotter is required to monitor distance from preservations (po.en pose). Positive															Managing the Risks of Plant in the Workplace - Code of Practice
					communication at all times () Approved excavation and trenching permit required prior to starting work															Guide for Overhead & Underground Electric Lines
					<ol> <li>Only competent Excavator Operators allowed to operate excavator (minimum VDC required) Statement of Attainment preferred.</li> </ol>															
ALL	Working in and around power sources	Drilling, holing or other activities in areas where	Electrocution through Possible contact with live wiring,	Catastrophic 5-22	required; sourcement of Anzanimeter preserves.  I  a) Indition of power as per risk assessment and permit to work completed. b) All service located and manined on drawings c) Electricity suppled by Basidual Current Device that has been tested	The subcontractors SWMS are to identify the hand digging inspection holes to identify depth and position of all services.     A toolbox meeting is to be held with the subcontractor to discuss the identification of low services or isolated services and ensure they are clearly		1		* Ye	•	Yes	Yes	Yes	Unlikely		M-10	Site Manager	Open	Clause 166 of the Work Health & Safety Regulation 2017 [NSW]
		power sources may be present.	contact with live wiring, use of electricity tools and equipment electrocution, electric arc, electric shock, burns.		<ul> <li>c) is servere located and manage on drawings</li> <li>c) Electricity supplied by Readual Current Device that has been tested</li> <li>d) Approved excavation and trenching permit required prior to starting work</li> <li>e) A Spotter is required to monitor distance from power sources (no-go zone). Positive</li> </ul>	<ol> <li>A boolook meeting is to be him with the subcontractor to backus the identification of live services or isolated services and ensure they are clearly identified prior to commencement of work.</li> <li>DBYD plans and existing services drawings to be displayed on site</li> </ol>														General Guide for working in the vicinity of overhead and underground electric
			electric shock, burns.		<ul> <li>e) A Spotter is required to monitor distance from power sources (no-go zone). Positive communication at all times</li> </ul>	3. DBYD plans and exisiting services drawings to be displayed on site														lines
					<ol> <li>Cnly competent Escavator Operators allowed to operate escavator (minimum VDC required) Statement of Attainment preferred.</li> </ol>															Manage Electrical Risks - Code of Practice Manage Risks of Plant in the Workplace - Code of Practice
																				Code of Practice AS/NZS 3760:2010
EXCAVATION CONTRACTOR	Decavation Work - Planning an excavation	Adjacent buildings and structures at risk Work area unsecured - insufficient preparation	Collapse of adjacent Unlikely structures and property loss/damage	Catastrophic E-19	L a) Develop plan/SWMS in consultation with escavation contractor, plant operator and consult protechnical advisor regarding design of escavation structure.	<ol> <li>Excavation work is or involves high risk construction work, a person conducting a business or undertaking must prepare a SWMS before the high risk construction work starts.</li> </ol>		×	1	Y Ye	5	Yes	Yes	Yes	Rare	Major	M-10	Site Manager	Open	Clause 81, 304-306 of the Work Health & Safety Regulation 2017 [NSW]
		insufficient preparation or site security Materials and loads in			consult geotechnical advisor regarding design of escawation structure. b) Designer of structure may also need to be consulted depending on the nature and risk of the escawation to neighbouring structures. c) Consult BDM regarding weather effects to ensure safe to proceed. Mandatory:															Excavation Work - Code of Practice
		proximity to planned excavation			<ul> <li>c) Contract forom regimenting workshow to receive a name to proceed, manufactury.</li> <li>d) Excavation and thereching proceedure</li> <li>e) Excavation and thereching proceedure</li> <li>f) D3D Diab before you dig mouth be consulted prior to any excavation works</li> </ul>															Manage Risks of Plant in the Workplace - Code of Practice
					<ul> <li>g) Lloyd Group must ensure the delinetation of plant and workers by an approproate means</li> </ul>															
EXCAVATION CONTRACTOR	Excavation & Removal of Contaminated solls - Lead &	Contact with Hazardour Materials	Worker contact with Possible contaminated solls, Lead	Moderate M-13	<ul> <li>h) For all excavations deeper than 1.5 metres, shoaring must be used, or a geotech report         <ol> <li>a) Soil testing to be undertaken to determine the extent of the contamination.</li> <li>b) Dust suppression techniques to be used during excavation</li> </ol> </li> </ul>	<ol> <li>Excavation work is or involves high risk construction work, a person conducting a business or undertaking must prepare a SWMS before the high risk construction work starts.</li> </ol>		~	~	* Ye	•	Yes	Yes	Yes	Unlikely		14	Sibe Manager	Open	Clause 304-306 of the Work Health & Safety Regulation 2017 [NSW]
	other		exposure		<ul> <li>c) Any stockpiled soil is to be covered</li> <li>d) Waste disposal – licensed transported and landfill and records of disposal.</li> </ul>	work starts. 2. Discuss exclusion zone at daily prestart, and carry out daily checks on exclusion														Excavation Work - Code of Practice
					<ul> <li>e) Correct PPE to be worn</li> <li>f) Exclusion zone to be established and signage established to prevent unauthorised access of contaminated areas.</li> </ul>	zone														Manage Risks of Hazardous Chemicals in the Workplace
					2. Only competent Excavator Operators allowed to operate excavator (minimum VDC required) Statement of Attainment preferred.															Manage Risks of Plant in the Workplace - Code of Practice
EXCAVATION CONTRACTOR	Excavations and plant movement on site	Contact with overhead services	Electrocution, disruption Rare of power and	Catastrophic N-15	L a) All abras ensured services are to be highlighted with Danser Tars, sould working near	Site Supervisor is to ensure that:     All above ground services are highlighted with danger tape.		~	~	- Yes	5	Yes	Yes	Yes	Rare	Moderate	1.6	Sibe Manager	Open	Clause 304-306 of the Work Health & Safety Regulation 2017 [NSW]
			communication services.		above ground services where ever possible. b) Where works are being completed near live above ground services, a spotter is	<ol> <li>Site Supervisor is to ensure that: - Jal Johon ground services are highlighted with danger taps. - A toobser mention is to be highlighted with the contractor prior to any escawition to review that SWMS, ensure the NO GD ZDMES are highlighted and the operators are assess of the rules.         </li> </ol>														Excavation Work - Code of Practice
					required. • NO CO 20085 () A pother who has successfully completed an accredited upother-training ocurve is required who are excatation such its being completed new control ad power lines. () Plant should newer work within the NO CO 2008 distances, unless they have written approval from the relevant power subject roomsaw. () Ensure appropriate sigms are in place and barricading (Where Required).															Manage Risks of Hazardous Chemicals in the Workplace
					d) Plant should never work within the NO GO ZDNE diatances, unless they have written approval from the relevant power supply company.															Manage Risks of Plant in the Workplace - Code of Practice
					Z. Only competent Excavator Operators allowed to operate excavator (minimum VDC															CONTRACTOR
EXCAVATION	Decavation works	Unknown underground essential services	Pitting underground Unlikely essential services - local	Catastrophic E-19	<ol> <li>A site survey is to be undertaken prior to any escavation works to ensure any</li> </ol>	<ol> <li>The subcontractors SWMS are to identify the hand digging inspection holes to identify depth and position of all services.</li> </ol>		~	~	* Ye	5	Yes	Yes	Yes	Unlikely	Moderate	M-9	Site Manager	Open	Clause 304-306 of the Work Health & Safety Regulation 2017 [NSW]
		Unstable weather conditions	outage, injuries to persons, fire, flood Structural collapse		unidentified services that may exist are identified. b) Identify services using the existing services drawings as well as contacting Dial Before You Dig and clearly define position and depth of all services identified. c) Clearly mark out services.	<ol> <li>A toolbox meeting is to be held with the subcontractor to discuss the identification of live services or isolated services and ensure they are clearly identified prior to commencement of work.</li> </ol>														Excavation Work - Code of Practice
					d) Where possible isolate any existing services and hand dig an inspection hole to expose	3. DBYD plans and exisiting services drawings to be displayed on site														Manage Risks of Plant in the Workplace - Code of Practice
					ervices. e) A Spotter is required to monitor distance from power sources (no-go zone). Positive communication at all times f) Approved excavation and trenching permit required prior to starting work.															
					<ol> <li>Conjy competent Excavator Operators allowed to operate excavator (minimum VDC</li> </ol>															
ALL	Excavation and trenching	Trench collapse.	Enguliment of workers. Possible	Catastrophic F672	required) Statement of Attainment preferred.	2. Record of inspection and maintenance relevant to the plant.				- Yes		Yes	Yes	Yes	Rare	Moderate	1.6	Site	Open	Clause 291-306 of the Work Health &
					L a) All browshes and escanations (with a depth graneter than 1.3 metros) are subject to a not assume on the state of the providing graneter largering values, a state of our of a state of the state of the state of the providing graneter largering values, a state of the list APMONE to be obviously of all and values (graneter largering values) and the list APMONE to be obviously of all and values (graneter largering values) and the output measurement of the state of an elevance of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of	<ol> <li>Record of impaction and maintenance relevant to the plant.</li> <li>Create an exclusion zone around plant, Phorena alarms and flashing light working, Correct PPE for all sets working as plant plant, high Visibility Coloting, Establish they exclusion with the Plant powerand in relencing the area.</li> <li>Consult with other site personnel at toolbox meeting the series.</li> <li>Consult with other site personnel at toolbox meeting the series.</li> <li>A remain to Escutarized equal to be.</li> <li>A remain to Escutarized equal to be.</li> </ol>												Manager		Safety Regulation 2017 [NSW]
					b) A SWMS is to be developed for all trenching/excavation tasks, The SWMS includes control measures for the safe use of, exzavation plant, Employees have been inducted into the SWMS relevant to their trenching or exavation work.	<ol> <li>Consult with other site personnel at toolbox meeting to explain where exclusion zones/barricades will be.</li> <li>Permit to Excavate required before works commence</li> </ol>														Manage Risks of Plant in the Workplace -
					c) All trenching and excavation operations should be subject to daily monitoring by the site supervisor to make sure that specific SWMS safety controls and the following safety improvements and obscured.															Code of Practice
					requirements are courses. d) No person ever enters an unsupported section, trenching supports are appropriate to the conditions (i.e. the need or otherwsise for trench shields, done shewting or benching) e) Spoil heaps are properly positioned at least 0.5 metres from the edges of the trench															
					e) Spoil indust are properly positioning at status 3, mintrin short the edges on the therein f) Safe ladder access, with side guarding is provided into the therein g) No person is working above in an excavation h) persons do not remain in close proximity to where an excavator is operatin (silew zone)															
					<ol> <li>I um excession in processor of parametering uninterant i ensure workers in executations are not exposed to an accumulation of hazardous furnes including furnes from petiol or deal vehicles k) Contraction must use abanding where excavations are more than 1.5 meters deep, unless the grotech report states otherwise.</li> </ol>															
					2. Only competent Excavator Operators allowed to operate excavator (minimum VDC															
IRE CONTRACTOR					required) Statement of Attainment preferred.	2. Weekly site walk through must be conducted - look specifically at storage and														Clause 219,226 of the Work Health &
IRP CONTRACTOR	r ormwork	Storage and handling timber and frames.	Sips, Trips, Falls, Manual Possible Handling Injuries	Moderate M-13	1. a) Irnure work areas are free from trip hazards b) Irnure walkoways are free from trip hazards	<ol> <li>Weekly site walk through must be conducted - look specifically at storage and lay down areas.</li> <li>Formworker required to clean deck daily and ensure free from debris.</li> </ol>		ľ	×	Yes		Tes.	Tes	NO	Possible	insignificant		Site Manager	Open	Safety Regulation 2017 [NSW]
					<ul> <li>c) barricade off materials, maintain a clear path of access to all work areas.</li> <li>d) Ensure materials are laid flat and not leaning up against other items where they could be knocked over</li> </ul>															Guide to Formwork
	1	1											1	1		1				

IRP CONTRACTOR	installing re bars	Starter and other pretraware. Drawarium, pring holes.	Major M-3	Logonal or low to have only report on score as reasonably practicable     () car revealing given an oling catching to be soon     () carrows and protocolorism are concerned and swarring spins in place     () ensure work area is Bantosched.	<ol> <li>Where practicable, advances for work for work how any dates it has step.</li> <li>Star Support to inverse the industriant SIMME and ensure control measures are in place to prevent possibility of impalement</li> </ol>			Í	Yes	Yes	Yes	No	Rane	Moderate	16	Site Manage	per	Open	Guide to Formwork Hazardous Manual Tasks - Code of Practice
----------------	--------------------	---	-----------	---	---	--	--	---	-----	-----	-----	----	------	----------	----	----------------	-----	------	---



#### ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT PLAN 14. Appendix C – Environmental Policy

Lloyd Group believes the protection and management of our physical and social environment is an integral part of our organisation's daily operations.

Lloyd Group is committed to protecting and preserving the environment in all circumstances, to assist in the provision of a sustainable lifestyle for both present and future generations. We are committed to continual improvement with a goal of meeting or exceeding our client's expectations.

To achieve our commitment, we will:

- develop and implement a systematic approach to the management of environmental aspects and impacts.
- ensure this policy is documented, implemented, maintained and communicated to all employees, subcontractors, clients, and the public as required.
- continuously meet our statutory obligations regarding all relevant federal, state and local regulations and other requirements.
- Continually monitor and assess the needs of stakeholders and other interested parties.
- establishing measurable objectives and targets to improve our environmental performance.
- communicate our environmental management strategies to all staff, contractors and relevant third
  parties including the public.
- procure products and services based on minimising pollution and waste and promoting recycling principles wherever possible.
- conduct regular training and awareness programs for all management, staff and contractors.
- monitor and audit our environmental processes and management plan with a view to continually improving our environmental management system to enhance environmental performance,
- Comply with the requirements of AS/NZS ISO 14001:2004.

Lloyd Group, through the nature of its operational activities, accepts that it must share and promote the responsibility of Environmental Sustainability and will therefore act in a morally responsible manner at all times.

Dustin Lloyd Managing Director 28-01-2022

Clinton Lloyd Managing Director 28-01-2022



ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT PLAN 15. Appendix D – Community Consultation Strategy



# AMITY COLLEGE SCHOOL SSD 9227

PT. LOTS 1 & 2 DP 525996 No. 85 BYRON ROAD & No. 63 INGLEBURN ROAD, LEPPINGTON, NSW

Community Communication Strategy: Early Works and Stage 1



Prepared by:

Outline Planning Consultants Pty. Limited Town Planning Consultants Suite 2301,Level 3, Quattro Building No. 4 Daydream Street WARRIEWOOD NSW 2102

ABN: 34 003 473 112

Telephone: (02) 9262 3511 www.outline.com.au

### On behalf of:

Amity College 163 Kurrajong Road PRESTONS NSW 2170

Telephone: (02) 8784 3111

June 2021



## AMITY COLLEGE SCHOOL PROJECT SSD-9227 Community Communication Strategy: Early Works and Stage 1

Details	
Project Name	Amity College New School
Project Application Number	SSD 9227
Description of Project	New Primary School and Secondary School
Project Address	No. 85 Byron Road & No. 63 Ingleburn Road, Leppington
Proponent	Amity College
Title of Report	Amity College School SSD 9227 Community Communication Strategy
Date	June 2021



Author	Gary Peacock
Title	Director
Signature	yany keenle
Qualification	Bachelor of Town Planning (UNSW)
Company	Outline Planning Consultants Pty Ltd
Company Address	Suite 2301, Level 3, Quattro Building, No. 4 Daydream Street, WARRIEWOOD NSW 2102





## Contents

Section		Page No.
1	Introduction	4
	1.1 Overview	4
	1.2 Features of this Community Communication Strategy	7
	1.3 A Community in Transition to Urban Uses	8
	1.4 About the Overall Amity College School Project	10
	1.5 Physical Site Address	12
	1.6 Community use of School Facilities	12
2	Community Engagement Objectives	15
	2.1 Overview	15
	2.2 Community Engagement Objectives	15
	2.3 Higher Level Messages	17
3	Project Governance	19
4	Stakeholders	20
5	Engagement Approach	22
	5.1 Engagement Approach	22
	5.2 Communication Tools	22
	5.3 Provision of Information on Amity College's Website	25
6	Engagement Delivery Timeline	26
7	Procedures and Protocols	27
	7.1 Communications Management Procedures	27
	7.2 Media Releases	27
	7.3 Works Notification Process	27
	7.4 Incidents	28
8	Disputes and Conflict Resolution	29
9	Community Communication Strategy Review and Improvement	31
	Appendix A	32





## ■ 1.Introduction

### 1.1 1.1 Overview

This Community Communication Strategy has been prepared by Outline Planning Consultants Pty Ltd on behalf of Amity College Australia. It outlines a proposed approach for stakeholder and community communications and engagement throughout the construction of the various approved stages of the new school campus Development Consent SSD-9227 at Leppington, to be operated by Amity College. The new school will ultimately accommodate up to 1,000 students.

This Community Communication Strategy has been prepared to meet the requirements of condition C7 of the development consent for SSD 9227 and is submitted to the Planning Secretary for information purposes only.

The focus here is on the Community Communication Strategy relating to the early works tender package (to be completed by late 2021) as well as the accelerated Stage 1 of the project (to be completed prior to school Term 1 in 2023). Further refinements will be made in regard to later stages of the project.

# Due to COVID restrictions face-to-face meetings or like forums are not encouraged. The Strategy will be amended accordingly to include such forums once COVID restrictions are lifted.

The early works tender package comprises the following:

- Clearing of vegetation on the site.
- Re-shaping the site, bulk earthworks.
- Construction of sediment and erosion control devices and stormwater drainage measures.
- Excavation work including Primary School basement car park area.
- Creation of stockpiles and importation of approved fill to the site.Provision for construction parking and construction compound.

The revised Stage 1 of the School project involves accelerating Stages 1-4 of the following:

- Construction of a new Primary School building complex, fronting Pluto Avenue.
- Construction of basement car park under the Primary School building.
- Provide accommodation for up to 300 students in a new primary School building complex.
- Provide 45 car parking spaces in a basement car park.
- Provide 17 pick up/drop off area at the front of the new Primary School.
- Provision of substantial areas dedicated to open space, landscaping, and school student play areas.
- Parking area for construction compound.

The Community Communication Strategy provides mechanisms to facilitate communication between the Amity College, Camden Council and the community (including adjoining affected landowners and businesses, and others directly impacted by the development), during the design and construction of the development and for a minimum of 12 months following the completion of construction of each relevant stage. Refer to **Figures 1.1** and **1.2**.







Community Communication Strategy Amity College SSD 9227, Leppington NSW Outline Planning Consultants Pty Ltd Town Planners & Project Managers





Community Communication Strategy Amity College SSD 9227, Lep **Outline Planning Consultants Pty Ltd** Town Planners & Project Managers





### 1.2 Features of this Community Communication Strategy

The Community Communication Strategy has the following features:

■ It will be updated to include the revised scope of works prior to the commencement of works of each stage of the development and include additional communication strategies, where relevant. In this regard, the school development has been approved over a number of stages which will take 10 or more years before completion. This Strategy focuses on the early works and revised Stage 1 (basically accelerated stages 1-4) of the project.

The Strategy identifies people to be consulted during the various stages of the Amity College school project.

■ The Strategy sets out procedures and mechanisms for the regular distribution of accessible information about or relevant to the Amity College school project.

■ SSD 9227 consent condition C7(d) provides for the formation of community-based forums, if required, that focus on key environmental management issues for the development.

The Strategy sets out procedures and mechanisms:

- through which the community can discuss or provide feedback to Amity College;
- through which Amity College will respond to enquiries or feedback from the community; and
- resolve any issues and mediate any disputes that may arise in relation to construction and operation of the development, including disputes regarding rectification or compensation.

■ SSD 9227 consent condition C7(f) provides that the the Strategy is to include any specific requirements around traffic, noise and vibration, visual impacts, amenity, flora and fauna, soil and water, contamination, heritage.

Community involvement does not just not stop there, as Amity College intends to not only to involve the community during the construction of the school, but also aims to allow the use of its school facilities by the community. Refer to Section 1.6 for further details.

The following Table 1.1 summarises where each of the requirements of SSD 9227 consent condition C7 are addressed in this document.

#### Table 1.1: Community Communication Checklist

SSD 9227 condition C7 Community Communication Strategy provision	Where addressed in this Community Communication Strategy document
"a) be updated to include the revised scope of works prior to the commencement of works of each subsequent stage of the development and include additional communication strategies, where relevant"	Refer Section 1.1
"(b) identify people to be consulted during the design and construction phases;"	Refer Section 4
"(c) set out procedures and mechanisms for the regular distribution of accessible information about or relevant to the development;"	Refer Section 5
"(d) provide for the formation of community-based forums, if required, that focus on key environmental management issues for the development;"	Refer Section 5



(Michael Siu Landscape Architects)



"(e) set out procedures and mechanisms:	Refer Sections 7 & 8
(i) through which the community can discuss or provide feedback to the Applicant;	
(ii) through which the Applicant will respond to enquiries or feedback from the community; and	
(iii) to resolve any issues and mediate any disputes that may arise in relation to construction and operation of the development, including disputes regarding rectification or compensation;	
"(f) include any specific requirements around traffic, noise and vibration, visual impacts, amenity, flora and fauna, soil and water, contamination, heritage."	Refer Section 2.3

### **1.3 A Community in Transition to Urban Uses**

The Community Communication Strategy will be strongly influenced by the nature of the surrounding neighbourhood and development, both now and into the future. The Amity College school site and the surrounding area forms a part of the Leppington Priority Precinct, rezoned in 2015 as a part of *State Environmental Planning Policy (Sydney Region Growth Centres) 2006.* Refer **Figure 1.3**. This rezoning not only specifically rezoned the Amity College site for the specific purpose of a school, it also set in place new zonings that would allow for the transformation of what was a rural area on the urban fringe of South-West Sydney into one accommodating up to 2,500 new homes and an population of more than 7,700 residents (Stage 1 only).

When the Amity College project was approved in July 2020 the surrounding area comprised small rural acreages with small pockets of land being developed for urban residential purposes. Since that time, a residential housing estate adjoining the school site to the south, fronting Pluto Avenue, has been developed, with further pockets of land being further developed for residential housing to the south and to the east of the Amity College school site. The message is clear: the area is being rapidly transformed into a residential housing area, with an increasing residential population surrounding the Amity College school site. Refer **Photograph 1**.



FIGURE 1.3: The Project Site is located at Leppington, in Sydney's South West Priority Growth Area





PHOTOGRAPH 1: LeppingtonPriority Precinct is a rapidly growing urban area. When the DA was lodged for the Amity College project, in August 2019, the land adjoining to the south was a 'greenfields' site with no housing development. By the time the SSD 9227 DA was approved, in July 2020, a new housing estate was well established, sharing a common frontage with the school to Pluto Avenue. These dwellings are the most proximate to Stage 1 of the school project. (Drone photography January 2021)




Add to this the fact that at the southern end of Byron Road is another approved school campus, to be run by the Sydney Anglican Schools Corporation, with an ultimate school population of 894 students. The influence of both schools will be felt on the local community. Once the two schools are completed there will be two large school campuses located at either end of Byron Road, with Byron Road is likely to become a transport artery heavily used by school students, parents and teachers alike, with cycleways planned to run along the entire length of this road.

The above presents both challenges and opportunities in terms of devising an appropriate strategy for Amity College in communicating with this growing community.

# 1.4 About the Overall Amity College School Project

Amity College is building a new school at 85 Byron Road, Leppington. The project will deliver the staged construction and operation of a new kindergarten, primary school and high school, including the following:

■ Construction of multiple school buildings (two to four storeys) for up to 1,000 primary and secondary students (Kindergarten – Year 12).

Construction of two multi-purpose halls, one serving the primary school, the other serving the secondary school.

- Playing courts, open spaces and covered outdoor learning areas (COLAs).
- Library and administration block, including canteen.
- Bus bay located on Byron Road.

■ On-site car parking spaces, including basement car parking doe the secondary school and primary school buildings.

Stormwater, landscaping works and external roadworks, the latter including widening of Pluto Avenue, Byron Road and construction of a new local street on the northern perimeter of the site.

Refer Figure 1.4, which shows the overall layout of the approved school.

#### NOTE: This Strategy focusses on the early works and revised Stage 1 of the project.

Designed by leading architectural firm, Gran Associates Australia, with input from specialist consultants and informed by the latest thinking in the design of modern teaching and learning spaces, the purpose-built school that will deliver a quality learning and working environment for both students and staff. This project was granted approval in July 2020 as State Significant Development SSD 9227.

Site preparation will involve site remediation followed by clearing of trees & vegetation and earthworks. The construction of the school will be carried out in stages which will result in in a campus comprising buildings of variable height from two storeys on the southern side (primary school), up to three storeys for the secondary school, and a maximum of four storeys for the main administration building. These buildings will be arranged around two north facing play courtyards, opening to the north west towards a larger play area and the future recreation reserve, the latter intended to be co-shared with Council for passive and active play, linked to the school's central open space area.

The bus bay fronting Byron Road, will be constructed in an early stage of the project, capable of accommodating up to five (5) buses or four (4) coaches.







(Source: Michael Siu Landscape Architects)

Vehicular access also to be available from two local roads, one that is currently partially constructed (Pluto Avenue, designated as Road 1) and one which is yet to be constructed (designated as Road 2).

Once the school development is fully developed, it will have capacity to accommodate a total of 104 onsite car parking spaces (94 basement parking spaces plus 10 drop-off spaces), plus parallel bays capable of accommodating a further 7 cars. A further 15 angled on street car parking spaces are proposed on the northern local road (Road 2).

Landscaping of the school campus incorporates formal and informal outdoor learning areas, general congregation and circulation areas, an 'inner green' and 'outer green' lawn areas, canopy shade trees, perimeter mass planting and canopy tree plantings, and seating.

The general hours of operation for the school for all stages will be between 7.00am and 9.00pm (source: the hours of operation of educational establishments as specified in Section 4.4.3 of *Camden Growth Centre Precincts Development Control Plan*). These operating hours will cover almost all school-related activities, including out-of-hours community use of school facilities.





## 1.5 1.5 Physical Site Address

Amity College has approval to establish a new primary and secondary school campus on land covering part Lots 1 and 2 in Deposited Plan 525996 No. 85 Byron Road and No. 63 Ingleburn Road, at Leppington (Project Site or Site).

The approved school is located approximately 39km south-west of the Sydney CBD and forms a part of the NSW Government's South West Priority Growth Area within the Camden Local Government Area. The Project Site lies approximately 1.2km away from the Leppington railway station.

## Refer Figure 1.5.



(Map Base Source: excerpt Land and Property Information Liverpool 9030-2S 1:25,000 online map 1km grid)

# 1.6 Community Use of School Facilities

Amity College already offers the use of its facilities at it's Prestons and Auburn campuses to the communityprincipally the use of the multi-purpose hall for sporting and exercise pursuits. A range of school facilities will be made available for use by the wider community outside of normal school hours at the proposed school campus at Leppington, as described in the EIS accompanying the development application, referred to in the issued consent.

Similar to existing arrangements at Amity College's Prestons school campus, the facilities that will be made available to individuals and groups will be only for purposes that are appropriate for a school site. Not-for-Profit organisations will receive preference in facility hire applications.





## Amity College school facilities proposed for community use

The following school facilities at the Leppington campus are planned to be made available for community use (refer to **Figure 1.6**):

- Multipurpose School Hall Secondary (main community use facility). Site 1 on Figure 1.6.
- Primary School Hall (minimal use). Site 2 on Figure 1.6.
- Lecture Room Secondary. Site 3 on Figure 1.6.
- Community rooms Administration building. Site 4 on Figure 1.6.
- General Learning areas Primary & Secondary. (Most of the primary School to be constructed in Stage 1)
- The drop off/pick up zone at the front of the primary school (Stage 1).

Other potential facilities that may also be available for hire at the School include: Cafeteria, Library, Wood Technology room, Food Technology room, and sports playground areas,





(Source: Gran Associates Australia, architects)

Currently at both Prestons and Auburn campuses of Amity College the school halls are used by the community two evenings per week for martial arts classes, parent group sport nights one evening per week, Alumni Sports events several times a year, community lectures and professional development training days by not-for-profit local groups several times a year.

Prestons Campus has Urdu language classes on Saturday mornings and Auburn Campus has Afghan language classes on Saturday mornings run by community groups at peppercorn rents.





## Criteria for use of Amity College's school facilities

School facilities can be used for any activities that are compatible with the ethos of the School. These include cultural, educational, recreational, sporting and other uses.

Educational programs must take priority when determining use. Some discretion will also need to be exercised in decision making about applications for use which appear to be incompatible with the efficient running of the school or which pose a danger to persons or property.

## Respect for neighbourhood amenity

Amity College is aware of the of the school's growing residential neighbourhood. The School will be an alcohol and tobacco free environment and will not approve excessively noisy or disorderly hire activities on campus. Facility hire will be restricted to not exceed 9pm at all times. Specifically, the hours of use of school facilities used by the community will be restricted to the following times:

- Monday to Friday 6.00pm to 9.00pm.
- Saturdays 10.00am to 9.00pm.
- Sundays 12.00pm to 7.00pm.





# **2.** Community Engagement Objectives

## 2.1 2.1 Overview

This Community Communication Strategy has been prepared to support and enable the planning and delivery of the various approved stages of the approved Amity College SSD 9227 school project, *but in particular the early works and accelerated Stage 1 stages of the project. Further refinements will be made in regard to later stages of the project*. This Community Communications Strategy will be implemented through the construction phases of the school project, and extend for 12 months following construction completion. *Given the projected life of the project (10+ years), the local population surrounding the school is likely to significantly increase from that now existing*. Refer to Figure 2.1, showing the current extent of housing estates surrounding harmoniously with the community, Camden Council and the Department of Planning Industry and Environment throughout the completion of this school site on its southern, eastern and northern flanks, with a Council open space reserve adjoining its western flanks. Amity College will undertake regular reviews and updates of the Community Communications Strategy to address any changes in the relating to the management of the project, or in response to comments and feedback by relevant stakeholders, or any other changes identified and deemed necessary as a result of the operation of the Strategy.

# 2.2 2.2 Community Engagement Objectives

The key objectives of Amity College's Community Communication Strategy will be to:

■ Keep the local community and stakeholders informed in a timely and transparent manner about the progress with and works relating to the Amity College school project through the construction phases of the project and (12 months) beyond.

■ Amity College will aim to advise neighbours of potential disturbances and provide advance notice of any major works to be undertaken on or adjoining the school site during any construction stage likely to have the potential to affect local neighbourhood amenity eg road works on Pluto Avenue in Stage 1. A recently developed residential housing estate lies adjoining the school site, sharing a common frontage to Pluto Avenue. More immediate neighbours will be the focus of consultation where impacts are more likely to be of a more localised nature, whereas a wider community will be consulted in the case of works that have a wider impact eg. road works on Byron Road.

Promote the benefits of the project to the School and students, as well as to interested local residents and stakeholders.

■ Outline interfaces with other disciplines, including safety, construction, design and environment, to ensure all activities are co-ordinated and drive best practice project outcomes.

Address and correct misinformation about the project in the public domain.

Amity College will aim to minimise disturbance to local amenity.

■ Amity College will endeavour to ensure that community and stakeholder enquiries and complaints are managed and resolved effectively. In so doing, the risk of project delays caused by third-party intervention or complaint will be minimised.

Leave a positive legacy of the Amity College school project from a wider community perspective.







FIGURE 2.1: Amity College development and existing surrounding residential housing estates included in this Strategy. The School forms a part of the Leppington Priority Precinct, planned to accommodate 2,500 new homes and and a population of more than 7,700 residents over the next 10 years or so (Stage 1 only). Further commercial, industrial and medium density residential development is planned for lands north of Ingleburn Road

(Source: Whereis website, with overlay showing approx. location and extent of Amity College school project)





## 2.3 **Higher Level Messages**

Through each stage of construction of the Amity College Leppington project, the key messages and means of engagement will be regularly reviewed, refined and updated. Information that is currently in the public domain is outlined below.

For instance, the approved school abuts land zoned for future public open space, at No. 69 Ingleburn Road, yet to be acquired by Camden Council. There is the potential to be 'shared-use' of this open space area, that is, used by both Amity College and by the broader community, once this open space zoned land is acquired and developed by Council for this purpose.

The potential for this co-sharing of use was specifically identified in the Department's *Leppington (Stage 1) Finalisation Report* dated October 2015, in Section 4.6.1 where it stated, inter alia: *"that adjoining public open space will be co-shared with Council for passive play...."* 

The new school will be built in accordance with current sustainability principles. These measures are outlined in detail in the EIS prepared by Outline Planning Consultants accompanying the development application for SSD 9227, and which now forms a part of the consent (condition A2(c)).

### **Construction Environmental Management Plan**

A Construction Environmental Management Plan has been prepared for the project, currently relating to what is described as the 'early works construction' package, being preparatory works associated with Stages 1-4 of the project. It includes but is not limited to the following:

- Clearing of vegetation on the site.
- Re-shaping the site, bulk earthworks.
- Construction of sediment and erosion control devices and stormwater drainage measures.
- Excavation work including Primary School basement car park area.
- Creation of stockpiles and importation of approved fill to the site.

The purpose of the early works Construction Environmental Management Plan document is to broadly outline how the above early works will be managed, including nature of measures likely to be used, control measures and environmental responsibilities. It will assist in ensuring:

Best practice environmental management procedures are applied.

■ Environmental risks associated with the project are properly identified and managed, and provide protection to workers, visitors and the general public from traffic and environmental hazards and risks that may arise as a result of the construction activity.

- To ensure that corrective actions, when required, are completed in a timely manner.
- Provide a safe environment for all surrounding residents, road users and workers on-site.
- Compliance with all current, relevant environmental legislation.
- Compliance with the requirements of the development consent.

The early works will be undertaken from mid 2021 onwards. Stage 1 is predicted to be completed by 2023.





The Construction Environmental Management Plan contains various sub-plans relating to noise, traffic, waste, soil and water management, as well as unexpected finds protocols and waste classification and validation requirements.

### **Traffic Management: Construction Stages**

A Traffic and Pedestrian Management Sub-Plan has been prepared, to ensure that vehicle movements are managed with minimal disruption to the local community. All construction vehicles (excluding worker vehicles) are to be contained wholly within the site, and vehicles must enter the site before stopping. A primary school pick up and drop off zone is being constructed in Stage 1 of the project, as well as a basement car parking facility serving the primary school. The combined effect of these project initiatives will be to to minimise parking congestion on local streets.

#### Noise, Vibration and Dust Management: Construction Stages

Any activity that could exceed approved construction noise management levels will be managed in strict accordance with the *Protection of the Environment Operations Act 1997*.

Mitigation measures will be in place during construction to manage noise and dust levels, including acoustic and traffic controls to minimise the effects of noise and dust, to ensure the safety of the school and local community. Community consultation required per condition C25(h) of eh SSD 9227 consent- refer **Appendix A** for copy of recent letter sent to nearby residents, seeking their comments relating to noise.

Construction works, including the delivery of materials to and from the site, will only be carried out between 7.00am & 6.00pm from Monday to Friday (excluding public holidays) and 8.00am to 1.00pm on Saturdays. No works will be carried out on Sundays or public holidays without a specific permit.

In accordance with the Amity College Development Consent (SSD 9227), condition D6 construction activities may be undertaken outside of the above hours if required:

- by the Police or a public authority for the delivery of vehicles, plant or materials; or
- in an emergency to avoid the loss of life, damage to property or to prevent environmental harm; or
- where a variation is approved in advance in writing by the Planning Secretary or nominee if appropriate justification is provided for the works.

Where out of hours works are required, permits shall be sought in accordance with the requirements of Camden City Council. It is anticipated that permits shall only be required sporadically for items such as service shutdowns and connections, transport, using canes, of large plant items, delivery & removal of piling rigs, or for other reasons that we may not be able to anticipate at this stage.

In accordance with the Amity College Development Consent (SSD 9227), condition D7, notification of such construction activities as referenced above must be given to affected residents before undertaking the activities or as soon as is practical afterwards.

In accordance with the Amity College Development Consent (SSD 9227), condition D8, rock breaking, rock hammering, sheet piling, pile driving and similar activities will only be carried out between the following hours:

- 9:00am to 12:00pm (noon), Monday to Friday;
- 2:00pm to 5:00pm Monday to Friday; and
- 9:00am to 12:00pm (noon), Saturday

Community Communication Strategy Amity College SSD 9227, Leppington NSW Outline Planning Consultants Pty Ltd Town Planners & Project Managers



# **3. Project Governance**

Amity College strives to engage with stakeholders, school communities and neighbours from planning, design and delivery, through to maintenance.

As part of this process, a Project Control Group (PCG) has been established. The current membership includes the Director of Finance, Director of Property, Architect and other casual members from time to time to represent particular project aspects.

The permanent members of the PCG are as follows:

- Amity College Director of Finance representing the executive branch of Amity College.
- Amity College Director of Property with responsibility for school assets and facilities.
- Architect with responsibility for management of design and project delivery.

Casual members will attend meetings from time to time to represent particular project aspects. These members would include:

- School Principal to advise on academic and pedagogical matters.
- Building Contractor to assist with construction matters.
- Specialist consultants to provide input where required.

The PCG meets regularly. Input will be sought from the community at major milestones. Specifically to communications and engagement related matters, the PCG will also:

- Provide a forum for discussion and exchange of information relating to the planning and delivery of the project.
- Identify local issues and concerns to assist the project team with the development of mitigation strategies to manage and minimise construction impacts to the schools communities and residents.
- Act as a two-way communication link between the school community and the project team to provide feedback at meetings.
- Provide an opportunity for advice on school engagement activities.





# **4. Stakeholders**

The accompanying Table 4.1 provides a list of stakeholders who will be consulted during the design and construction stages of the School project, including a further 12 month period once construction has been completed. The table also indicates likely interests, as well as the potential methods of engagement, the latter to be refined and utilised as appropriate, dependent on the need at the time.

Table 4.1: Commun	nity Stakeholders
-------------------	-------------------

Stakeholder	Interest and involvement	Engagement
Local, Federal and State members	<ul> <li>Community concerns.</li> <li>Point of contact to direct issues/ questions.</li> <li>Addressing local issues eg. traffic movements associated with construction of School.</li> <li>Delivery of any government-funded school infrastructure.</li> </ul>	<ul> <li>Direct contact- provide written invitation to meet the School/ inspect the site.</li> <li>Provide briefing notes and regular updates.</li> <li>Share notifications.</li> </ul>
Other government agencies including EPA, TfNSW, Sydney Water, Fire & Rescue NSW, SafeWork NSW	<ul> <li>Provision of services infrastructure.</li> <li>Ensuring that work on site, including building work, is compliant eg. Safety and fire evacuation, incidents.</li> <li>Transport routes to the site.</li> <li>Documentation relating to works undertaken, including but not limited to remediation works, the delivery of fill, and removal of contaminated material.</li> </ul>	<ul> <li>Direct contact/briefings by telephone and in writing.</li> <li>Obtain approvals.</li> </ul>
Camden Council, including councillors and Council officers	<ul> <li>Obtaining approvals for road works on public roads and drainage external to the site, as well as involvement in design aspects of the project.</li> <li>Traffic management.</li> <li>Community complaints eg. about noise, dust.</li> </ul>	<ul> <li>Continued open and accountable contact via email, lodgement of documents with Council officers direct, telephone calls and meetings/ tele-conferences.</li> <li>Obtain approvals where required.</li> </ul>
Adjoining affected landowners and residents [NOTE: coverage dependent on nature of works involved on the school site/local roads]	<ul> <li>Noise and dust generation during construction.</li> <li>Construction truck traffic on Byron Road.</li> <li>Pedestrian safety.</li> <li>Changed traffic conditions with opening of various stages of the school development eg. opening of primary school fronting Pluto Avenue, with new ingress and egress points.</li> <li>Use of community facilities offered by Amenity College over time.</li> </ul>	<ul> <li>Door knocks.</li> <li>Letterbox drops.</li> <li>Consultation meetings, facilitated by Amity College.</li> <li>Amity College website.</li> <li>Email correspondence, where details provided.</li> <li>Local press advertisement and articles.</li> <li>Site signage.</li> </ul>





	unity conege	
Leppington Public School Anglican Schools Corporation school at No.50 Heath Road, Leppington, at the southern end of Byron Road	<ul> <li>Potential impacts on current students or teaching staff, impacts on other nearby schools due to changes in enrolments, inter-school social/sporting events.</li> <li>Construction truck traffic on Byron Road.</li> </ul>	<ul> <li>To be informed at project milestones through newsletters, notifications and the Amity College website, as well as face-to-face meetings/ phone calls.</li> <li>Site signage.</li> <li>Email correspondence.</li> <li>Local press advertisement and articles.</li> </ul>
Community groups and organisations including Leppington Progress Association, KUD dance Group and local Aboriginal community	<ul> <li>Potential impacts on the surrounding community including Byron Road (truck traffic), facilities, playing fields.</li> <li>Tree clearing on the school site and landscaping program proposed to ameliorate impacts.</li> <li>Indigenous scholarships available.</li> <li>Use of community facilities offered by Amenity College over time.</li> </ul>	<ul> <li>Access to Amity College website.</li> <li>Consultation meetings, facilitated by Amity College.</li> <li>Email correspondence, where details provided.</li> <li>Local press advertisement and articles.</li> <li>Site signage.</li> </ul>
Amenity College students (existing and prospective students), staff and school community generally	<ul> <li>Information regarding school opening – targeting 2023.</li> <li>Quality of infrastructure and resources upon opening.</li> <li>Public transport options and parking/ access.</li> </ul>	<ul> <li>Access to Amity College website.</li> <li>Consultation meetings, facilitated by Amity College.</li> <li>Email correspondence, where details provided.</li> <li>Local press advertisement and articles.</li> <li>Site signage.</li> <li>(Updated regularly. Contacts via phone, web site and email possible past project completion)</li> </ul>
Department of Planning Industry and Environment	• Monitoring progress of the project, oversight of compliance and reporting, mediation of disputes, audits, notification of incidents/non-compliance with operative consent, approval of modifications or other changes in staging, strategies, plans of programs.	• Continued open and accountable contact via email, lodgement of documents on the NSW Planning Portal, telephone calls and meetings/ tele-conferences.





# **5. Engagement Approach**

# 5.1 5.1 Engagement Approach

Amity College is committed to ensuring that it makes it as easy as possible for anyone with an interest in the project to find out what's going on.

In order to achieve this outcome, a multi-pronged communication strategy will be involved, tailored also to the type of works involved as well as the sphere of likely impacts arising from those works.

Amity College will take on the community liaison responsibilities in collaboration with the project contractor for each successive stage of the project. Amity College will keep the local community and the college community informed about what to expect during construction including timing and provide the community with contact details for queries and questions. The local community will be provided with email and phone contact details for project related queries. Queries will be directed to Amity College's Director of Finance or nominated representative for response.

Amity College will be focussing on delivering its message involving two distinct streams of engagement:

■ The first is with the school community, that is, students, parents/caregivers, teachers, administration staff unencumbered by broader community issues.

■ The second is with the broader community, unencumbered by school community wants and needs. Broad community stakeholders include local residents, neighbours and local community groups, as well as nearby schools. As the population of Leppington within the near vicinity of the school site continues to grow, the number of residents that will need to be notified will also correspondingly grow over the life of the school project.

# 5.2 **5.2 Communication Tools**

The communication tools and techniques to be used to keep stakeholders and the local community involved as summarised in Table 5.1 below.

For reference, project high level milestones during the delivery phase include site establishment/early works, as well as construction of school buildings and car parks. The focus here is on the early works.

Communication Tool	Description of the Activity Involved	Frequency, Use
Advertising (print)	<ul> <li>Advertising in local newspapers is undertaken with at least 7 days' notice of significant construction activities, major disruptions and or to find out more about the project.</li> </ul>	<ul> <li>At major project milestones or periods of disruption eg. Road works on Byron Road (Stages 1 &amp; 2), Pluto Avenue road widening works (Stage 1), construction of the new Road 2 (later stage).</li> </ul>
Face-to-face meetings/ briefings	• Activities include meeting, briefings and "walking the site" to engage directly with key stakeholders, directly impacted residents and the wider community.	• As required, but only when and where allowed under COVID-19 pandemic guidelines applicable at the time.

## Table 5.1: Amity College Communication Tools





	amity college	
Display boards	<ul> <li>Information boards to be displayed in appropriate places (school admin office for example).</li> </ul>	<ul> <li>As required, once a school office has been constructed on site but subject to COVID-19 pandemic guidelines applicable at the time. (Does not apply to Stage 1, as no school office will be available at that time)</li> <li>Accessible for 12 months post completion of each stage of the school project.</li> </ul>
Fact Sheet/ Newsletter	<ul> <li>Available in hard copy (A4 single or double-sided sheets) and electronic format. A monthly or quarterly newsletter providing updated information on project scope, benefits, construction progress, achievement of project milestones and other project related issues of interest.</li> <li>Used as a regular high level update for the community, to be updated as required and included on the website if appropriate.</li> </ul>	<ul> <li>Throughout life of project and as required, related to high level project milestones.</li> <li>Distributed via letterbox drop to local residents or on Amity College website.</li> </ul>
Information sessions (drop- in)	<ul> <li>Held on site using information boards, screens and an information pack handout- including project scope, planning approvals, any impacts on the school community or residents, project timeline, FAQs.</li> <li>Member of School and project team available to answer questions.</li> <li>Pedestrian safety.</li> <li>Changed traffic conditions with opening of various stages of the school development eg. opening of primary school fronting Pluto Avenue, with new ingress and egress points.</li> <li>Use of community facilities offered by Amenity College over time.</li> </ul>	<ul> <li>As required, once a school office has been constructed on site. (Does not apply to Stage 1) and subject to COVID-19 pandemic guidelines applicable at the time.</li> </ul>
Media releases	<ul> <li>Media releases are distributed upon media milestones. They promote major project milestones and activities and assisting in generating broader community awareness of the Amity College project. Principally to be provided on Amity College's website.</li> </ul>	<ul><li>Media milestones include the following:</li><li>Commencement of works.</li><li>Completion of works and opening up of new school facilities.</li></ul>
Presentations, community forums	<ul> <li>Details project information for presentations to stakeholders and community groups.</li> <li>Community forum to be prepared on an as-needed basis, with dates and times to be advised via letterbox drop to local residents and emails to other stakeholders.</li> </ul>	<ul> <li>As required, but only when and where allowed under COVID-19 pandemic guidelines applicable at the time.</li> <li>Online community forum could be set up by the School for community engagement, as required.</li> </ul>

2



	anneyconege	
Notifications	<ul> <li>Available in hard copy (A4 single or double-sided sheets) and electronic format that can include FAQs about the project if required. To take the form of a works notification, relating to specific works/impacts arising- aimed primarily at nearby residents likely to be affected by specific construction works- or project updates- the latter aimed at a broader community.</li> </ul>	<ul> <li>As required, according to the construction program. Refer Section 7.3.</li> <li>On site works will require require notifications of near neighbours surrounding the school site- a more localised notification area. Refer Figure 2.1 &amp; Section 7.3 for coverage area.</li> <li>Any road works will require notification of all residents that have live on or have access to Byron Road- a much wider notification area. Refer Section 7.3 &amp; Figure 2.1 for coverage area.</li> <li>Distributed via letterbox drop to local residents or on Amity College website prior to construction works commencing or protocols required per Section 5 and Section 7.3.</li> </ul>
Priority correspondence	<ul> <li>Department correspondence that is subject to strict response timeframes.</li> </ul>	• As required. Includes compliance reporting required by the consent.
Project signage	• A sign will be erected and maintained in a prominent position on the site in accordance with Clause 98A(2) of the EP&A Regulation 2000, and per consent condition D1.On the same signage a complaint contact number will be displayed, enabling complainants to contact the Head Contractor in a prompt manner.	• Throughout the life of construction of the project and for 12 months post completion of each stage of the project.
Site visits	• Demonstrate project works and progress and facilitate a maintained level of interest in the project. Includes media visits to promote the reporting of progress with the various stages of the Amity College project.	• As required, but only when and where allowed under COVID-19 pandemic guidelines applicable at the time.
School email address and website	• A dedicated project page, including email address details, for the Amity College SSD 9227 Leppington project will be located on the Amity College website: https://www.amity.nsw.edu.au/ leppington-campus/	<ul> <li>Throughout the life of construction of the project and for 12 months post completion of each stage of the project.</li> <li>Website updated on a monthly basis.</li> </ul>





## 5.3 5.3 Provision of Information on Amity College's Website

Amity College will provide detailed information including the following (as they are obtained or approved) publicly available on its website https://www.amity.nsw.edu.au/leppington-campus/:

- The SSD 9227 consent documents;
- All current statutory approvals for the development;
- All approved strategies, plans and programs required under the conditions of the SSD consent;

■ Regular reporting on the environmental performance of the development in accordance with the reporting arrangements in any plans or programs approved under the conditions of this consent;

■ A comprehensive summary of the monitoring results of the development, reported in accordance with the specifications in any conditions of the SSD 9227 consent, or any approved plans and programs;

- A summary of the current stage and progress of the development;
- Contact details to enquire about the development or to make a complaint;
- A complaints register, updated monthly;
- Audit reports prepared as part of any independent audit of the development and
- Amity College's response to the recommendations in any audit report;
- Any other matter required by the Planning Secretary.
- This information will be kept up to date by Amity College.

[NOTE: Website in process of being updated at time of writing]





# ■ 6. Engagement Delivery Timeline

Amity College will be commencing shortly with the early works program, with construction of the accelerated Stage 1 of the project to be completed by Term 1 of 2023. This will be first of many stages of construction of the school.

For both the early works and building involved in Stage 1 all of the communication tools will be employed at commencement and during the undertaking of any major works on site. The early works will be completed in late 2021.

At project completion of Stage 1 (by sTerm 1 in 2023), being for the new Primary School, the following communication tools will be employed:

- Media release.
- Website update.
- Newsletter sent to all nearby residents (with thank you message from the School included).

Post opening of Stage 1 the following communication tools will be in place:

- Website remains live.
- Project signage remains.
- School remains contactable by all.
- Site visits by potential/future users of community facilities at the School.





# **7.** Procedures and Protocols

# 7.1 7.1 Communications Management Procedures

Amity College will be in communication with stakeholders during the course of construction and operation of the various stages of the School. Contacts (or feedback) from/with these stakeholders may be received through a range of communication means, including email, telephone, face-to-face contact 9subject to COVID protocols applicable at the time), letters, meetings or activities.

Any of these communications will be duly recorded by Amity College on an electronic register with full details relating to the following:

- The full name and contact details of the stakeholder making the contact with Amity College;
- Date and time of the contact with the stakeholder;
- Description of the contact and/or issues raised;
- Nature of the contact (i.e. enquiry, notification, complaint);
- Action required and the timing, particularly if commitments are made around timeframes;
- The action taken by Amity College with respect to the contact made;
- Person responsible for the remedial action.

All relevant government agencies, including Camden Council, will be consulted as required on planned delivery and construction activities, including the possible effects on any infrastructure or utility services eg. construction of new or upgraded local roads surrounding the school site.

The Community Communication Strategy will function for a minimum of 12 months following the completion of construction of each stage of the project.

## 7.2 7.2 Media Releases

Amity College will manage all media relations and will be responsible for responding to all media enquiries and provide responses to media reports.

# 7.3 Works Notification Process

Works notifications are required when Amity College commences any new major work on site, or those which the School deems to be necessary to provide advance notice of, to neighbouring properties in the interests of transparent community communications.

Along with the distribution of newsletters, these notifications serve as the primary mechanism exercised on behalf of the School to let the surrounding community and other key stakeholders know about the staging of the project, along with potential impacts. As such, these notifications will serve to provide timely advice ahead of any activities and planned disruptions, as per the notice periods outlined below in Table 7.1.

By promptly notifying stakeholders and community members it allows them to not only make alternative arrangements if required (eg. a partial road closure on Byron Road ahead of planned road upgrade works) it also allows them to plan for any impacts. Notifications will be distributed in person via letterbox drop, via the School and electronically via email.

Amity College will work under advice from the project management team on all relevant works notification requirements and timeframes to be adhered to.





### Table 7.1: Notification periods

Works activity	Minimum community notification period
Notification to communities following major incident	Same day
Emergency works/unforeseen events	Same day
Contamination management and notification	Within 48 hours
Upcoming works notification (minimum disruption)	5-7 days
Notifications regarding traffic changes, parking impacts, road closures, and/or detours	10-14 days
Notifications regarding operational changes for the school community, applicable after the Stage 1 Primary School is operational (school drop-off points, entry and exit points)	10-14 days
Notifications regarding major construction impacts or planned out of hours work	10-14 days

# 7.4 7.4 Incidents

An incident is an occurrence or set of circumstances that causes or threatens to cause material harm and which may or may not be or cause a non-compliance.

Incident management procedures form a part of the Amity College project Construction Environmental Management Plan.

SSD 9227 consent condition A23 requires Amity College to notify the Planning Secretary in writing of any incidents immediately after the School becomes aware of the incident. The consent condition provides as follows:

"A23. The Planning Secretary must be notified in writing to compliance@planning.nsw.gov.au immediately after the Applicant becomes aware of an incident. The notification must identify the development (including the development application number and the name of the development if it has one) and set out the location and nature of the incident."

In this regard Amity College undertakes to also provide to the Planning Secretary the following:

- Identify any actual or potential non-compliance with conditions of consent;
- Details of the corrective and preventative actions that have been, or will be, implemented to address the incident and prevent recurrence; and
- Details of any communication with other stakeholders regarding the incident.

All incidents are to be duly recorded on the School's project website.





# **8.** Disputes and Conflict Resolution

Amity College will aim to deal with complaints in a timely and responsive manner.

During construction of the school project delivery, a complaint could relate to such matters as disruption to traffic flows on the local street system, loss of amenity, hours of work, safety, perceived property damage, dust, noise, traffic, access to private property, service disruption, or to the conduct or behaviour of construction workers, other environmental impacts.

If a phone call, email or face-to-face complaint is received by either Amity College or the contractor working on the school site at the time during construction, they must be duly recorded, actively managed, closed out and resolved by Amity College as soon as reasonably possible-the aim being within 48 hours. An electronic contact database will be maintained by the school Principal (or nominee).

If the complainant is not satisfied with Amity College's response, and they approach Amity College for rectification, the process will involve a secondary review of their complaint as per the outlined process.

Complaints will be escalated when:

- An activity at the Amity College school site generates three complaints within a 24-hour period (separate complainants).
- Three or more complaints are received in regard to Any construction activity over a 24-hour period.
- A single complainant reports within a three day period.
- A complainant threatens to escalate their issue to the media or government representative.
- The complaint was avoidable.
- The complaint relates to a compliance matter.

Where satisfactory resolution for both parties cannot be achieved independent mediators will be engaged. If a complaint still cannot be resolved by Amenity College to the satisfaction of the complainant, Amity College will advise them to contact the NSW Ombudsman - https://www.ombo.nsw.gov.au/complaints.

The below table summarises timeframes for responding to enquiries and complaints, through each correspondence method- refer accompanying Table 8.1.

#### Table 8.1: Complaints and enquiry response time

Type of complaint	Time it will take to acknowledge that complaint	Target response time
Telephone call made during business hours to either Amity College or construction management (if construction is underway)	<ul> <li>At time of call- agreement will be reached with caller as to estimated timeframe for resolution.</li> <li>Follow up call within 2 hours if the above timeframe cannot be reached.</li> </ul>	<ul> <li>Complaint to be closed out within 48 hours.</li> <li>If this is not possible, continue contact, escalate as required and resolve within 7 business days.</li> </ul>





Telephone call made outside of business hours to either Amity College or construction management (if construction is underway)	Within 2 hours of receiving message upon returning to office.	<ul> <li>Following acknowledgement, complaint to be closed out within 48 hours.</li> <li>If this is not possible, continue contact, escalate as required and resolve within 7 business days.</li> </ul>
Email received during business hours	At time of email (automatic response)	<ul> <li>Complaint to be closed out within 48 hours.</li> <li>If this is not possible, continue contact, escalate internally as required and resolve within 7 business days.</li> </ul>
Email received outside of business hours	At time of email (automatic response)	<ul> <li>Complaint to be closed out within 48 hours, once return to business hours.</li> <li>If this is not possible, continue contact, escalate internally as required and resolve within 7 business days.</li> </ul>
Enquiries (not complaints)		
Telephone call made during business hours to either Amity College or construction management (if construction is underway)	At time of call- agreement will be reached with caller as to estimated timeframe for resolution.	To be logged and closed out within 7 business days.
Telephone call made outside of business hours to either Amity College or construction management (if construction is underway)	Within 2 hours of receiving message upon returning to office.	To be logged and closed out within 7 business days.
Email received during business hours	At time of email (automatic response)	To be logged and closed out within 7 business days.
Notifications regarding major construction impacts or planned out of Email received outside of business hourshours work	At time of email (automatic response)	To be logged and closed out within 7 business days.
Letters	Not applicable	To be logged and closed out within 10 business days following receipt of the letter.





# ■ 9. Community Communication Strategy Review and Improvement

This Community Communication Strategy focusses on a Strategy that covers both the early works tender package as well as the accelerated Stage 1 stages of the project.

Further refinements will be made to the Community Communication Strategy in regard to later stages of the project, and having regard to COVID-19 guidelines applicable at the time.







Recent letter sent to nearby residents re: consultation, noise





# LLOYD

24th May 2021

Dear Resident

We are pleased to inform you that Lloyd Group will be commencing work on site at Amity College Leppington in the month of June 2021. We are proud to have been selected as the head contractor for the early works on this development and look forward to contributing to this significant community project. The early works are the earthworks associated with the first few stages of the school development. It will not include construction works.

As a local resident there you may experience activities that partly disrupt the typical day to day traffic and noise around the site. There are guidelines for how Lloyd must operate outlined in the Development Consent for the project.

See below some of the key criteria Lloyd will adhere to

Per the Development Consent SSD9227 our working hours for construction activities are as follows:

► Construction hours are between 7.00am-6.00pm Monday to Friday, and 8.00am to 1.00pm on Saturday.

As part of these works, we as the Head Contractor will conform with the noise and vibration control recommendations of the Acoustic Assessment prepared by Koikas Acoustics which forms part of the development specifically section *6.4 Construction Noise & Vibration Criteria – Part 4.* These include:

- Use of exhaust silencers where required
- Undertake construction works during standard hours
- Carry out noise intensive works at less noise sensitive times of the day
- Maintain minimum work distances
- Consultation with the community and encouraging feedback

For more detailed information refer to the full document that is available at the below URL: https://majorprojects.planningportal.nsw.gov.au/prweb/PRRestService/mp/01/getContent?AttachR ef=SSD-9227%2120190814T063301.858%20GMT

LLOYD GROUP PTY LTD 14 Harvey Street, Pyrmont, Sydney, NSW 2009 (02) 8565 6777 www.lloydgroup.com.au





# LLOYD

We will be providing shade cloth to the perimeter of the site and conducting works within the construction hours described above to mitigate disruption to the local community.

We have developed a traffic management plan which will strictly control the movement of trucks to minimise the impact on the local community

We invite you as a local resident to provide feedback to Lloyd to ensure we engage and fulfill our responsibilities to complete our works while working together with the local community.

This can be done by making contact with myself Joseph Elley, Lloyds Project Manager, by the below contact details

Regards



SYDNEY | MELBOURNE | BRISBANE | GEELONG | NEWCASTLE | BALLINA

A: 14 Harvey Street, Pyrmont, Sydney, NSW 2009 P: (02) 8565 6777 E: Joseph.Elley@lloydgroup.com.au

> LLOYD GROUP PTY LTD 14 Harvey Street, Pyrmont, Sydney, NSW 2009 (02) 8565 6777 www.lloydgroup.com.au









Community Communication Strategy Amity College SSD 9227, Leppington NSW **Outline Planning Consultants Pty Ltd** Town Planners & Project Managers



#### **ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT PLAN**

## **16.** Appendix E – Example Environmental Management Documents

This section includes the following:

- Non-Conformance Example
- Environmental Management Inspection Checklist
- Environmental Incident Form

Issue Details						
Reference	Туре		Location	Identified By	Priority	Date Identified
ISS-7228	Non Conformance Negative			Jordan Ling	High	28/01/2022
Description		Example				
Compliance C	riteria	Example				
Observations		Example				
Evidence Rev	iewed	Example				

#### **Issue Picture 1**



Resolution Details				
Due Date	Previously Rejected?	Responsible	Date Resolved	
29/01/2022	No	Lloyd Group		

Comment History	
Lloyd Group User - Jordan Ling 1:40 PM28/01/2022	
Example	

Inspection Details - Environmental Management Checklist				
Inspection Status	Location Description			
Complete		Example Environmental Checklist		

Subcontractor Details
Subcontractor
Lloyd Group

Attendees					
Name	Company	Position	Signature		
Jordan Ling	Lloyd Group	Contracts Administrator			

Checklis	sts							
ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT CHECKLIST								
Work area	as free from rubbish ar	d bins not overflowing		⊖ Compliant		Non-Con	npliant	○ Not Applicable
Ref	Classification	Location	Respons	ible	Priority	Due Date		Date Closed
ISS- 7230 Example	Negative Corrective Action		Lloyd Gro	pup	Low			29/01/2022
Issue Pict	ure 1						Res	olution Picture
Work area	as free from slip/trip ha	zards		⊖ Compli	ant	⊖ Non-Com	npliant	Not Applicable
		and assessed as bein conditions including wind	-	⊖ Compli	ant	⊖ Non-Con	npliant	Not Applicable

#### Amity College Stage 1 - Inspection Details for Environmental Management Checklist on 4:01 PM 28/01/2022

All known underground services locations have been adequately signed on site	○ Compliant	○ Non-Compliant	Not Applicable
All trenches and pits are covered/backfilled or barricaded where appropriate	⊖ Compliant	○ Non-Compliant	Not Applicable
Stock/material is stored safely	○ Compliant	○ Non-Compliant	Not Applicable
Adequate task lighting in place	○ Compliant	○ Non-Compliant	Not Applicable
Materials and equipment are secured overnight with locks in place where necessary	⊖ Compliant	○ Non-Compliant	Not Applicable
Temporary structures and covered walkways adequately built and secured	⊖ Compliant	○ Non-Compliant	Not Applicable
Is noisy work controlled and conducted within the approved council working hours	⊖ Compliant	○ Non-Compliant	Not Applicable
Are dust control measures in place [I.e. use of dust suppression chemicals or regular watering]	⊖ Compliant	○ Non-Compliant	Not Applicable
Have trees or any other flora species been appropriately protected	⊖ Compliant	○ Non-Compliant	Not Applicable
Where there is a risk of loose soil contaminating surrounding waterways, silt fencing is installed	⊖ Compliant	○ Non-Compliant	Not Applicable
Where there is a risk of contaminating stormwater drains, provision is available for hay bales or geo fabric material	⊖ Compliant	○ Non-Compliant	Not Applicable
Where there is a risk of excessive mud being discharged onto public roads, a shaker grid is installed near the project entry/exit points	⊖ Compliant	○ Non-Compliant	Not Applicable
Dust emissions from stockpiles is controlled via dust suppression agents or regular watering.	⊖ Compliant	○ Non-Compliant	Not Applicable
Have underground decommissioned fuel storage tanks been identified and reported to Lloyd Group's HSEQ Manager	⊖ Compliant	○ Non-Compliant	Not Applicable
Hazardous materials are stored within appropriate storage containers with warning placarding and according to safety data sheet storage requirements	⊖ Compliant	○ Non-Compliant	Not Applicable
Truck wash out bay set up with hose and Signage	○ Compliant	○ Non-Compliant	Not Applicable
Rumble Grids in position at truck entrance and exit	○ Compliant	○ Non-Compliant	Not Applicable
Silt traps are in correct locations and in appropriate condition	○ Compliant	○ Non-Compliant	Not Applicable
Silt fencing set up in correct locations	⊖ Compliant	○ Non-Compliant	Not Applicable
Wind rows set up in correct location	○ Compliant	○ Non-Compliant	Not Applicable
Sediment control moates and hail bails set up	⊖ Compliant	○ Non-Compliant	Not Applicable
Roads and gutters clean from soil	○ Compliant	○ Non-Compliant	Not Applicable
Damage to nature strips reported and repaired	○ Compliant	○ Non-Compliant	Not Applicable

# UPLOAD OTHER ATTACHMENTS

Add Attachment Image 1	
Add Attachment Image 2	
Add Attachment Image 3	
Add Attachment Image 4	
Add Attachment Image 5	
Add Attachment Image 6	
Add Attachment Image 7	
Add Attachment Image 8	
Add Attachment Image 9	
Add Attachment Image 10	
Add Attachment Image 11	
Add Attachment Image 12	
Add Attachment Image 13	
Add Attachment Image 14	
Add Attachment Image 15	
Add Attachment File 16	
Add Attachment File 17	
Add Attachment File 17	
Add Attachment File 17	
Add Attachment File 18	
Add Attachment File 19	
Add Attachment File 20	
Add Attachment File 21	
Add Attachment File 22	
Add Attachment File 23	
Add Attachment File 24	
Add Attachment File 25	
Add Attachment File 26	
Add Attachment File 27	
Add Attachment File 28	
Add Attachment File 29	

Add Attachment File 30

Other O	oservations					
Ref	Classification	Location	Responsible	Priority	Due Date	Date Closed
ISS- 7229 Example	Positive Corrective Action		Lloyd Group	Low		29/01/2022
Issue Pict	ure 1					

Outcomes				
Metric	Count	%		
Negative Observations	1	50%		
Positive Observations	1	50%		
Open Issues	0	0%		
Closed Issues	2	100%		
Yes	0	0%		
No	1	4%		
N/A	25	96%		

### Focus For Next Environmental Management Checklist

Example

Amity College Stage 1 - Incident Details

Incident Summary Reference	INC-461	
Incident Type	Environmental	
Is Near Miss	⊖Yes	No
Date Added	2022-01-29T13:57	
Relevant Authority Reporting Needs to be reported to relevant authority	⊖Yes	) No
Details of Person Completing Record	landara Lina	
Person's Name	Jordan Ling	
Position / Title	Contracts Administrator	
Phone	0424068388	
Incident Details		
Date & Time of Event	29/01/2022 1:57 PM	
Advised of Event	29/01/2022 1:58 PM	
Description of Event	Example	
Status	ls Draft	
Injuries (0)		
Issues (0)		

# Additional Information

When to complete this form: For all LTI's, High Risk Near Misses and Reportable Incidents per legislative authority or as directed by senior management..

#### IMMEDIATE ACTION TAKEN

1.	Example
2.	
3.	
4.	
5.	

NAMES OF WITNESSES	
Name	Example
Mobile	
Name	
Mobile	

NAMES OF	THOSE	INTERVI	EWED
----------	-------	---------	------

Name	Example
Mobile	
Employer	
Name	
Tullie	
Mobile	

Amity College Stage 1 - Incident Details

Name				
Mobile				
Employer				
Was a SWMS available?	● Yes	⊖ No		
Did it reflect the works being undertaken?	• Yes	⊖ <b>No</b>		
Were all relevant workers inducted into SWMS?	• Yes	⊖ <b>No</b>		
EXTERNAL NOTIFICATION TO STATE OHS AUTHORITY				
Is this a reportable incident to? WorkSafe or Equivalent				
State Electrical Statutory Body ie EnergySafe				
Has the incident been reported? Yes				
Reported by whom (Name)				
Date & Time Reported				
Reference number provided				
CLIENT NOTIFICATION	⊖Yes	⊖ No	⊖ <b>N/A</b>	
To Whom				
Date				

ROOT CAUSE: (What was the factor that, if removed, the incident would not have occurred?)

PREVENTATIVE ACTIONS: Action/s taken to prevent future reoccurrence:

COMPLETED BY
Name
Title
Date
REVIEWED BY PROJECT MANAGER
REVIEWED BY PROJECT MANAGER Name
Name

Important note: Report must be forwarded to senior management.

Investigation



ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT PLAN 17. Appendix F – Emergency Management Plan

# **LLOYD** Emergency Management Plan

CLIENT NAME:	Amity College Leppington
PROJECT NAME:	Amity College Stage 1
SITE ADDRESS:	85 Byron Road, Leppington NSW 2179
REVISION:	1
ISSUE DATE:	31/01/2022


#### ABBREVIATIONS

ABBREVIATION	DEFINITION
The Organisation	Lloyd Group
BDM Business Development Manager	
СА	Contract Administrator
Critical Incident	A critical incident is any incident in the workplace that results in death; major structural damage, or serious/permanent disability or injury
СМ	Construction Manager
DIR	Director/s
EMP	All Company Employees
EST	Estimator
ESTM	Estimating Manager
FAI	First Aid Injury
HIRAC	Hazard Identification, Risk Assessment & Controls
HSE	Health Safety & Environment
HSR	Health & Safety Representative
IMS	Integrated Management System
HSEQ	Health Safety Environment and Quality
HSEQC	HSEQ Coordinator
HSEQM	HSEQ Manager
HSEQA	HSEQ Administrator
Lloyd Group	Lloyd Group/the Organisation
LTI	Lost Time Injury – At least one full shift lost due to injury
LTIFR	Lost Time Injury Frequency Rate = No. (LTI's/hours worked) x 1,000,000
MD	Managing Director
MTI	Medical Treatment Injury
MTIFR	Medical Treatment Injury Frequency Rate
NTL	National Team Leader – Safety & Compliance
ОМ	Office Manager
PPE	Personal Protection Equipment
PM	Project Manager
SDS	Safety Data Sheet (Formally referred to as MSDS)
Senior Management	Director, Managing Director, General Manager, Chief Financial Officer, Estimating Manager, Business Development Manager, Procurement Manager, Construction Manager, HSEQ Manager
SM	Site Manager
SSC	Site Safety Committee



REGISTER OF REVIEW - MASTER				
REVISION	DATE	SECTION	DESCRIPTION OF AMENDMENTS	AMENDED BY
1	18/11/20	All	Initial issue	S Willoughby

REGISTER OF REVIEW - PROJECT				
REVISION	DATE	SECTION	DESCRIPTION OF AMENDMENTS	AMENDED BY
1	31/01/21	All	Project Specific Issue	Jordan ling

APPROVALS			
NAME	POSITION	SIGNATURE	DATE
Matthew Licuria	Construction Manager	Matthew Licuria	31/01/22
Scott Willoughby	HSEQ Manager	S Willoughby	31/01/22
Joseph Elley	Project Manager	Jany	31/01/22
Michael Pearce	Site Manager	NAT	31/01/22

#### SITE PERSONNEL INDUCTION

Project team personnel are to be inducted into this plan before starting work on the project. Insert your name and role in the register below, then sign and date to acknowledge that you have read and understood the company requirements and agree to implement the procedures as applicable to your role. Note: Nominated approvers who have signed above are not required to sign below.

NAME	POSITION	SIGNATURE	DATE

Master Doc Rev 1	Project Rev. 01	31/01/2022	Page <b>3</b> of <b>27</b>
------------------	-----------------	------------	----------------------------



#### **TABLE OF CONTENTS**

1.	Purp	ose & Objectives
	1.1	Purpose
	1.2	Objective
	1.3	Monitoring and Review6
2.	Plan	Review and Update6
3.	Clier	at Specific Requirements
4.	Emei	rgency Scenario Assessment7
5.	Emei	rgency Response Team - Role Allocations8
	5.1	Responsibilities
	5.1.1	Emergency Response Team Manager8
	5.1.2	Chief Warden8
	5.1.3	Floor Wardens9
6.	Emei	rgency Preparedness9
	6.1	Site Evacuation Diagram9
	6.2	Emergency Contact Details9
	6.3	Training9
	6.4	Emergency Procedure Awareness10
	6.5	Emergency Equipment & First Aid10
	6.5.1	First Aid10
	6.5.2	Suitability, Location and Accessibility of Emergency Equipment10
	6.5.3	Fire Fighting Equipment11
7.	Evac	:uations
	7.1	Evacuation Assembly Area11
	7.2	Emergency Response Drills
	7.3	Emergency Access/Egress Lighting12
	7.4	Communications12
	7.5	Critical Incident Response
	7.5.1	Counselling Arrangements13
8.	Emei	rgency Response Scenarios14
	8.1	General Emergency Procedure14
	8.2	Medical Emergency Procedure14
	8.3	Asbestos Contamination Procedure15
	8.4	Retrieval of Person from EWP Procedure15
	8.5	Retrieval of Crane Operator from Tower Crane Cabin Procedure16
	8.6	Smoke/Fire/Explosion Procedure16
	8.7	Gas Leak/Unplanned Release of Toxic Chemical Procedure16
	8.8	Precast Panel Collapse17

Master	Doc	Rev	1
11 aster	200	110.	-

# LLOYD

8.9	Structural Collapse Procedure18	3
8.10	Jump Form Rescue Procedure (Injured Worker Unable to Exit Core)18	3
8.11	Trench / Excavation Collapse Procedure19	)
8.12	Traffic Incident Procedure	)
8.13	Severe Weather Event	)
8.14	Hitting Electrical Services Procedure21	L
8.15	Electric Shock Procedure21	L
8.16	Plant Failure/Incident21	L
8.17	Retrieval of Crane Operator from Tower Crane Cabin22	<u>)</u>
8.18	Bomb Threat Procedure22	<u>)</u>
8.19	Mental Health Incident Procedure23	}
8.20	Arrested Fall Procedure	ţ
8.21	Heat Stress/Heat Stroke25	5
8.22	Shock25	5
8.23	Snake Bites25	5
8.24	Unauthorised Access by School Children26	5
APPENDI	( 1- Additional Site Specific Emergency Procedures	7

Master Doc Rev 1         Project Rev. 01         31/01/2022         Page 5 of 27	Master Doc Rev 1	Project Rev. 01	31/01/2022	Page <b>5</b> of <b>27</b>



### 1. Purpose & Objectives

#### 1.1 Purpose

The purpose of the Emergency Management Plan is to identify all the foreseeable project specific emergencies that may occur, the method addressing them and recording them as required.

#### 1.2 Objective

The objectives of the Emergency Management Plan are to:

- Provide a list of possible emergency scenarios relevant to the project;
- Provide an action plan for each identified scenario;
- Provide guidelines for training of emergency personnel;
- Provide guideline for reporting and communication.

#### 1.3 Monitoring and Review

This EMP will be reviewed as follows:

- After an emergency evacuation has been undertaken and the outcome indicates that the plan requires updating;
- After a significant incident;
- When the site changes significantly.

### 2. Plan Review and Update

This plan has been updated specifically for this project. This plan details the minimum Organisation requirements across the project. Unless specifically requested by the client information within this plan will be retained as it provides valuable guidance material to our project teams.

This plan will be reviewed and updated as required, as follows:

- Reviewed by all personnel with emergency responsibilities on this project;
- Every 6 months;
- After a significant incident;
- After significant changes on site.

#### 3. Client Specific Requirements

Adherence to Amity College WHS Policies and Procedures through the project duration.

Reporting of all incidents that occur on site to Project Superintendent, Principal and Independent Auditor.

Master Doc Rev 1	Project Rev. 01	31/01/2022	Page <b>6</b> of <b>27</b>

# LLOYD

# 4. Emergency Scenario Assessment

POSSIBLE EMERGENCY SITUATION	RELEVANT ✓
General Emergency	✓
Medical Emergency	✓
Asbestos find	✓
Worker stuck in a raised EWP	✓
Smoke/Fire/Explosion	✓
Gas Leak/Unplanned Release of Toxic Chemical Procedure	✓
Structural Collapse	✓
Excavation/Trench Collapse	✓
Injury while working at height	✓
Arrested fall	✓
Precast Panel Collapse	✓
Entrapment in jump form/core	✓
Traffic/Pedestrian Accident	✓
Rescue of person from an EWP	✓
Contact with Overhead/ Underground Services	✓
Electric Shock	✓
Plant Failure	✓
Tower Crane Emergency	✓
Heat Stress	✓
Severe weather/Cyclone	✓
Earthquake	✓
Bomb Threat	✓
Mental Health Incidents	✓
Other:	
ADD CLIENT SPECIFIC EMERGENCIES BELOW	RELEVANT 🗸

Master	Doc	Rev	1
IVIASLEI	DUC	nev	Τ.



#### 5. Emergency Response Team - Role Allocations

EMERGENCY ROLE	NAME	POSITION ON SITE TEAM
Emergency Response Team Manager	Michael Pearce	Site Manager
Chief Warden	Michael Pearce	Site Manager
Floor Warden	Michael Pearce	Site Manager
First Aider	Michael Pearce	Site Manager

#### 5.1 Responsibilities

#### 5.1.1 Emergency Response Team Manager

Responsibilities:

- Has overall responsibility for ensuring emergencies are managed in line with company procedures;
- Identifying emergency scenarios relevant to this project;
- Will be the main point of contact for any emergency related issues;
- Ensuring all positions on the ERT are filled to adequately cover the site taking into account backups when people are absent;
- Ensuring that members of the ERT are aware of and can fulfil their duties;
- Ensuring that emergency evacuations are conducted within 3 months of project commencement and then 6 monthly or when the site changes significantly;
- Ensuring that any corrective actions arising from evacuations are closed out and confirmed and evaluated for effectiveness;
- Emergency procedures are communicated to all personnel on site.

#### 5.1.2 Chief Warden

Responsibilities:

Overall management and coordination of emergency evacuations either real or mock;

Review the outcomes of evacuations and improve the system where possible to ensure the safety of all personnel on site;

Ensure that emergency equipment is adequate, in place and in good working order.

Duties/Actions during an emergency:

- In the event of an incident the Chief Warden will ascertain circumstances of the incident and determine appropriate actions to be taken;
- Ensure appropriate emergency services are contacted at the earliest opportunity and client notification made where required. Inform key Organisation Management, as appropriate;
- Advise Floor wardens of the situation and direct them as required, activate any alarm systems as required;
- Initiate evacuation of the site and control entry to the site;
- If required arrange treatment of the injured;
- Arrange for site numbers/personnel list to be taken to the must point;
- Ensure personnel are accounted for following an evacuation muster point;

Master Doc Rev 1	Project Rev. 01	31/01/2022	Page <b>8</b> of <b>27</b>



- Brief emergency services on the situation, type and scope of the incident, and confirm the status of an evacuation or the injured;
- Thereafter take action as directed by emergency services;
- Ensure that the Emergency Evacuation Form is completed, and actions closed out;
- Ensure that the area/areas are made an exclusion zone until emergency services, or other relevant authority, advise that this is no longer required.

#### 5.1.3 Floor Wardens

#### Responsibilities:

- Floor wardens will assist with the evacuation of the site during an emergency situation
- Take instruction from the Chief Warden during evacuations

Duties/Actions during an emergency:

- Assist in the safe and orderly evacuation from the work area;
- Alert or contact the appropriate emergency service as required;
- Advise the Chief Warden of an incident if the Warden is the first person to become aware of an incident;
- Activate the emergency alarm systems as required;
- Check that fire doors or smoke doors are properly closed;
- Search the floor to ensure that all persons have evacuated the affected area;
- Assist those that require help with evacuation;
- Act as the leader for groups moving to the evacuation assembly point;
- Advise the Chief Warden if anyone is missing.

#### 6. Emergency Preparedness

#### 6.1 Site Evacuation Diagram

The Evacuation Diagram shows the location of the following regarding emergencies;

- First Aid room;
- Nurse call stations (where relevant);
- Firefighting equipment locations;
- Site evacuation assembly area/must point;
- Emergency services access and egress locations;
- "You are here" to be clearly indicated.

The Site Evacuation Diagram shall be displayed in prominent locations including offices, lunch rooms and common areas as relevant. For multilevel buildings, the Site Evacuation Diagram will be displayed in a consistent location on each level i.e. near the lift shaft, hoist or stairwell. The Site manager shall ensure the Site Evacuation Diagram is up to date and relevant given changing construction activities.

#### 6.2 Emergency Contact Details

Emergency contact information will be displayed in prominent locations in site offices, lunchooms and throughout the site. Contact details will be up to date at all times.

#### 6.3 Training

The Emergency Response Team Manager shall ensure all personnel who have responsibilities for the implementation of this plan have received relevant training for the role they are undertaking including:

Master Doc Rev 1	Project Rev. 01	31/01/2022	Page <b>9</b> of <b>27</b>

# LLOYD

- Fire Warden Training;
- First Aid Training;
- Evacuation drill training;
- Review of this EMP;
- Relevant refresher training

ROLE	TRAINING REQUIREMENTS
Emergency Response Team Manager	Chief Fire Warden training
Chief Fire Warden	Chief Fire Warden Training
Floor Warden	Fire Warden training
First Aider	Level 2 First Aid training

Refer: Guidance Material - SafeWork Australia Emergency Plans Fact Sheet

Refer: SafeWork Australia

https://www.safeworkaustralia.gov.au/system/files/documents/1702/emergency\_plans\_fact\_sheet.pdf

#### 6.4 Emergency Procedure Awareness

All personnel on site are made aware of the emergency procedure via the following:

- Emergency plans and procedures are included in the site induction;
- Display of Emergency Evacuation Diagram and contact details of emergency personnel throughout the site.

#### 6.5 Emergency Equipment & First Aid

A risk assessment is completed by a person with a minimum of fire warden and Level 2 Senior First Aid (or equivalent) training. This assessment is used to identify site first aid equipment and requirements in accordance with relevant legislation, codes of practice and Australian standards.

#### 6.5.1 First Aid

- First aid facilities shall be provided and serviced in accordance with legislation, AS/NZ standards, codes of practice and other relevant information;
- The location of the First Aid room shall be shown on the Site Layout Plan.
- The first aid room will be signed and will always contain necessary first aid equipment;
- The nominated First Aid officers will be identified in the Emergency Contacts list and displayed on the site notice board;
- Emergency first aid kits may be located across the site where this is possible;
- First aid facilities and first aid kit contents shall be checked during inspections in accordance with the procedure for Site Inspections.

Refer Form: HSE 1.03 Emergency Equipment & First Aid Risk Assessment (HT) Refer Form: HSE 7.06 Emergency Equipment Testing Register

#### 6.5.2 Suitability, Location and Accessibility of Emergency Equipment

- The suitability, location and accessibility of emergency equipment shall be assessed by site personnel who has/have completed Chief Fire Warden Training;
- Project teams may also seek advice from local Emergency Services organisations (e.g. First Five Minutes, Fire Brigade, SES) to assess access and egress for emergency vehicles and any other additional requirements;

Master Doc Rev 1	Project Rev. 01	31/01/2022	Page <b>10</b> of <b>27</b>
------------------	-----------------	------------	-----------------------------



- The locations of the equipment shall be shown on the Site Layout Plan.

#### 6.5.3 Fire Fighting Equipment

The number, type and location of fire extinguishers and fire blankets shall be in accordance with AS 2444: Portable Fire Extinguishers & Fire Blankets - Selection & Location, with relevant signage depicting type, size and AS/NZS Portable fire extinguishers.

The following extinguisher types shall be used on Organisation sites;

- Powder (dry chemical) extinguishers complying with AS/NZS 1841.5
- Carbon Dioxide extinguishers complying with AS/NZS 1841.6

Note: Water type extinguishers shall not be used.

- The location of fire extinguishers and blankets (if installed) on site shall be included on the Site Evacuation Diagram;
- Fire extinguishers, fire blankets and fire hose reels (if installed) on site and in the Site office shall be monitored for most relevant location, given changing site conditions and serviced at 6 monthly intervals in accordance with AS/NZS 1850: Portable Fire Extinguishers - Classification, rating & performance testing;
- FFE will be registered on the Emergency Equipment Testing Register and updated as items are used, damaged, or defective;
- FFE shall be checked during inspections in accordance with the procedure for Site Inspections.

### 7. Evacuations

#### 7.1 Evacuation Assembly Area

An evacuation assembly area will be set up for this project in accordance with the following:

- The location of the Evacuation Assembly Area shall be shown on the Site Evacuation Diagram
- Signage will be posted in the designated area
- In the event of an emergency all personnel are instructed to gather at the assembly area in accordance with the Site Evacuation procedure
- Each subcontractor supervisor will advise the Site Manager, or designated representative, of the current attendance and that all employees are accounted for.

#### 7.2 Emergency Response Drills

Emergency Response drills are required to test emergency scenarios and to ensure that those on site are aware of the emergency evacuation procedure and the related responsibilities.

Drills are scheduled as follows:

- Within 3 months from project commencement;
- Then at minimum six monthly intervals during the project;
- when the site layout significantly changes.

Drills may take the form of:

- Desktop exercise;
- Mock evacuation;
- Emergency Response Team mock evacuation (trial run involving only the ERT).

The Emergency Response Drills Report form will be used to record each drill and actual emergency evacuation.

Master Doc Rev 1	Project Rev. 01	31/01/2022	Page <b>11</b> of <b>27</b>
Waster DOC REV 1	Project Rev. 01	51/01/2022	Page II Of Z/



Emergency Response Drills are scenario based and test a variety of the identified potential emergency situations on site. They are recorded and evaluated for effectiveness. When an evacuation drill identifies an issue or requirement for a corrective action, a subsequent drill shall be scheduled and conducted to test the effectiveness of the improvements. This Site Manager will ensure the implementation of corrective actions arising from drills.

Refer Form: HSE 5.01 Emergency Response Drill

#### 7.3 Emergency Access/Egress Lighting

Egress/Access from any part of the building is to be maintained clear of obstructions. Egress paths shall be checked during inspections in accordance with the procedure for Site Inspections. Emergency Lighting must be installed, with adequate lighting natural or mechanical with designated exits signage where applicable.

#### 7.4 Communications

Communications shall be via 2-way radios and/or mobile phones.

#### 7.5 Critical Incident Response

The following shall be followed in the event of a critical incident on site. Note: A backup person must be predetermined for both the Site Manager and Chief Warden if they are not on site at the time.

The following shall be followed in the event of a critical incident on site. Note: A backup person must be predetermined for both the Site Manager and Chief Warden if they are not on site at the time.

A **Critical Incident** is any incident that results in death; major structural damage, serious/permanent disability or injury or major impact on a client's operations.

	Master Doc Rev 1         Project Rev. 01         31/01/2022         Page 12 of 27
--	---



#### CRITICAL INCIDENT RESPONSE FLOWCHART:

EVENT	ACTION EQUIRED	BY WO
	Call emergency services - 000	Site Manager
	Injured worker/s cared for. First aid provided if safe to do so	First Aider
	Place people at all road entry points and within the site on the way to the incident to direct ambulance and avoid delays	Site Manager/ Chief Warden
1. Incident occurs	Ensure all other workers are safe. Evacuate if necessary or relocate workers to amenities.	Chief Warden/Or Designated Person
	Preserve incident scene. Prevent access. Barricade if necessary or take photos.	Site Manager
	Notify injured worker's employer	Site Manager
	Instructions given by emergency services over phone to be followed	Site Manager
2. While waiting	Inform Project Manager, HSEQM and HSEQC	Site Manager
for Emergency Services to arrive	Project manager to notify senior management and the client.	Project Manager
	Copy of the induction form of any injured person is awaiting emergency services	Site Manager
3. Emergency	Follow all instructions from emergency services	Site Team
Services Arrive	Provide copy of induction form to emergency services	Site Manager
	Immediate: Notification to regulatory body as required	HSEQM
	Notification to Next of Kin	Emergency Services
	Within 1 hour: Notification to Director & other relevant senior management	Project Manager
4 All ath an	Within 1 hour: Notification to Company Legal Representative as required	Director
4. All other communications	Within 2 hours: Counselling arranged for those remaining on site	Construction Manager
	Within 3 hours: Arrange for site security to protect worker's tools and personal items left on site as required	CM/PM
	Within 6 hours: Notification to PR Management consultant as required	Director
	Commence Internal investigation (dependent on legal advice)	Director/HSEQM

#### 7.5.1 Counselling Arrangements

The General Manager, or delegated authority, in consultation with senior management, will arrange for counselling, including trauma counselling to be provided to relevant workers and employees effected by a critical incident. The company Employee Assistance program may be utilised for this purpose.

The General Manager shall ensure that any worker who is exposed to a critical / traumatic incident at any of its workplaces, have access to, and are provided the necessary medical assistance and rehabilitation requirements and transportation to medical centres as required.

Master Doc Rev 1 Project Rev. 01	Master Doc Rev 1	Project Rev. 01
----------------------------------	------------------	-----------------

Т

31/01/2022

# LLOYD

#### 8. Emergency Response Scenarios

The following notification and follow up process is applicable to all scenarios:

#### **NOTIFICATIONS:**

- Notify Director and PAP.
- Notify Nat. Safety & Compliance Mgr
- Notify Project Manager
- Utility / Service provider if relevant
- Client (if affected)
- WorkSafe or other statutory body if notifiable
- Other parties if reliant on services that have been disrupted
- Reporting of all incidents that occur on site as per SINSW/DET Contractor WHS Reporting Framework

#### FOLLOW-UP:

- Conduct Incident Investigation where required
- Debrief the site team to identify causes and corrective/preventive action
- Provide site personnel with information on the incident including required corrective actions
- Review SWMS, Risk Assessment and other related HSE documentation to ensure lessons learned are captured
- Reporting of all learning that occur on site following an incident is as per SINSW/DET Contractor WHS Reporting Framework

#### 8.1 General Emergency Procedure

If a person is seriously hurt or injury is suspected

Responding Emergency Service – 000 Specify the issue

#### **IMMEDIATE ACTIONS:**

- 1. Stop work
- 1. Assess the situation
- 2. Identify the severity
- 3. Evacuate area if necessary by sounding evacuation alarm
- 4. Contact emergency services
  - Type of emergency
  - Address of site
  - Nearest Cross Street
- 5. Send person to street to meet and direct emergency services
- 6. Check to ensure area is safe
- 7. Render first aid assistance as required
- 8. Barricade area to make safe if required
- 9. Warden to go to assembly area to take names
- 10. Maintain scene for investigation purposes

#### 8.2 Medical Emergency Procedure

Responding Emergency Service – Ambulance

# LLOYD

#### **IMMEDIATE ACTIONS:**

- 1. Assess the situation
- 2. Identify the severity
- 3. First aider to attend and administer first aid to the level their training allows
- 4. If injury is serious (site treatment / medical centre not appropriate) call Emergency Services 000 & ask for an Ambulance.
  - Type of emergency
  - Address of site
  - Nearest Cross Street
- 5. Send person to street to meet and direct emergency services
- 6. Check to ensure area is safe
- 7. Render first aid assistance until ambulance arrives
- 8. Barricade area to make safe if required
- 9. Maintain scene for investigation purposes

#### 8.3 Asbestos Contamination Procedure

Responding Emergency Service – EPA or equivalent state regulatory body

#### **IMMEDIATE ACTIONS:**

- 1. Assess the situation and identify the severity i.e. Friable/Non- Friable
- 2. Evacuate the immediate area if required
- 3. Put in place exclusion zones to keep people out of the area. Consider direction of air borne dusts.
- 4. Contain any wind borne asbestos dust by covering and/or wetting down
- 5. Contact EPA providing following details:
  - Type of emergency
  - Address of site
  - Nearest Cross Street
- 6. Type of emergency
- 7. Address of site
- 8. Nearest Cross Street
- 9. Take instructions from EPA
- 10. Maintain scene for investigation purposes where practical

#### 8.4 Retrieval of Person from EWP Procedure

Responding Emergency Service – Fire Brigade/Ambulance

#### **IMMEDIATE ACTIONS:**

- 1. Assess the situation and identify the severity
- 2. Evacuate the immediate area if necessary
- 3. If possible to do so, use the emergency decent device controls to carefully lower the platform (be aware that the ground controls will override the platform controls for emergency purposes).
- 4. Ensure there are no persons underneath the platform, or in the direct drop vicinity of the EWP when using the emergency device.
- 5. If the person in the EWP is in need of emergency treatment and the lowering devices are not working a second EWP shall be used to retrieve the injured worker.
- 6. Contact the EWP supplier/maintenance supplier and ask them to come to site immediately to fix.
  - Call Emergency Services.

Master Doc Rev 1 Project Rev. 01	31/01/2022	Page <b>15</b> of <b>27</b>
----------------------------------	------------	-----------------------------

# LLOYD

- Type of emergency
- Address of site
- 7. Nearest Cross Street
- 8. Take instructions from emergency services
- 9. Maintain scene for investigation purposes

#### 8.5 Retrieval of Crane Operator from Tower Crane Cabin Procedure

Responding Emergency Service - Fire Brigade (High Angle Rescue Team) / Ambulance

#### **IMMEDIATE ACTIONS:**

- 1. Gain access to the crane cabin and provide immediate first aid assistance
- 2. Contact relevant emergency service making it clear it is a height rescue
- 3. Assess ability to use mobile crane on site to get first aid box to injured person.
- 4. Assess availability of crane on a nearby job that can assist
- 5. Take instructions from emergency services with regard to commencing the rescue using the first aid box.
- 6. Create a clear landing area for the first aid box in case it is required.
- 7. Maintain scene for investigation purposes

#### 8.6 Smoke/Fire/Explosion Procedure

Responding Emergency Service – Fire Brigade

#### **IMMEDIATE ACTIONS:**

- 1. Assess the situation. Identify the severity
- 2. Evacuate area if necessary.
- 3. If safe to do so, attempt to extinguish the fire. Use portable firefighting equipment where trained and safe to do so; do not put yourself at risk.
- 4. If fire cannot be extinguished, call Emergency services 000 and ask for Fire Brigade.
  - Type of emergency
  - Address of site
  - Nearest Cross Street
- 5. Ensure all persons are evacuated to assembly area.
- 6. Send someone to the street to meet and direct the fire brigade.
- 7. Provide assistance as directed.
- 8. Do not enter an area that could be unsafe for you.
- 9. Take instructions from emergency services
- 10. Do not enter site until instructed by emergency services.
- 11. Maintain scene for investigation purposes

#### 8.7 Gas Leak/Unplanned Release of Toxic Chemical Procedure

Responding Emergency Service – Fire Brigade

#### **IMMEDIATE ACTIONS:**

- 1. Evacuate immediate/effected are
- 2. If full evacuation is required sound the alarm
- 3. Contact emergency services fire brigade
  - Type of emergency
  - Address of site

# LLOYD

- Nearest Cross Street
- 4. Send someone to the street to meet and direct the fire brigade.
- 5. DO NOT use mobile phones or two-way radios in affected area
- 6. No Smoking or any ignition sources.
- 7. Isolate electrical appliances
- 8. Render first aid assistance as required.
- 9. Provide assistance as directed.
- 10. Do not enter an area that could be unsafe for you.
- 11. Take instructions from emergency services
- 12. Do not enter site until instructed by emergency services.
- 13. Maintain scene for investigation purposes
- 14. Ensure services are checked and working correctly

#### 8.8 Precast Panel Collapse

Responding Emergency Service – Fire Brigade/Ambulance

#### **IMMEDIATE ACTIONS:**

PARTIAL LOSS OF CONTAINMENT i.e. single clutch failure

- 1. Clear immediate area consider proximity of neighbouring properties which may also require evacuation
- 2. Administer first aid as required
- 3. Ensure load secured with minimal movement if possible
- 4. Crane crew and site team to immediately assess situation and develop action plan to lower panel safety to ground or other appropriate location taking into account the following:
  - Weight of panel
  - available set down locations WLL of location panel to be placed (suspended slab etc)
  - Proximity of neighbouring properties and general public
    - Wind load
  - Overhead obstructions

COMPLETE LOSS OF CONTAINMENT i.e. panel has fallen and is no longer secured

- 1. Clear immediate area consider proximity of neighbouring properties which may also require evacuation
- 2. Administer first aid as required if safe to do so
- 3. Do not enter area unless safe to do so
- 4. Initiate Critical Response Plan

#### GENERAL

- 1. Call Emergency services 000. Advise the emergency services operator of the following:
  - Type of emergency
  - Address of site
  - Nearest Cross Street
- 2. Take instructions from emergency services
- 3. Do not enter site until instructed by emergency services.
- 4. Some areas of the building may be able to be opened while others may remain closed until deemed structurally safe
- 5. Hold a toolbox meeting with all workers to notify of relevant exclusion zones



- 6. Maintain scene for investigation purposes
- 7. An engineer's report may be required before any rectification work takes place.

#### 8.9 Structural Collapse Procedure

Responding Emergency Service – Fire Brigade/Ambulance

#### **IMMEDIATE ACTIONS:**

- 1. Assess the situation. Identify the severity
- 2. Ensure no-one is trapped
- 3. If someone is trapped do not put yourself in danger to get close. Remain at a safe distance and try to keep them calm.
- 4. Evacuate area and potentially whole site if unstable
- 5. Call Emergency services 000 and ask for Fire Brigade.
  - Type of emergency
  - Address of site
  - Nearest Cross Street
- 6. Ensure all persons are evacuated to assembly area.
- 7. Send someone to the street to meet and direct the fire brigade.
- 8. Provide assistance as directed.
- 9. Do not enter an area that could be unsafe for you.
- 10. Take instructions from emergency services
- 11. Do not enter site until instructed by emergency services.
- 12. Some areas of the building may be able to be opened while others may remain closed until deemed structurally safe
- 13. Hold a Toolbox Meeting with all workers to notify them of relevant exclusion zones
- 14. Maintain scene for investigation purposes
- 15. An engineer's report is required before any rectification work takes place. A detailed SWMS is required for all further works in the area

#### 8.10 Jump Form Rescue Procedure (Injured Worker Unable to Exit Core)

Responding Emergency Service – Fire Brigade/Ambulance

#### **IMMEDIATE ACTIONS:**

- 1. Assess the situation. Identify the severity
- 2. Contact emergency services 000. Make it clear that access to the injured person is restricted.
- 3. Notify site management
  - Give details of the core system location, (i.e. lift core or Stair core, what level, top deck or trailing deck.
  - Clearly state details of the incident (i.e. what has happened, current situation, is an Ambulance required)
  - Give details of the level that the core can be accessed from.
- 4. First Aiders to proceed immediately to core to administer treatment if safe to do so.
- 5. Defib to be taken if potential heart attack
- 6. If cranes are operating; Management/ First Aid staff to advise Crane Crew of situation, instruct them to cease work and collect stretcher box.
  - Dogman 1 Ensures existing load is safe and unhooks from crane.
  - Dogman 2 Is to make their way to the stretcher box location and hook up.

Master Doc Rev 1         Project Rev. 01         31/01/2022         Page 18 of 27
---



- Dogman Attends core ready to receive stretcher box and await further instruction from Emergency Services
- 7. Site Management or nominated Representative is to go to the street to meet ambulance/emergency services and direct them as required.
- 8. Ensure stretcher box is located on top of core ready for use by emergency services.
- 9. Ensure core area is clear of all personnel not directly involved in the rescue operation
- 10. Site Management will nominate a 2way radio channel to be kept clear throughout the rescue. First Aid calls only no unnecessary calls during the rescue period.
- 11. Follow all instructions given by emergency services.
- 12. Initiate critical incident response plan as required

**<u>IMPORTANT NOTE</u>**: A rescue plan specific to the core system in use on site is to be developed based on the above and all relevant personnel consulted.

#### 8.11 Trench / Excavation Collapse Procedure

Responding Emergency Service – Ambulance

#### **IMMEDIATE ACTIONS – EXCAVATION COLLAPSE:**

- 1. Assess the scene to determine what has happened
- 2. Alert Site Management
- 3. Identifying the number of victims, their location, and the nature of their injuries pass this information on to emergency services
- Assist victims out of excavation/trench who are not trapped by the collapse, but DO NOT ENTER the excavation/trench at any time until shoring has been put in place and only IF SAFE TO DO SO. Administer first aid well back from the edge.
- 5. Send someone to each site entrance point to direct emergency services when they arrive.
- 6. Assessing any other potential hazards i.e. possible damage to underground services, gas leaks etc and provide information to emergency services.
- 7. Turn off any known electrical, gas or other services in the vicinity
- 8. Stop the movement of all plant and eliminate all other possible sources of vibration within 100m
- 9. Move all bystanders away from the area
- 10. Assess the availability of shoring equipment available (timbers, steel beams, shoring etc) on site and communicate to emergency services
- 11. Follow instruction of emergency services
- 12. Contact WorkSafe in consultation with head contractor on site
- 13. Complete incident report

#### **IMMEDIATE ACTIONS – TRENCH COLLAPSE:**

1. Assess the situation. Identify the severity

Т

- 2. Do not access the trench under any circumstances
- 3. Ensure no-one is trapped
- 4. If someone is trapped **do not put yourself in danger** to get close. Remain away from the trench edge as it may be prone to collapse.
- 5. Identify an object that may be used to pass down to the person so that they can be pulled out i.e. harness, rope etc
- 6. Evacuate area and potentially whole site if other ground works are unstable
- 7. Call Emergency services 000 and ask for Fire Brigade. Advise the emergency services operator of the following:

T

Т

Master Doc Rev 1	Project Rev. 01	31/01/2022	Page <b>19</b> of <b>27</b>
			-

# LLOYD

- 8. Type of emergency
- 9. Address of site
- 10. Nearest Cross Street
- 11. Ensure all persons are evacuated to assembly area.
- 12. Send someone to the street to meet and direct the fire brigade.
- 13. Provide assistance as directed.
- 14. Do not enter an area that could be unsafe for you.
- 15. Take instructions from emergency services
- 16. Do not enter site until instructed by emergency services.
- 17. Some areas of the building may be able to be opened while others may remain closed until deemed structurally safe
- 18. Hold a toolbox meeting with all workers to notify of relevant exclusion zones
- 19. Maintain scene for investigation purposes
- 20. An engineer's report is required before any rectification work takes place. A detailed SWMS is required for all further works in the area

#### 8.12 Traffic Incident Procedure

Responding Emergency Service – Ambulance/Fire Brigade

#### **IMMEDIATE ACTIONS:**

- 1. Assess the situation. Identify the severity
- 2. Ensure no-one is trapped
- 3. If someone is trapped **do not put yourself in danger** to get close. Remain at a safe distance and try to keep them calm.
- 4. Call Emergency services 000. Advise the emergency services operator of the following:
  - Type of emergency
  - Address of site
  - Nearest Cross Street
- 5. If there is a danger of FIRE direct someone to obtain a fire extinguisher/s for use if required
- 6. Evacuate area of site impacted
- 7. Direct ticketed traffic controllers to direct traffic as required noting that conditions may have changed
- 8. Send someone to the street to meet and direct the fire brigade/ambulance.
- 9. Provide assistance as directed.
- 10. Take instructions from emergency services
- 11. Hold a toolbox meeting with all workers to notify of relevant exclusion zones

#### 8.13 Severe Weather Event

A severe weather event such as a storm, high winds, torrential rain, hail etc can cause significant damage on site. Early preparation in ensuring all loose materials are secured is key to managing safer outcomes.

Responding Emergency Service – Fire Brigade /Ambulance

#### **IMMEDIATE ACTIONS:**

- 1. Listen to the radio, check internet etc to ensure latest updates are available
- 2. Follow all instructions provided by government agencies
- 3. Ensure all loose materials are secured

Т

4. Stop all works and direct contractors to secure all loose items and leave site and return home if safe to do so

1

-

Master Doc Rev 1	Project Rev. 01	31/01/2022	Page <b>20</b> of <b>27</b>
------------------	-----------------	------------	-----------------------------



ENSURE YOU ARE NOT PLACING YOURSELF OR OTHERS IN ANY DANGER.

- 5. Shut down all plant and electrical equipment.
- 6. Where persons have been injured contact the First Aider and dial triple zero (**000**) for an ambulance and/ or emergency services.
- 7. If an ambulance/ emergency services is called, send a person to the site access gate to direct the ambulance to the casualty location.

Unless there is immediate danger to life (i.e. possible fire due to fuel spillage) treat serious injuries before moving the casualty.

#### 8.14 Hitting Electrical Services Procedure

Responding Emergency Service – Fire Brigade/Ambulance

#### IMMEDIATE ACTIONS IF PERSON IS OPERATING MOBILE PLANT:

- 1. Instruct driver to remain in the cabin and wait until the line is de-energised.
- 2. If there is smoke and a danger of fire instruct the driver to:
  - Jump from the cabin without touching the machine
  - Land with both feet together at the same time (DO NOT FALL OVER)
  - Shuffle away from the machine always keeping both feet on the ground
  - Clear the machine by 30m
- 3. Ensure a 30m clear zone is kept in place from machine
- 4. NEVER touch a person who is in contact with a power line. It must be de-energised first
- 5. NEVER touch power lines even if you think they are dead until instructed that it is clear to do so by emergency services
- 6. Maintain scene for investigation purposes

#### 8.15 Electric Shock Procedure

*Responding Emergency Service – Ambulance* 

#### **IMMEDIATE ACTIONS:**

- 1. Assess the situation. Identify the severity
- 2. Assist the person only if safe to do so
- 3. Make area safe by turning off electrical items if safe to do so
- 4. Call emergency services and ask for ambulance. Explain what has happened and take instruction from them. They may instruct that the person remain on site and an ambulance will be dispatched or they may instruct that the injured person be taken to the nearest hospital for checks and monitoring.

#### 8.16 Plant Failure/Incident

Plant failure/ incidents may include, but not be limited to the following: plant roll-over, falls from plant, collision with people, collision with other plant, entanglement/ crushing/ trapped between moving parts, crushing by falling objects.

*Responding Emergency Service – Fire Brigade /Ambulance* 

#### **IMMEDIATE ACTIONS:**

7. Immediately assess the situation and decide on the priorities of action.

ENSURE YOU ARE NOT PLACING YOURSELF OR OTHERS IN ANY DANGER.

8. Stop all work immediately, shut down all plant if necessary and any electrical equipment.

Master Doc Rev 1	
------------------	--



- 9. Where persons have been injured contact the First Aider and dial triple zero (**000**) for an ambulance and/ or emergency services.
- 10. If an ambulance/ emergency services is called, send a person to the site access gate to direct the ambulance to the casualty location.
- 11. Unless there is immediate danger to life (i.e. possible fire due to fuel spillage) treat serious injuries before moving the casualty.

#### 8.17 Retrieval of Crane Operator from Tower Crane Cabin

Responding Emergency Service – Fire Brigade (High Angle Rescue Team) /Ambulance

#### **IMMEDIATE ACTIONS:**

- 1. Gain access to the crane cabin and provide immediate first aid assistance
- 2. Contact relevant emergency service making it clear it is a height rescue
- 3. Assess availability to use mobile crane on site to get first aid cage to injured person. Is there a crane on a nearby job that can assist?
- 4. Take instructions from emergency services with regard to commencing the rescue using the first aid box.
- 5. Create a clear landing area for the first aid box in case it is required.
- 6. Maintain scene for investigation purposes

#### 8.18 Bomb Threat Procedure

Responding Emergency Service – Police

#### **IMMEDIATE ACTIONS:**

- 1. Treat situation as genuine
- 2. Record all information for police
- 3. If phone call prolong call and ask:
  - Location of bomb
  - Time set to explode
  - Listen for any background sounds
  - Was the call taped?
  - Was the caller well spoken, coherent, irrational, message read by caller, abusive:
  - Contact police

#### 4. **DO NOT REPLACE THE HANDSET** so the call can be traced

- 5. If a suspicious package is found:
  - Do not tough it
  - Keep area clear
  - Contact police
- 6. If threat is by letter:
  - Handle letter and envelope as little as possible
  - Place item into a plastic pocket to preserve evidence
- 7. TURN OFF ALL MOBILE PHONES AS THEY MAY TRIGGER A DEVICE
- 8. Raise the alarm:
  - Call police
  - Do not use Break Glass Alarms, EWIS, PA or mobile phones etc.
- 9. Evacuate as instructed by emergency services

Master Doc Rev 1	Project Rev. 01	31/01/2022	Page <b>22</b> of <b>27</b>
	,		U

# LLOYD

#### 8.19 Mental Health Incident Procedure

*Responding Emergency Service – Ambulance* 

#### **INCIDENTS CAN INCLUDE:**

- Panic attacks / Psychosis / Trauma reaction / Self harm or threat of self-harm / Drug/Alcohol abuse
- Panic attacks
- Psychosis
- Trauma reaction
- Self-harm or threat of self-harm
- Drug/Alcohol abuse

#### **IMMEDIATE ACTIONS:**

- 1. Do not leave the person alone
- 2. Assess danger to themselves or others keep them away from potential danger
- 3. Reassure the person by talking calmly to them
- 4. Try to get them to control their breathing
- 5. Maintain eye contact
- 6. Engage the person by talking. Ask straight forward questions. Do not judge them.
- 7. Ask if there is someone you can call to come and be with them
- 8. Must ensure that they get home safely
- 9. Contact next of kin listed on induction form so that they can come and get them

#### IF PERSON IS VIOLENT TO OTHERS OR THREATENING TO HARM THEMSELVES:

- 1. Contact emergency services
- 2. Try to de-escalate the situation by talking calmly to them
- 3. Establish what their concerns are and try to develop a positive course of action if only as a delaying tactic
- 4. Always maintain clear personal boundaries
- 5. Evacuate the site if required

#### **HELP LINES:**

- LifeLine Ph: 13 11 14
- Beyond Blue Ph: 1300 22 4636

Master Doc Rev 1	Project Rev. 01	31/01/2022	Page <b>23</b> of <b>27</b>

# LLOYD

#### 8.20 Arrested Fall Procedure

Responding Emergency Service – Ambulance/High Access Rescue Team (HART)

#### **IMMEDIATE ACTIONS:**

#### SELF RESCUE:

- 1. If save to do so the worker can climb back up to the level from which they fell
- 2. If save to do so the worker can disconnect the harness and make way to ground or level below. This should only be attempted where secondary fall protection is in place.

#### **RESCUE USING MOBILE PLANT:**

- Where possible and as soon as possible, ensure people's weight is not held suspended only by the harness. It is important to maintain blood flow through the body. Pressure caused by hanging in the harness can cut off blood flow
- 2. Utilise available mobile plant to rescue the person. Assess how long it will take to get each piece of plant into correct location etc. Choose quickest possible option.
  - Crane with man box
  - Elevated work platform
  - Scissor lift

#### HART – CONTACT HIGH ACCESS RESCUE TEAM

- 1. If rescue is not possible, contact emergency services and request the High Access Rescue Team
- 2. Follow all instructions provided over the phone

If person is hanging in a harness and immediate rescue is not possible, ensure the following while you wait for emergency services:



1.Get the person down as quickly as possible



2. Tell the person to lift their legs and/or pump their leg muscles to maintain blood flow



4. Push legs against any structure

5. Lower down a rope to help lift their legs

#### **FURTHER ACTIONS**

- First aider to attend and administer first aid to the level their training allows
- If person is injured call Emergency Services 000 & ask for an Ambulance. Advise the emergency services operator of the following:

3. Use

trauma

straps if

available

- Type of emergency
- Address of site
- Nearest Cross Street
- Send person to street to meet and direct emergency services

Master Doc Rev 1	
------------------	--

# LLOYD

- Check to ensure area is safe
- Render first aid assistance until ambulance arrives
- Barricade area to make safe if required
- Maintain scene for investigation purposes

#### 8.21 Heat Stress/Heat Stroke

HEAT STRESS STAGES	SYMPTOMS	TREATMENT (FIRST AID)
Heat Cramps	<ul> <li>Heavy perspiration, tired and thirsty</li> <li>Irritability, loss of appetite</li> <li>Prickly heat rash, nausea</li> <li>Muscle spasms / twitching, moist cool skin</li> <li>Painful muscle cramps (limbs and abdomen</li> </ul>	<ul> <li>Drink more water</li> <li>Have a cold shower/bath</li> <li>Lie in a cool place with legs supported and slightly elevated</li> <li>Massage limbs gently to ease spasms, or firmly if cramped, then apply ice packs and drink glucose solution. (e.g. cordial)</li> <li>Do not have salt</li> </ul>
Heat Exhaustion	<ul> <li>Profuse perspiration</li> <li>Cold, clammy, pale skin</li> <li>Fatigue, weakness and restlessness</li> <li>Headache and vomiting</li> <li>Weak but rapid pulse</li> <li>Poor Coordination</li> <li>Normal temperature, but faintness</li> </ul>	<ul> <li>Lay victim down in a cool place as for heat cramps.</li> <li>Loosen clothing and apply wet cloths to head and body</li> <li>Fan the victim, or move them to an air-conditioned environment</li> <li>Give sips of cold water</li> <li>If vomiting continues, seek medical assistance immediately</li> </ul>
Heat Stroke	<ul> <li>Confusion, headache, nausea, dizziness</li> <li>Skin flushed, hot and unusually dry</li> <li>Dry swollen tongue</li> <li>High body temperature (&gt;40°C)</li> <li>Deep unconsciousness may develop rapidly</li> </ul>	<ul> <li>Seek medical assistance urgently</li> <li>Lay victim in a cool place and remove outer clothing</li> <li>If unconscious, check airway and breathing</li> <li>Cool victim quickly by applying cold water or wrap in a wet sheet and fan them (keep the sheet wet)</li> <li>When conscious, give sips of water</li> </ul>

#### 8.22 Shock

Almost every accident or injury is followed by shock. The victim may be pale and have clammy skin, a feeble and rapid pulse and may be unconscious.

- Put patient at rest.
- Keep patient quiet and warm.
- Loosen tight clothing.
- Keep the patient calm and confident of receiving help quickly.

#### 8.23 Snake Bites

- Check that the snake is not in the vicinity endangering the victim, other personnel or yourself.
- Calm the victim and keep the victim still.
- Apply pressure immobilization bandage in accordance with First Aid requirements.
- Do not wash venom off the skin. (this helps identification of species).
- Do not use an arterial tourniquet.
- Do not attempt to catch the snake.

Master Doc Rev 1	Project Rev. 01
------------------	-----------------

31/01/2022



- Write down the time of the bite and when the bandage was applied.
- Call 000 or 112 from any mobile phone or get someone to do so.
- Without endangering yourself or others if you see the snake, try to identify the species from a safe distance and if possible, take a photo with mobile camera.

#### 8.24 Unauthorised Access by School Children

#### **IMMEDIATE ACTIONS**

- All works across the entire site is to cease immediately.
- Contact the site manager immediately.
- Ensure that the school aged child is kept out of harm's way until the site manager arrives.
- Site manger to contact the school principal immediately.
- Under the guidance of the site manager only, ensue that the school aged child is escorted to the site office until such time that the school principal/authorised school representative arrives to take care of the school aged child.
- Once the school aged child has been safely removed from site, the site manager is to notify SINSW/DET immediately.
- The site manager is to undertake a formal investigation into the incident, with the report communicated to all relevant stakeholders within the Contractor WHS Reporting Guidelines.

Master Doc Rev 1	Project Rev. 01	31/01/2022	Page <b>26</b> of <b>27</b>



ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT PLAN 18. Appendix G – Training and Skilling Plan

# LLOYD

# **Training & Skilling Plan**

CLIENT NAME:	Amity College
PROJECT NAME:	Amity College Stage 1
SITE ADDRESS:	85 Byron Road, Leppington NSW 2179
REVISION:	1
ISSUE DATE:	31/01/2022

# LLOYD

#### ABBREVIATIONS

The OrganisationLloyd GroupBDMBusiness Development ManagerCAContract AdministratorCritical IncidentA critical incident is any incident in the workplace that results in death; majorStructural damage, or serious/permanent disability or injuryCMConstruction ManagerDIRDirector/sEMPAll Company EmployeesESTEstimatorESTMEstimatorFAIFirst Aid InjuryHIRACHazard Identification, Risk Assessment & ControlsHSSHealth Safety & EnvironmentHSGIntegrated ManagerHSEQHealth Safety RepresentativeIMSIntegrated ManagerHSEQHealth Safety RepresentativeIMSIntegrated ManagerHSEQHealth Safety Environment and QualityHSEQHSEQ CoordinatorHSEQAHSEQ CoordinatorLloyd Group / Lloyd Group/the OrganisationLTILost Time Injury – At least one full shift lost due to injuryLTIFRLost Time Injury Frequency Rate = No. (LTI's/hours worked) x 1,000,000MDManaging DirectorMTIMedical Treatment Injury Frequency RateNTLNational Team Leader – Safety & ComplianceOMOffice ManagerPPEPersonal Protection EquipmentPMProject ManagerSenfor ManagementSite ManagerSter Manager, HSEQ ManagerSte ManagerSite Safety Committee	ABBREVIATION	DEFINITION
CAContract AdministratorCritical IncidentA critical incident is any incident in the workplace that results in death; major structural damage, or serious/permanent disability or injuryCMConstruction ManagerDIRDirector/sEMPAll Company EmployeesESTEstimatorESTMEstimating ManagerFAIFirst Aid InjuryHIRACHazard Identification, Risk Assessment & ControlsHSEHealth Safety & EnvironmentHSRHealth Safety RepresentativeIMSIntegrated Management SystemHSEQHSEQ CoordinatorHSEQAHSEQ AdministratorLloyd GroupLloyd Group/the OrganisationLTILost Time Injury – At least one full shift lost due to injuryLTIRAMadical Treatment InjuryMTIMedical Treatment InjuryMTIFRMedical Treatment Injury Frequency RateNGOffice ManagerPFEPersonal Protection EquipmentPPEPersonal Protection EquipmentPMProject ManagerSDSSafety Data Sheet (Formally referred to as MSDS)Senior ManagementSite ManagerSMSite Manager	The Organisation	Lloyd Group
Critical IncidentA critical incident is any incident in the workplace that results in death; major structural damage, or serious/permanent disability or injuryCMConstruction ManagerDIRDirector/sEMPAll Company EmployeesESTEstimatorESTMEstimating ManagerFAIFirst Aid InjuryHIRACHazard Identification, Risk Assessment & ControlsHSEHealth Safety & EnvironmentHSRHealth Safety RepresentativeIMSIntegrated ManagerHSQHealth Safety RepresentativeIMSIntegrated ManagerHSEQHealth Safety RepresentativeIMSQHSEQ CoordinatorHSEQAHSEQ AmagerHSEQAHSEQ AmagerHSEQAHSEQ AdministratorLloyd GroupLloyd Group/the OrganisationLTILost Time Injury – At least one full shift lost due to injuryLTIFRLost Time Injury Frequency Rate = No. (LTI's/hours worked) x 1,000,000MDManaging DirectorMTIMedical Treatment Injury Frequency RateNTLNational Team Leader – Safety & ComplianceOMOffice ManagerPPEPersonal Protection EquipmentPMProject ManagerSenior ManagementSite Manager, Business Development Manager, Procurement Manager, Construction Manager, HSEQ, ManagerShie ManagerSite ManagerSub Site ManagerSite Manager	BDM	Business Development Manager
structural damage, or serious/permanent disability or injuryCMConstruction ManagerDIRDirector/sEMPAll Company EmployeesESTEstimatorESTMEstimating ManagerFAIFirst Aid InjuryHIRACHazard Identification, Risk Assessment & ControlsHSEHealth Safety & EnvironmentHSRHealth Safety RepresentativeIMSIntegrated ManagerHSEQHealth Safety RepresentativeHSEQHealth Safety RepresentativeHSEQHealth Safety RepresentativeHSEQHSEQ CoordinatorHSEQAHSEQ AdmagerHSEQAHSEQ AdmagerLioyd GroupLioyd Group/the OrganisationLTILost Time Injury - At least one full shift lost due to injuryLTIFRMedical Treatment InjuryMTIRMedical Treatment Injury Frequency Rate = No. (LTI's/hours worked) x 1,000,000MDManaging DirectorMTINational Team Leader - Safety & ComplianceOMOffice ManagerPFEPersonal Protection EquipmentPMProject ManagerSoft Safety Data Sheet (Formally referred to as MSDS)Senior ManagementNanager, Busicess Development Manager, Procurement Manager, Construction Manager, HSEQ ManagerSMSite Manager	СА	Contract Administrator
CMConstruction ManagerDIRDirector/sEMPAll Company EmployeesESTEstimatorESTMEstimating ManagerFAIFirst Aid InjuryHIRACHazard Identification, Risk Assessment & ControlsHSEHealth Safety & EnvironmentHSRHealth Safety RepresentativeIMSIntegrated ManagerHSEQHealth Safety Environment and QualityHSEQHealth Safety Environment and QualityHSEQHealth Safety Environment and QualityHSEQHealth Safety Environment and QualityHSEQHealth Safety Environment and QualityHSEQHSEQ CoordinatorHSEQAHSEQ AdministratorLloyd GroupLloyd Group/the OrganisationLTILost Time Injury – At least one full shift lost due to injuryLTIFRLost Time Injury Frequency Rate = No. (LTI's/hours worked) x 1,000,000MDManaging DirectorMTIMedical Treatment InjuryMTIFRMedical Treatment Injury Frequency RateNTLNational Team Leader – Safety & ComplianceOMOffice ManagerPPEPersonal Protection EquipmentPMProject ManagerSDSSafety Data Sheet (Formally referred to as MSDS)Safety Data Sheet (Formally referred to as MSDS)Site Manager, Business Development Manager, Chief Financial Officer, EstimatingShSite Manager	Critical Incident	
EMPAll Company EmployeesESTEstimatorESTMEstimating ManagerFAIFirst Aid InjuryHIRACHazard Identification, Risk Assessment & ControlsHSEHealth Safety & EnvironmentHSRHealth Safety RepresentativeIMSIntegrated Management SystemHSEQHealth Safety Environment and QualityHSEQHSEQ CoordinatorHSEQHSEQ CoordinatorHSEQMHSEQ AdministratorLloyd GroupLloyd Group/the OrganisationLTILost Time Injury – At least one full shift lost due to injuryLTIFRLost Time Injury Frequency Rate = No. (LTI's/hours worked) x 1,000,000MDManaging DirectorMTIMedical Treatment Injury Frequency RateNTLNational Team Leader – Safety & ComplianceOMOffice ManagerPPEPersonal Protection EquipmentPMProject ManagerSDSSafety Data Sheet (Formally referred to as MSDS)Senior ManagementDirector, Managing Director, General Manager, Chief Financial Officer, Estimating Manager, Business Development Manager, Procurement Manager, Construction Manager, HSEQ Manager	СМ	
ESTEstimatorESTMEstimating ManagerFAIFirst Aid InjuryHIRACHazard Identification, Risk Assessment & ControlsHSEHealth Safety & EnvironmentHSRHealth & Safety RepresentativeIMSIntegrated Management SystemHSEQHealth Safety Environment and QualityHSEQHealth Safety Environment and QualityHSEQHealth Safety Environment and QualityHSEQHSEQ CoordinatorHSEQAHSEQ ManagerHSEQAHSEQ AdministratorLloyd GroupLloyd Group/the OrganisationLTILost Time Injury – At least one full shift lost due to injuryLTIFRLost Time Injury Frequency Rate = No. (LTI's/hours worked) x 1,000,000MDManaging DirectorMTIMedical Treatment Injury Frequency RateNTLNational Team Leader – Safety & ComplianceOMOffice ManagerPPEPersonal Protection EquipmentPMProject ManagerSDSSafety Data Sheet (Formally referred to as MSDS)Senior ManagementDirector, Managing Director, General Manager, Chief Financial Officer, Estimating Manager, Business Development Manager, Procurement Manager, Construction Manager, HSEQ ManagerSMSite Manager	DIR	Director/s
ESTMEstimating ManagerFAIFirst Aid InjuryHIRACHazard Identification, Risk Assessment & ControlsHSEHealth Safety & EnvironmentHSRHealth & Safety RepresentativeIMSIntegrated Management SystemHSEQHealth Safety Environment and QualityHSEQHealth Safety Environment and QualityHSEQHealth Safety Environment and QualityHSEQHealth Safety Environment and QualityHSEQHealth Safety Environment and QualityHSEQAHSEQ CoordinatorHSEQAHSEQ AdministratorLloyd GroupLloyd Group/the OrganisationLTILost Time Injury – At least one full shift lost due to injuryLTIFRLost Time Injury Frequency Rate = No. (LTI's/hours worked) x 1,000,000MDManaging DirectorMTIMedical Treatment InjuryMTIFRMedical Treatment Injury Frequency RateNTLNational Team Leader – Safety & ComplianceOMOffice ManagerPPEPersonal Protection EquipmentPMProject ManagerSDSSafety Data Sheet (Formally referred to as MSDS)Senior ManagementDirector, Managing Director, General Manager, Chief Financial Officer, Estimating Manager, Business Development Manager, Procurement Manager, Construction Manager, HSEQ Manager	EMP	All Company Employees
FAIFirst Aid InjuryHIRACHazard Identification, Risk Assessment & ControlsHSEHealth Safety & EnvironmentHSRHealth & Safety RepresentativeIMSIntegrated Management SystemHSEQHealth Safety Environment and QualityHSEQHealth Safety Environment and QualityHSEQHealth Safety Environment and QualityHSEQHSEQ CoordinatorHSEQMHSEQ ManagerHSEQAHSEQ AdministratorLloyd GroupLloyd Group/the OrganisationLTILost Time Injury - At least one full shift lost due to injuryLTIFRLost Time Injury Frequency Rate = No. (LTI's/hours worked) x 1,000,000MDManaging DirectorMTIMedical Treatment InjuryMTIFRMedical Treatment Injury Frequency RateNTLNational Team Leader - Safety & ComplianceOMOffice ManagerPPEPersonal Protection EquipmentPMProject ManagerSDSSafety Data Sheet (Formally referred to as MSDS)Senior ManagementDirector, Managing Director, General Manager, Chief Financial Officer, Estimating Manager, Business Development Manager, Procurement Manager, Construction Manager, HSEQ ManagerSMSite Manager	EST	Estimator
HIRACHazard Identification, Risk Assessment & ControlsHSEHealth Safety & EnvironmentHSRHealth & Safety RepresentativeIMSIntegrated Management SystemHSEQHealth Safety Environment and QualityHSEQCHSEQ CoordinatorHSEQMHSEQ AdministratorLloyd GroupLloyd Group/the OrganisationLTILost Time Injury – At least one full shift lost due to injuryLTIFRLost Time Injury Frequency Rate = No. (LTI's/hours worked) x 1,000,000MDManaging DirectorMTIMedical Treatment InjuryMTIFRMedical Treatment Injury Frequency RateNTLNational Team Leader – Safety & ComplianceOMOffice ManagerPPEPersonal Protection EquipmentPMProject ManagerSDSSafety Data Sheet (Formally referred to as MSDS)Senior ManagementSite Manager, Business Development Manager, Procurement Manager, Construction Manager, Business Development Manager, Procurement Manager, Construction Manager, HSEQ Manager	ESTM	Estimating Manager
HSEHealth Safety & EnvironmentHSRHealth & Safety RepresentativeIMSIntegrated Management SystemHSEQHealth Safety Environment and QualityHSEQHealth Safety Environment and QualityHSEQCHSEQ CoordinatorHSEQMHSEQ AdministratorLloyd GroupLloyd Group/the OrganisationLTILost Time Injury – At least one full shift lost due to injuryLTIFRLost Time Injury Frequency Rate = No. (LTI's/hours worked) x 1,000,000MDManaging DirectorMTIMedical Treatment InjuryMTIFRMedical Treatment Injury Frequency RateNTLNational Team Leader – Safety & ComplianceOMOffice ManagerPPEPersonal Protection EquipmentPMProject ManagerSDSSafety Data Sheet (Formally referred to as MSDS)Senior ManagementSite Manager, Business Development Manager, Chief Financial Officer, Estimating Manager, HSEQ ManagerSMSite Manager	FAI	First Aid Injury
HSRHealth & Safety RepresentativeIMSIntegrated Management SystemHSEQHealth Safety Environment and QualityHSEQHSEQ CoordinatorHSEQMHSEQ CoordinatorHSEQMHSEQ ManagerHSEQAHSEQ AdministratorLloyd GroupLloyd Group/the OrganisationLTILost Time Injury – At least one full shift lost due to injuryLTIFRLost Time Injury Frequency Rate = No. (LTI's/hours worked) x 1,000,000MDManaging DirectorMTIMedical Treatment InjuryMTIFRMedical Treatment Injury Frequency RateNTLNational Team Leader – Safety & ComplianceOMOffice ManagerPPEPersonal Protection EquipmentPMProject ManagerSDSSafety Data Sheet (Formally referred to as MSDS)Senior ManagementDirector, Managing Director, General Manager, Chief Financial Officer, Estimating Manager, HSEQ ManagerSMSite Manager	HIRAC	Hazard Identification, Risk Assessment & Controls
IMSIntegrated Management SystemHSEQHealth Safety Environment and QualityHSEQHSEQ CoordinatorHSEQMHSEQ ManagerHSEQAHSEQ AdministratorLloyd GroupLloyd Group/the OrganisationLTILost Time Injury – At least one full shift lost due to injuryLTIFRLost Time Injury Frequency Rate = No. (LTI's/hours worked) x 1,000,000MDManaging DirectorMTIMedical Treatment InjuryMTIFRMedical Treatment Injury Frequency RateNTLNational Team Leader – Safety & ComplianceOMOffice ManagerPPEPersonal Protection EquipmentPMProject ManagerSDSSafety Data Sheet (Formally referred to as MSDS)Senior ManagementDirector, Managing Director, General Manager, Chief Financial Officer, Estimating Manager, Business Development Manager, Procurement Manager, Construction Manager, HSEQ ManagerSMSite Manager	HSE	Health Safety & Environment
HSEQHealth Safety Environment and QualityHSEQCHSEQ CoordinatorHSEQMHSEQ ManagerHSEQAHSEQ AdministratorLloyd GroupLloyd Group/the OrganisationLTILost Time Injury – At least one full shift lost due to injuryLTIRRLost Time Injury Frequency Rate = No. (LTI's/hours worked) x 1,000,000MDManaging DirectorMTIMedical Treatment InjuryMTIRRMedical Treatment Injury Frequency RateNTLNational Team Leader – Safety & ComplianceOMOffice ManagerPPEPersonal Protection EquipmentPMProject ManagerSDSSafety Data Sheet (Formally referred to as MSDS)Senior ManagementDirector, Manager, Business Development Manager, Procurement Manager, Construction Manager, HSEQ ManagerSMSite Manager	HSR	Health & Safety Representative
HSEQCHSEQ CoordinatorHSEQMHSEQ ManagerHSEQAHSEQ AdministratorLloyd GroupLloyd Group/the OrganisationLTILost Time Injury – At least one full shift lost due to injuryLTIRRLost Time Injury Frequency Rate = No. (LTI's/hours worked) x 1,000,000MDManaging DirectorMTIMedical Treatment InjuryMTIRRMedical Treatment Injury Frequency RateNTLNational Team Leader – Safety & ComplianceOMOffice ManagerPPEPersonal Protection EquipmentPMProject ManagerSDSSafety Data Sheet (Formally referred to as MSDS)Senior ManagementDirector, Managing Director, General Manager, Chief Financial Officer, Estimating Manager, HSEQ ManagerSMSite Manager	IMS	Integrated Management System
HSEQMHSEQ ManagerHSEQAHSEQ AdministratorLloyd GroupLloyd Group/the OrganisationLTILost Time Injury – At least one full shift lost due to injuryLTIRLost Time Injury Frequency Rate = No. (LTI's/hours worked) x 1,000,000MDManaging DirectorMTIMedical Treatment InjuryMTIRRMedical Treatment Injury Frequency RateNTLNational Team Leader – Safety & ComplianceOMOffice ManagerPPEPersonal Protection EquipmentPMProject ManagerSDSSafety Data Sheet (Formally referred to as MSDS)Senior ManagementDirector, Managing Director, General Manager, Chief Financial Officer, Estimating Manager, HSEQ ManagerSMSite Manager	HSEQ	Health Safety Environment and Quality
HSEQAHSEQ AdministratorLloyd GroupLloyd Group/the OrganisationLTILost Time Injury – At least one full shift lost due to injuryLTIFRLost Time Injury Frequency Rate = No. (LTI's/hours worked) x 1,000,000MDManaging DirectorMTIMedical Treatment InjuryMTIRRMedical Treatment Injury Frequency RateNTLNational Team Leader – Safety & ComplianceOMOffice ManagerPPEPersonal Protection EquipmentPMProject ManagerSDSSafety Data Sheet (Formally referred to as MSDS)Senior ManagementDirector, Managing Director, General Manager, Chief Financial Officer, Estimating Manager, Business Development Manager, Procurement Manager, Construction Manager, HSEQ ManagerSMSite Manager	HSEQC	HSEQ Coordinator
Lloyd GroupLloyd Group/the OrganisationLTILost Time Injury – At least one full shift lost due to injuryLTIFRLost Time Injury Frequency Rate = No. (LTI's/hours worked) x 1,000,000MDManaging DirectorMTIMedical Treatment InjuryMTIRMedical Treatment Injury Frequency RateNTLNational Team Leader – Safety & ComplianceOMOffice ManagerPPEPersonal Protection EquipmentPMProject ManagerSDSSafety Data Sheet (Formally referred to as MSDS)Senior ManagementDirector, Managing Director, General Manager, Chief Financial Officer, Estimating Manager, HSEQ ManagerSMSite Manager	HSEQM	HSEQ Manager
LTILost Time Injury – At least one full shift lost due to injuryLTIFRLost Time Injury Frequency Rate = No. (LTI's/hours worked) x 1,000,000MDManaging DirectorMTIMedical Treatment InjuryMTIRRMedical Treatment Injury Frequency RateNTLNational Team Leader – Safety & ComplianceOMOffice ManagerPPEPersonal Protection EquipmentPMProject ManagerSDSSafety Data Sheet (Formally referred to as MSDS)Senior ManagementDirector, Managing Director, General Manager, Chief Financial Officer, Estimating Manager, HSEQ ManagerSMSite Manager	HSEQA	HSEQ Administrator
LTIFRLost Time Injury Frequency Rate = No. (LTI's/hours worked) x 1,000,000MDManaging DirectorMTIMedical Treatment InjuryMTIRMedical Treatment Injury Frequency RateNTLNational Team Leader – Safety & ComplianceOMOffice ManagerPPEPersonal Protection EquipmentPMProject ManagerSDSSafety Data Sheet (Formally referred to as MSDS)Senior ManagementDirector, Managing Director, General Manager, Chief Financial Officer, Estimating Manager, HSEQ ManagerSMSite Manager	Lloyd Group	Lloyd Group/the Organisation
MDManaging DirectorMTIMedical Treatment InjuryMTIFRMedical Treatment Injury Frequency RateNTLNational Team Leader – Safety & ComplianceOMOffice ManagerPPEPersonal Protection EquipmentPMProject ManagerSDSSafety Data Sheet (Formally referred to as MSDS)Senior ManagementDirector, Managing Director, General Manager, Chief Financial Officer, Estimating Manager, Business Development Manager, Procurement Manager, Construction Manager, HSEQ ManagerSMSite Manager	LTI	Lost Time Injury – At least one full shift lost due to injury
MTIMedical Treatment InjuryMTIFRMedical Treatment Injury Frequency RateNTLNational Team Leader – Safety & ComplianceOMOffice ManagerPPEPersonal Protection EquipmentPMProject ManagerSDSSafety Data Sheet (Formally referred to as MSDS)Senior ManagementDirector, Managing Director, General Manager, Chief Financial Officer, Estimating Manager, HSEQ ManagerSMSite Manager	LTIFR	Lost Time Injury Frequency Rate = No. (LTI's/hours worked) x 1,000,000
MTIFRMedical Treatment Injury Frequency RateNTLNational Team Leader – Safety & ComplianceOMOffice ManagerPPEPersonal Protection EquipmentPMProject ManagerSDSSafety Data Sheet (Formally referred to as MSDS)Senior ManagementDirector, Managing Director, General Manager, Chief Financial Officer, Estimating Manager, Business Development Manager, Procurement Manager, Construction Manager, HSEQ ManagerSMSite Manager	MD	Managing Director
NTLNational Team Leader – Safety & ComplianceOMOffice ManagerPPEPersonal Protection EquipmentPMProject ManagerSDSSafety Data Sheet (Formally referred to as MSDS)Senior ManagementDirector, Managing Director, General Manager, Chief Financial Officer, Estimating Manager, Business Development Manager, Procurement Manager, Construction Manager, HSEQ ManagerSMSite Manager	MTI	Medical Treatment Injury
OMOffice ManagerPPEPersonal Protection EquipmentPMProject ManagerSDSSafety Data Sheet (Formally referred to as MSDS)Senior ManagementDirector, Managing Director, General Manager, Chief Financial Officer, Estimating Manager, Business Development Manager, Procurement Manager, Construction Manager, HSEQ ManagerSMSite Manager	MTIFR	Medical Treatment Injury Frequency Rate
PPE       Personal Protection Equipment         PM       Project Manager         SDS       Safety Data Sheet (Formally referred to as MSDS)         Senior Management       Director, Managing Director, General Manager, Chief Financial Officer, Estimating Manager, Business Development Manager, Procurement Manager, Construction Manager, HSEQ Manager         SM       Site Manager	NTL	National Team Leader – Safety & Compliance
PMProject ManagerSDSSafety Data Sheet (Formally referred to as MSDS)Senior ManagementDirector, Managing Director, General Manager, Chief Financial Officer, Estimating Manager, Business Development Manager, Procurement Manager, Construction Manager, HSEQ ManagerSMSite Manager	ОМ	Office Manager
SDSSafety Data Sheet (Formally referred to as MSDS)Senior ManagementDirector, Managing Director, General Manager, Chief Financial Officer, Estimating Manager, Business Development Manager, Procurement Manager, Construction Manager, HSEQ ManagerSMSite Manager	PPE	Personal Protection Equipment
Senior Management       Director, Managing Director, General Manager, Chief Financial Officer, Estimating         Manager, Business Development Manager, Procurement Manager, Construction         Manager, HSEQ Manager         SM       Site Manager	PM	Project Manager
Senior Management       Manager, Business Development Manager, Procurement Manager, Construction         Manager, HSEQ Manager       SM         SM       Site Manager	SDS	Safety Data Sheet (Formally referred to as MSDS)
	Senior Management	Manager, Business Development Manager, Procurement Manager, Construction
SSC Site Safety Committee	SM	Site Manager
	SSC	Site Safety Committee

Master Doc Rev 1	Project Rev. 01	21/11/2020	Page <b>2</b> of <b>8</b>
------------------	-----------------	------------	---------------------------



REGISTER OF REVIEW – MASTYER TEMPLATE											
REVISION	DATE	SECTION	DESCRIPTION OF AMENDMENTS	AMENDED BY							
1	18/11/20	All	Initial issue	S. Willoughby							

REGISTER OF REVIEW - PROJECT											
REVISION	DATE	SECTION	DESCRIPTION OF AMENDMENTS	AMENDED BY							
1	31/01/22	All	Project Specific Issue	J.Ling							

APPROVALS			
NAME	POSITION	SIGNATURE	DATE
Joseph Elley	Project Manager	Jahry	9/03/21
Michael Pearce	Site Manager	NA	9/03/21

Master Doc Rev 1	Project Rev. 01	21/11/2020	Page <b>3</b> of <b>8</b>
------------------	-----------------	------------	---------------------------



#### **TABLE OF CONTENTS**

ose5	,
-	
e o i	se

Master Doc Rev 1Project Rev. 0121/11/2020Page 4 of	8
--	---

LLOYD

### 1. Purpose

The purpose of this plan is to ensure that the project team has the required skills and training to meet the requirements of the project and where gaps are identified that a plan is developed to close these out as quickly as possible so as to not impact the project.

Note: The training covered in this plan is site specific and does not include basic company required training.

#### 2. Scope

This plan and the information it contains applies to this project.

### 3. Project Duration

PROJECT DURATION:	42 Weeks
PROJECT START (ESTIMATE):	02/02/2022
PROJECT FINISH (ESTIMATE):	TBC (Jan 2023)

# 4. Proposed Project Organisation Chart



Master Doc Rev 1	Project Rev. 01	21/11/2020	Page <b>5</b> of <b>8</b>

LLOYD

# 5. Training Matrix

The following training is specific training required for this project:

REQUIRED TRAINING	Project Mgr	Site Mgr	Foreman/ Supervisor	HSEQC	Contract Admin	Graduate	HSR	Other	
Due Diligence	~	~		~					
Company Induction (including HIRAC)	~	<	<	~	<	<	~		
Site Induction	~	~	~	~	~	~	~		
Construction Induction Training (white card)	~	~	~	~	~	~	~		
Fire Warden			~	~					
Chief Fire Warden		~							
Senior First Aid		~	~	~					
Asbestos Awareness									
Excavation & Trenching Awareness (internal)	~	~	~	~	~	~	~		
Other:									

Master Doc Rev 1	Project Rev. 01	21/11/2020	Page <b>6</b> of <b>8</b>
------------------	-----------------	------------	---------------------------

# LLOYD

### 6. Training Matrix

All roles/names are to be listed below stating training status. Where training is not up to date, section 7 is to be completed and updated as required. Note: This is to cover Project Specific Training.

		NAMES/ROLE																			
REQUIRED TRAINING	<insert name="" role=""></insert>																				
Due Diligence																					
Company Induction (HIRAC Training)																					
Site Induction																					
Construction Induction Training (white card)																					
Fire Warden																					
Chief Fire Warden																					
Senior First Aid																					
Asbestos Awareness																					
Excavation & Trenching Awareness (internal)																					
HSR Training																					
Other:																					
Master Doc Rev 1		Р	roject	Rev.	01				21/11	/2020			Ра	ge <b>7</b> o	f <b>8</b>						



# 7. Training Plan

NAME	ROLE	TRAINING REQUIRED	BY WHEN	COMPLETE

Master Doc Rev 1	Project Rev. 01	31/01/2022	Page <b>8</b> of <b>8</b>